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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”), and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) specialise in the production and
distribution of instant noodles and beverages in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). The Group started its instant noodle
business in 1992, and expanded into instant food business and
beverage business in 1996. In March 2012, the Group further
expanded its beverage business by forming a strategic alliance
with PepsiCo for the beverage business in the PRC. The Company
exclusively manufactures, bottles, packages, distributes and sells
PepsiCo soft drinks in the PRC. The Group’s main business segments
have established leading market shares in the PRC’s food industry.
According to AC Nielsen December 2020 data, based on sales
volume, in 2020, the Group was the market leader in instant
noodles and ready-to-drink teas (incl. milk tea), having gained
43.7% and 43.6% market shares, respectively. In the overall juice
drink market, the Group gained 17.3% market share, ranked No.2.
According to GlobalData December 2020 data, based on sales
volume, Pepsi carbonated soft drinks had 33.4% market share and
held a second position. After years of hard work and accumulation,
“Master Kong” has become one of the best-known brands among
consumers in the PRC.

Being a leading brand in the fast moving consumer goods industry,
Master Kong has to hold the industry responsibility of food safety
and quality guarantee. The Group constantly builds and improves
management system, establishes risk prevention management
system, implements entire control over food safety and ensures
product quality and safety. We will constantly strive for product
quality and food safety, as well as provide consumers with safe, tasty
and healthy food products.

The Group distributed its products throughout the PRC through
its extensive sales network consisting of 365 sales offices and 236
warehouses serving 47,898 wholesalers and 210,366 direct retailers
as of 31 December 2020. This extensive sales network is a significant
contributor to the Group’s leading market position and it enables
the Group to introduce new products rapidly and effectively.

The Company was listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited in February 1996. Market capitalisation as at 31 December
2020 was US$9.6 billion. The Company is a constituent stock of
Morgan Stanley Capital International (MSCI) China Index and Hang
Seng China (Hong Kong-listed) 100 Index.

Focused on food manufacture, sales and distribution business, the
Group will continue to strengthen its logistics and sales network in
the PRC with target of becoming “The largest Group for Chinese
Instant Food & Beverage in the World".
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For the years ended 31 December

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ANREFT AREFT ARETFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’ 000 = RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000  RMB’ 000
(&E=5)
(Restated)
I 25 Revenue 67,617,835 61,978,158 60,685,645 58,953,788 55,578,849
BB R R A Profit before taxation 6,531,912 5,411,596 3,979,334 3,392,736 2,433,516
18 Taxation (1,958,228) (1,693,374) (1,250,565) (1,137,368) (1,051,453)
AE i F Profit for the year 4,573,684 3,718,222 2,728,769 2,255,368 1,382,063

JE (& 7 Profit attributable to:
RARRE Owners of the Company 4,062,263 3,330,981 2,463,321 1,819,077 1,161,699
DHR R R Non-controlling interests 511,421 387,241 265,448 436,291 220,364
KNEEHF Profit for the year 4,573,684 3,718,222 2,728,769 2,255,368 1,382,063
iz & Dividends 4,062,263 = 3,330,981 2,463,321 909,539 580,849
AR ANRES ARE7 ARES ARES
RMB cents @ RMB cents RMB cents  RMB cents  RMB cents

sl eingl Earnings per share
BEAR Basic 72.23 59.25 43.85 32.45 20.73
B Diluted 72.15 59.20 43.77 3242 20.73
EemEER 03
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As at 31 December
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ABMFL | AREFT ANREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 = RMB 000  RMB'000  RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
(BE5)
(Restated)
REEFEmE Investment properties 1,771,700 1,771,500 1,119,000 1,106,000 1,060,000
mE - BREREE Property, plant and equipment 21,934,571 23,013,991 24,927,630 28,014,779 32,556,784
EREEE Right-of-use assets 3,804,456 4,025,124 — — —
THBAEE Prepaid lease payments — — 3,570,367 3,730,767 3,932,435
BN AR Interest in an associate 94,802 139,537 127,725 120,568 160,538
AENAER Interest in joint venture 627,031 889,065 698,743 660,691 676,408
BVEE Intangible assets 165,668 183,409 186,458 162,936 179,179
HindenehaeE Other non-current assets 4,431,860 2,499,236 1,465,275 1,362,410 917,910
FRBEE (BF) Net current asset (liabilities) 1,629,302 (2,869,623)  (2,977,064)  (5038,644)  (6,670,267)
FRBARE Non-current liabilities (9,720,007) (6,606,132)  (5,505,703)  (7,825,463)  (8,712,408)
FEE Net assets 24,739,383 23,046,107 23,612,431 22,294,044 24,100,579
BATIRAR Issued capital 235,422 235,401 235,204 235,053 234,767
[t Reserves 20,877,302 | 19,343,173 19,418272 18,177,026 17,888,773
DHRE R Non-controlling interests 3,626,659 3,467,533 3,958,955 3,881,965 5,977,039
RRERBE Total equity 24,739,383 23,046,107 23,612,431 22,294,044 24,100,579
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PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL REVENUE BY SEGMENT

ARBEET
RMB'M

80,000 —

70,000 [
58,954

60,686

< 55'579 I I I

61,978

BHAE%

100

67,618

80 |-
60|
40 |-
20 |-

W 5EE

Noodles

B &2

Beverages

[ At
Others

2016 2017

EEEANE

GROUP GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

2018

2019

2020

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

BERBNE
GROUP PROFIT MARGIN BY SEGMENT

31.88

30.86
30
20
10

BAL%
50 —
40 |
31.27 2941
30 | i
20 |
10
0
2016 2017
BRBL R B AR A 2

EBIT MARGIN

2018

2019

BOE%
50

40
33.17

2020

(414

€T°0E
967

1062

FEE

Noodles

R A A
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

b4 W 2020
[ 2019
W 2018
W 2017
11 2016

9T'le

m

Beverages

2016 2017

2018

2019

ARBEET
RMB'M

4,000

3,000

9.19
8.53

gl

607 668 2,000
6 4588
4 1,000
2
0 0

2,463
1,819

1,162

2016 2017 2018

4,062
3,331 I
2019 2020
E@mEEr 05

2020 Annual Report 4 #§



06

Sales Network

&R Shenyang
pr—
¥BJN Zhengzhou
i G
& Chongqing #M Hangzhou
l /
. .
7
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FEEM KiE M = e BE HiZ AR Hith &st
Production Centre Tianjin  Hangzhou Guangzhou Shenyang Chongging  Wuhan Xian  Other Centres  Total
B EEER . "
e W W W W W W W
ah O o » » > » »
s @ & & € &€ &€ & 7
Beverage Business
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
2 g2 ¥E yE yE
Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
& EFT Sales Office 598 369 369 371 365
72 & Warehouse 69 92 108 182 236
#Z 847 Wholesale 33,653 35,163 28,415 36,186 47,898
E%ZER Direct Retailer 116,222 129,449 140,779 185,789 210,366
BT A% Employee 65,182 56,995 54,210 58,182 60,654
4 E# Production Line 719 676 613 604 584
4 EEH Production Centre 126 118 103 88 86
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In spite of the Novel Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19) outbreak in
the beginning of 2020, our Group has pressed ahead by continually
executing the business strategy of “Consolidate, Reform and Develop”.
With the joint efforts from each and every one of our colleagues, our
Group managed to realize a smooth and orderly transformation and
upgrading, and thus surviving a tough year. We are particularly grateful
for the support and help from the government, the community, our
partners and customers, and also greatly appreciate the contributions of
our colleagues who went to the front line and played an important part
in the fight against the COVID-19 pandemic.

Currently, traditional forms of food and beverage industry are challenged
and reshaped by the rampant global pandemic, rapidly-changing society
and swiftly-iterating technologies. Under such a circumstance, Master
Kong “Conforms to the industry trend” to carry out innovations while
proactively exploring its positioning in the new era. We have embraced
new technologies, promoted digital transformation, and built agile
management to maintain our competitive edges. Apart from remaining
true to the original aspiration of “Promoting Chinese Food & Beverage
Culture”, our Group will keep on taking “Catering to Consumer Needs”
as the first priority and offering delicious and innovative products under
the "Quality First” principle, so that public demand for a better life
can be met. In addition, we are well determined to “Fulfill Corporate
Social Responsibility” and have been trying the utmost to pay back to
the society by striving for higher scores on Environmental, Social, and
Corporate Governance ratings.

| sincerely hope that Master Kong will forge ahead hand in hand
with all the customers, employees, partners and shareholders, and
remain focused and pragmatic in the pursuit of leading the industry
in “sustainable development”, thus ultimately building itself as a
comprehensive “Chinese Ethical Brand” of food and beverage with
international influence.

| would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude
to all fellow members of the Board, the management team, employees
and customers for their support over the years.

Wei Hong-Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, China
22 March, 2021 e
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Group Structure
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Note: This chart illustrates TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.'s
direct or indirect proportion of ownership interest of its Principal Subsidiaries.
* represents direct translation of registered name in Chinese.

° BREABE(PEDKREBRRAR

Formerly known as PepsiCo Investment (China) Ltd.
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The year 2020 was an extraordinary one. Over the past year, China
managed to contain the coronavirus pandemic within a short period
of time and its economy gradually recovered and further developed,
standing out as the only major economy worldwide to achieve positive
growth. Despite such remarkable achievements, it was also undeniable
that the year 2020 witnessed the blocked global supply chain, surging
commodities prices, and shrinking international trade due to the
rampant spread of the COVID-19 pandemic. The overall economic
environment, under such a complicated and serious circumstance, was
posed great pressures and challenges to.

Yet the instant noodle industry in the overall market demonstrated
strong and vigorous development momentum when customers’
needs for instant noodles increased sharply in the first half of 2020.
It was not until the second half of 2020 that the sales of the instant
noodle business returned to a normal level and the beverage segment
rejuvenated after a slight decline in the first half of 2020. The new
normal in the post-COVID-19 era accelerated the transition and
restructuring of the business environment, manifested by increasing
household consumption needs, the rise of 020 and community group
buying, the emerging of consumption polarization and the like. All these

changes presented both opportunities and challenges for the Group.

10 EMEZERERAA
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In 2020, the Group, by executing the business strategy of “Consolidate,
Reform and Develop”, further developed the mass consumer markets,
laid out the high-end markets, and explored deeper into the markets in
new rural areas. To fit the diversified needs of customers and clients, the
Group sped up the digital transformation process as well as optimized
the new retail business with further enhanced system construction.

The Group's total revenue in 2020 reached RMB 67.618 billion, a
year-on-year increase of 9.10%. Specifically, revenue from the instant
noodles business increased by 16.64% and the beverage segment
by 4.72% year on year. The gross profit margin of 2020 climbed to
33.17%, up by 1.29 percentage points compared with that of 2019.
The ratio of distribution costs to revenue decreased by 0.46 percentage
points to 20.93% year on year. EBITDA rose by 9.59% to RMB 9.361
billion year on year. Thanks to the growth in sales, expansion in gross
profit margin and the reduction in distribution costs ratio, the profit
attributable to shareholders of the Company increased by 21.95% to
RMB 4.062 billion and basic earnings per share increased by RMB 12.98
cents to RMB 72.23 cents.

Instant Noodles Business

As shown in the Nielsen’s data, the sales volume of overall instant
noodles market in 2020 grew by 0.1% year on year, with a year-on-year
increase of 4.7% in sales value. Over the past year, Master Kong held
a market share of 43.7% and 46.3% respectively in sales volume and
sales value, both registering continual growth and ranking first in the
market.

2020 recorded a year-on-year increase of 16.64% in the Group's
revenue from instant noodles business to RMB 29.510 billion, which
made up 43.64% of the total revenue. Due to product upgrading
and production optimization, gross profit margin of instant noodles
business stood at 29.30%, up by 0.29 percentage points year on year.
The profit attributable to shareholders of the Company in the instant
noodles business increased by 24.25% to RMB 2.733 billion as a result
of the growth in revenue and expansion in profit margin, as well as the
reduction in distribution costs ratio year on year.

B EER
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77 | Management Discussion and Analysis

Despite the COVID-19 outbreak in the Spring Festival, the instant
noodles business timely resumed production and applied big data to
coordinate its production and sales, logistics service and the supply of
commodities. Meanwhile, the segment prioritized public needs and
launched products with various flavors, sizes and prices. The growing
household consumption needs, as a new normal in the post-COVID-19
era, brought about the prosperity of online business. Against this
background, the instant noodles business focused on promoting creative
cuisines and encouraging household consumption to both influence and
satisfy consumers’ needs. Besides, the segment managed to enhance
its brand image of a healthy products provider by continually advancing
cooperation with China Aerospace Foundation and the Winter Sports
Management Center of the General Administration of Sport of China
and by enforcing strict food safety standards together with organizing
online food safety science popularization activities.

Substantial sales growth in the instant noodles business was ensured
across all channels. Amid the COVID-19, the segment gave priority to
the supply of products for e-commerce platforms and other modern
channels so that products could reach the consumers in the shortest
possible time. Significance was attached to strengthening inventory
management and improving delivery efficiency based on system tools
for win-win cooperation with distributors of all channels.

The instant noodles business spared no efforts to meet market needs by
updating its supply chain on the premise of ensuring product quality and
food safety. In addition, the segment continued to optimize production
distribution and improve supply chain efficiency through a series of
measures including upgrading automation, saving energy and reducing

consumption.

12 EMEZRERAA
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High-priced and Premium Noodles

High-priced and premium noodles represented Master Kong's flagship
products, which met customers’ needs with multi-flavors and multi-
sizes. Since the outbreak of COVID-19, the instant noodles business has
ensured the supply of these core products at a fastest pace and later
managed to offer products with various flavors and sizes in the stably
supplied market to satisfy the diverse needs of consumers. Due to the
increasing household consumption needs and public’s preference to
cost-effective products during the COVID-19, the sales of packet and
large-sized products particularly achieved considerable growth.

The instant noodles business made constant efforts to inject more vigor
into its brand. “Roasted Beef Noodles”, as its most well-known brand
leading the market, cooperated with the hottest online debate variety
show “I CAN | BB” to establish closer communications with the younger
groups, which not only reflected Master Kong's call for “Dream Big and
Start Small” but also boosted its sales growth. In addition, the segment
also strengthened a series of IP cooperation to make Master Kong a
well-received name among young consumers, such as “Old Altar Pickled
Beef Noodles” with Kung Fu Panda, “Hot Beef Noodles” with Game for
Peace and “Rattan Pepper Beef Noodles” with Douro Mainland.

The instant noodles business launched its new product “Handmade
Noodle”, the upgraded edition of “Dried Noodle” and packet instant
noodles in new sizes in May, 2020, as a move to fit the needs for
household consumption scenarios and for quality from the new
generation and the middle class. The cooked “Handmade Noodle"” series
featured chewy texture and tasty broth. The “Dried Noodle” series,
apart from an innovation in the more consumer-friendly water filters,
improved the noodle bodies, seasonings and packages and promoted
packet noodles, which both better satisfied household consumption
needs and led to an upgrade in the dried noodles market.
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The “Soup Chef” series boasted four kinds of high-end flavorful broths,
each serving as a best representative of Chinese-style, Japanese-style
and Hong-Kong-style cuisines. Therefore, customers’ needs for high-
quality soups were met. To offer instant noodles with more sizes, the
segment launched the “Soup Chef Cup Noodles” and the “Soup Chef
Packet Noodles”. The segment innovatively placed a container for
the noodles in each packet, which made the packaging much more
creative and eye-catching. Moreover, digital tools were employed to
help handing out free samples to customers for their feedback at retail
stores. By doing so, an increasing number of consumer groups including
the middle class, white-collar workers, and students were reached and
the sales of the series remained on the rise.

Super-premium Noodles

To cope with the upgraded consumption needs of the middle class, the
instant noodles business launched the “Express Chef's Noodles” series,
whose tastes were almost the same as those in noodle shops. Therefore,
the “Express Chef’s Noodles” became a first choice for customers
who had a demand for both speed and taste, and also fitted different
consumption scenarios with three major genres of products: “Express
Cooked Noodles”, “Express Bowl Noodles” and “Express Self-heating
Noodle”. To be more specific, the family pack of “Express Cooked
Noodles” perfectly suited the household needs and was so well-received
that its sales value jumped to a record high of more than a million
yuan over one night. “Express Bowl Noodles” was specifically designed
for the consumption scenario of work resumption. While in terms of
“Express Self-heating Noodles”, it was in line with the trend of self-
heating food market and satisfied the need of dining out, thus reporting

pretty high sales volume.
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Mid-priced Noodles/Snack Noodles

Facing the increasingly polarized consumption trend after the
COVID-19, the instant noodles business resorted to mid-priced products
to meet the need for cost-effectiveness among consumers in township
and rural areas. By upgrading the packaging of “Jinshuang Ramen”
and “Super Fumanduo” and also by launching the large-sized product
“50% Plus Hunger-feed”, the Group increased sales and gained more
market shares in the segmented markets of mid-priced and large-sized
instant noodles. The snack noodles “Flavored and Crunchy” attracted
a large number of students-based consumer groups owing to its new
packaging after IP cooperation with “Luo Tianyi”, the debut of new-
flavored products such as “Chicken Broth Snack Noodles” and “Hot &
Spicy Crab Snack Noodles” and social media marketing.

Beverage Business

Nielsen's data suggested that the sales volume and sales value of
China'’s beverage industry in 2020 declined 6.2% and 7.1% respectively
year on year. In terms of sales volume, Master Kong had the largest
market share of 43.6% in ready-to-drink (RTD) tea segment (including
milk tea), a second largest market share of 17.3% in juice segment, a
market share of 5.7% in bottled water segment and a second largest
market share of 12.0% in RTD coffee segment. According to data from
a third party research company, the sales volume of Pepsi’s carbonated
soft drinks occupied the second place in the market with a proportion

of 33.4%, up by 0.5 percentage points.
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In 2020, the overall revenue of the Group from the beverage business
reached RMB 37.280 billion, a year-on-year increase of 4.72%, which
accounted for 55.13% of the Group's total revenue. During the
period, the gross profit margin of the beverage business increased by
2.25 percentage points to 35.94%, mainly due to the product-mix
optimizing and product upgrading, along with the declining prices of
some raw materials. Thanks to the increased gross profit margin, the
reduction of other operational costs and the decreasing proportion of
minority shareholders’ equity, the profit attributable to shareholders of
the Company for beverage business reached RMB 1.594 billion, up by
68.51% year on year.

During the COVID-19, the beverage business continued to focus
on core categories and developed new retail channels. In particular,
the segment stressed on interacting with consumers through online
channels as consumers’ mobility was significantly restricted then.
Steady sales growth resumed as the coronavirus tension eased later.
In addition to laying high emphasis on the core products, the business
continued to adjust its product-mix and launched new categories of
premium products to meet the upgraded needs for nutrition and health
amidst the COVID-19. Concentrated efforts were also directed at the
establishment of multiple channels by tapping into the indoor consumer
market, developing catering channels and offering home delivery
service. Moreover, the segment expanded its physical store network
in core cites as well as the scope of service to simplify the channel
system. As to lower-tier cities, the focus was placed on facilitating
win-win partnerships with distributors. In order to build an intelligent
manufacturing system and logistics system and to enhance supply
chain efficiency, the beverage business continually optimized the layout
of production capacity, appropriately released household products
with varying sizes, and increased capital expenditure on outdoor
consumption.
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RTD Tea

The RTD tea segment focused on the core products to maintain its
competitive edges and launched products with various flavors and sizes
to fit diverse consumer needs, thus ensuring Master Kong's leading
position in the RTD tea market. By conducting the “One QR Code One
Bottle” campaign and strengthening the marketing of music and sports
scenarios, the “Master Kong Ice Tea” series became synonymous with
youth and fashion and denoted a brand concept of “Enjoying Ice and
Fun” together with its spokesperson Kris Wu. The “Jasmine” series built
a fragrant and refreshing brand image resembling a jasmine through a
microfilm “Flowers and Tea Made for Each Other”, cast by Li Xian and
Chun Xia. With this microfilm, Master Kong's brand story was publicized
and a growing number of younger groups were attracted. Via selecting
Jackson Yee as the spokesperson and advancing cooperation with the
hottest IPs, the “Green Tea” series continued to enhance its brand
image of “Fresh, Vigorous and Rich in Tea Polyphenol” and capitalized
on the fan economy to stimulate sales growth. The newly-launched
“Master Kong Oolong Tea”, by strengthening an aromatic and palateful
brand image and increasingly advertising on the selling points of health
and low sugar, fittingly fed the thirst for health of the new generation
of urban consumers. The upgraded high-end “Sugar-free Tea” series,
represented by “Sugar-free Green Tea” and “Sugar-free Jasmine Tea”,
catered to the middle class’s needs for health and exquisiteness by
making cold brew sugar-free tea with no added artificial flavor.
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Carbonated Soft Drinks

To adapt to the stay-at-home economy and consumers’ growing needs
for health amid COVID-19, the Pepsi bottled carbonated soft drink
segment deepened efforts to enhance its brand image by offering multi-
sizes and multi-flavors products that satisfied various consumption
scenarios. In addition, the segment continued to diversify its Zero-Sugar
series to increase overall sales value. It continued to develop “Pepsi
Concept Store” and energized its brand through integrating diverse
cultures and trendy items. In the first quarter, the segment kicked off its
year-round brand marketing by launching “Pepsi 2020 See How Much
| Love It” campaign. In the second quarter, the first traditional Chinese
style product “Pepsi Osmanthus Flavor” was launched and attracted
public attention, which resulted in ever-increasing sales and popularity.
In the third quarter, the segment promoted the “Celebrate Together
with Pepsi” activity to satisfy consumers’ needs for catering and
food delivery service, where a series of actions were taken, including
building a platform for the meal complement market, upgrading its
020 model and enhancing in-depth cooperation with major clients and
independent food and beverage outlets. When it came to the fourth
quarter, the segment initiated a Chinese-New-Year-themed campaign
of “Drink Pepsi to Bring Happiness Home". Committed to the brand
attitude of “Intense Taste No Sugar, Go All in for What You Love”,

"o

the Zero-Sugar series rolled out “Pepsi Lime"”, “Pepsi Mini” and “Pepsi
Golden Ox Limited” apart from Pepsi of original and raspberry flavors,
achieving sustained increase in sales. “Mirinda” undertook exclusive title
sponsorship for Mango TV's online variety show “Great Escape Season
2". At the same time, various activities themed on “Great Escape” were
carried out to increase consumers’ loyalty to the brand, including the
offline publicity activity “The Great Fruit Explodes after Having a Sip”
and QR code promotion activity “100% Win Room Escape Related
Gifts”. Besides, multi-flavors products were released to add more vitality
and fun to its brand image. The first mix-flavored juice “Passion Fruit
& Pineapple Mix Flavor”, upon its launch, took off among the public
for its remarkable packaging design and diverse flavors. The “7-Up”
series carried out annual marketing activities based on the theme of
“Feels Good to Be You” and upgraded the packaging of FIDO DIDO
into all sizes, among which the mini cans were released to fit specific
consumption scenarios. The “7-Up"” series continued to promote
its mixing-style drink “7-Up Mixology” together with “7-Up Moji7o
Grapefruit Flavor” to attract young consumers.
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Juices

In 2020, the leading position of Chinese juice drinks was further
consolidated and the sale of Western-style juices continued to grow. As
consumption in food and beverage recovered, the segment managed
to expand relevant consumption scenarios through the multi-sizes and
multi-flavors strategy and made it to develop juices of Chinese and
Western styles yet underlying traditional Chinese food culture. The
“Rock Candy Pear” series remained to be characterized by a therapeutic
brand image of constant moisture provider. Moreover, its consumption
scenarios, mainly for smoothing and moistening the throat, were
also elaborated through cooperating with prestigious musicians. The
“Traditional Drink Sweet-Sour Plum Juice” integrated modern juice-
making process into Chinese classic drink making. With distinguished
hosts as its spokespersons, its effects of quenching thirst and cleansing
palate were magnified, which bolstered strong sales growth. The
“Juice Master”, a well-received category of the Western-style “Master
Kong Juices”, stepped up comprehensive upgrading and brand
marketing, and strove to build an optimistic and joyful brand image. In
its promotion, the strategy of multi-sizes was adopted to boost sales
and consumers were encouraged to enjoy drinking it under various
consumption scenarios. “NutriLight Fruits”, based on its main flavor
of “honey and citron”, went with other flavored products including
“Mango Flavor Drink” and “Peach Flavor Drink” and collaborated with
acclaimed TV stars through new media channels to draw the attention
of young consumer groups. The “Tropicana 100% " series actively
seized the 100% normal temperature market and built brand awareness
among customers by means of both product placement in TV series and
movies with Al technology and intensive recommendations on social
media. The “Tropicana” series stuck to the diluted juice market and
promoted its feature of mixed juice through the “Happy Mixed Fruit
Brothers” activity. In the meanwhile, scenario-based education was
implemented on the 020 platform of the meal compliment market in
collaboration with major clients to attract young consumers.
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Bottled Water

The bottled water segment in 2020 continued to satisfy different
consumers’ needs with products of various sizes and prices. In addition,
it placed a high emphasis on cultivating consumers’ indoor drinking
habits, preferentially offering large packages to the market, exploring
new channels concerning food and beverage business and stimulating
more household consumption demands. The economical product
“Master Kong Bottled Drinking Water”, with the world-renowned
volleyball player and coach Lang Ping as the spokesperson, conveyed a
brand image of “The Best Choice for Reassurance and Health” and thus
established itself as a national brand featuring affordable prices. In terms
of the mid-priced ones, the newly-released “Drink Boiled Water” built
a trustworthy brand image by offering sweet, mild and well-absorbed
water, which was sterilized at an ultra-high temperature of 135° C,
and went popular in the market soon after its launch with a target at
young consumers. Besides, the high-end water “Han Yang Quan” was
relaunched with an upgraded packaging and managed to strengthen
its positioning of “Being Natural, Precious, and Nutritious”. The series
focused on core cities and built a brand image of high-end products
that met the middle class's demands for mineral water. Notably, the
4.5-liter package of bottled mineral water reported ultra-high-speed

sales growth.
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Coffee Drinks/Functional Drinks/Probiotics

In the market of RTD coffee, the Group attached great importance to
the medium and high-priced coffee and registered sales growth after
adapting to the upgraded consumption needs and consumers’ pursuit to
health during the COVID-19 pandemic. The “Bernachon Coffee” series
focused on the markets of the Yangtze River Delta, the Pearl River Delta
and other core cities represented by Beijing and enhanced its popularity
through modern channels as well as online and offline marketing. In
terms of the high-priced RTD coffee market, through a more diversified
and comprehensive product line, the “Starbucks RTD Coffee at Room-
temperature” series upgraded their flavors and packaging to offer
better consumption experience to consumers, leading to increasingly
higher market share.

The “"Wei Chuan Ambient Probiotics Drink” series gained a strong
foothold in the Yangtze River Delta. By responding to consumers’ needs
for nutrition and health as well as extending collaborations with the
catering and supermarket industries, the product not only successfully
increased its popularity, but also facilitated sales growth. The
lactobacillus beverage “Xiao Lao Duo Duo” focused on palate cleansing
and hydrating while dining or under indoor scenarios, and established a
fresh, fat-free and healthy product image, which satisfied the needs of
the new generation of urban and young consumers.

“Gatorade”, a functional drink, promoted its brand theme of “Every
Drop of Sweat Counts” in 2020 through cooperating with ordinary
sports enthusiasts. By doing so, the brand got closer with sports
enthusiasts and managed to offer specialized sports drinks to general
consumers. The fire-new “Workout at Home" online scenario marketing
approach was put forward when outdoor sports were impacted
during the pandemic. Later, as the pandemic was well under control
across China and it became normal to conduct sports activities, QR
code promotion activities such as “Open Caps for Gifts” and “Open
Boxes for Gifts” were carried out far and wide to drive sales growth as
well as to reward the Group’s loyal consumers. Moreover, the Group
also focused on enhancing its brand awareness in sports venues via
sponsoring professional sports events in cooperation with national
sports associations, and reaching more sports lovers under the influence
of sports and fitness KOLs in hopes that Master Kong's brand image as
a leading sports drink provider would be strengthened effectively.
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The Group, with “Cash Is King” as its long-held overall strategy, has
been characterized by proficient control of capital expenditures and
effective promotion of asset-light and asset activation, which would
generate stable net cash inflows. During 2020, the net cash inflow
from the Group’s operating activities amounted to RMB 8.554 billion,
and the net cash outflow from investing activities reached RMB 2.889
billion. Over the past years, the Group promoted asset revitalization and
disposal of non-core businesses. A net cash inflow of RMB 177 million
was recorded in the Group through selling entire or partial equity of
two subsidiaries to an independent third party and to a connected party
respectively.

The Group continued to maintain a sound financial structure through
effective control on the balances of trade receivables, trade payables,
bank balances and cash as well as inventories. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group's total cash and bank balances arrived at RMB 21.431 billion,
an increase of RMB 4.000 billion compared with that of 31 December
2019, featuring abundant cash in hand. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group's long-term time deposits amounted at RMB2.435 billion,
increased by RMB1.710 billion compared with that of 31 December
2019, as to earn interest income with a better return rate. The Group'’s
interest-bearing borrowings reached RMB 13.697 billion, a growth of
RMB 1.322 billion from 31 December 2019 to 31 December 2020.
Net cash totaled RMB 7.735 billion increased by RMB 2.678 billion
compared with that of 31 December 2019. On 24 September 2020,
the Company issued notes with an aggregate principal amount of
USD 500 million (the “US Notes”). The issue price of the US Notes was
99.466% of the principal amount. The US Notes will bear interest from
and including 24 September 2020 at the rate of 1.625% per annum,
payable semi-annually in arrears on 24 March and 24 September of
each year, beginning on March 24, 2021. The US Notes will be matured
on 24 September 2025. The US Notes is an unsecured debt of the
Company. The primary objective for the Group to issue the overseas
US Notes was to refinance certain existing indebtedness and for other
general corporate use. The Group's proportion of the total borrowings
denominated in foreign currencies and Renminbi, at the end of 2020,
reported a change from 76% against 24% at the end of 2019 to 89%
against 11%. And the proportion between the Group's long-term
borrowings and short-term borrowings reached 57% against 43%,
compared with 40% against 60% at the end of 2019.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s total assets and total liabilities
reached RMB 61.531 billion and RMB 36.792 billion respectively,
up by RMB 3.572 billion and RMB 1.878 billion respectively from 31
December 2019. Meanwhile, the debt ratio of the Group decreased by
0.45 percentage points to 59.79% compared with that of 31 December
2019. The gearing ratio dropped from -25.82% as of 31 December
2019 to -36.63% as of 31 December 2020.

During 2020, the exchange rate of US dollars against Renminbi fell
by 6.59%. This fluctuation resulted in the generation of realized and
unrealized exchange gain, amounting to RMB 29.159 million in the
Group's income statement.

B th & Financial Ratio

2020 F 2019%F
12A31H 12A31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
K on B8 Finished goods turnover 17.73 Days/H 16.61 Days,” H
JFE LA B K ) 4 Trade receivables turnover 8.99 Days, A 9.97 Days/ H
VEAIRES Current ratio 1.06 Times, & 0.90 Times,/ 5
BEHR(EBEHEENEEE) Debtratio (Total liabilities to total assets) 59.79% 60.24%

FEEEEALRCFEEMRY  Gearing ratio (Net debt to equity
AN B R e tE 2 ) attributable to owners of the Company) -36.63% -25.82%
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The Group had 60,654 employees as of 31 December, 2020. In the
year of 2020, the Group, in line with the guiding principle of “All for
Business and Growth”, continued to advance organizational reform with
a fundamental strategy of pushing businesses forward, and optimize
its staffing structure by enhancing its organizational efficiency. In the
meantime, the Group managed to plan the distribution of strategic
talents, streamline operational processes, digitize human resources and
prepare for the establishment of the management training center, thus
providing talent support for the Group to realize its strategic objectives.
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With the comprehensive implementation of payroll outsourcing strategy,
human resources in the Group have been gradually liberated from
some routine administrative work and were able to focus more on HR
strategies and value-added services. Considering its management and
business needs, the Group sped up the transformation of digital human
resources by working on HR program design, process re-engineering,
technology application and data analysis.

In addition, the Group continued to improve its organizational
competence by optimizing the talent structure and talent efficiency. To
sustain its long-term talent advantages, the Group made constant efforts
to strengthen talent echelon building from retails to headquarters, and
deepen the management of the reserve of talents. Also, the Group
promoted the development and recruitment of domestic talents and
formulated detailed succession plans to ensure a smooth handover
process within the Group.

Taking advantage of its recognition and achievements accumulated over
the past two decades, the Group, as a resolute move to implement the
spirit of the 19th CPC National Congress on “Improving the System of
Vocational Education and Training, and Promoting Integration between
Industry and Education and Cooperation between Enterprises and
Colleges”, explored a model that could “Promote Integration of Industry
and Education and Cultivate Talents through Cooperation between
Schools and Enterprises” in collaboration with 32 higher education
institutions and 51 vocational schools nationwide. The research focuses
were placed on food safety, production processes and technologies,
and application development. Through these collaborations, Master
Kong managed to support the innovations of universities and the
industrialization of core technologies. While in terms of vocational
education, the Group continued to seek new ideas and approaches to
students training and employment for both schools and enterprises, and
established a long-term education mechanism in the charge of two main
parties, which was selected in the third batch of pilot projects of modern
apprenticeship system by the Ministry of Education. Moreover, the
Group was awarded as an Enterprise Integrating Industry and Education
in Liaoning Province and a Demonstration Enterprise Integrating Industry
and Vocational Education in Jiangsu Province.
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The Group attached great importance to conducting strategic
cooperation with both domestic and foreign universities, with an
aim to cultivate future entrepreneurial talents for China and promote
international communications. Domestically, the Group continued to
support the Digital Healthcare Research Project of Peking University
Health Science Center, and remained committed to providing better
healthcare services to more Chinese families. In addition, the Group
joined hands with the School of Agriculture and Biology of Shanghai
Jiaotong University on food safety and food technology to carry out
scientific research and set up research groups to foster talents.

Internationally, the Group, following the release of the new 2027-2030
Master Kong-Waseda University Strategic Cooperation Agreement
Plan, continued to focus on talent development and employee training,
and learned from Japan in depth for its craftsmanship, management
methods and production details. Thanks to Master Kong's cooperation
with Hasso Plattner Institute of Design at Stanford University, the “Design
Thinking and Innovation Workshop” was launched to provide training
in innovation and thinking for cross-functional employees. Besides,
the Group initiated a big data co-construction project in collaboration
with the Wharton School to draw on its advanced ideas and practices
in statistics and data analysis, helped the Wharton School to establish
cooperative relations with Chinese e-commerce platforms such as JD,
and encouraged foreign students to know more about China through
organizing data competitions.

The Group serves as a summer social practice base for the Yuanpei
College of Peking University. In 2020, the Second Summer Social
Practice Team, comprising 50 students and faculties and led by the
Dean, visited the Group’s retail markets, the IRD Center and the Taste
Pavilion, and communicated with the executives and frontline business
representatives, from which they got to know the challenges and
opportunities facing traditional and new retailing. Notably, the “Social
Practice Team to Master Kong” in the Yuanpei College has won school-
level rewards for two consecutive years. Besides, in 2020, the “Master
Kong Hall (Kang-De-Ting)” funded by the Group, was opened and put
into use at the university.
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Overall business environment in 2021 is expected to be full of
opportunities and challenges. The steady recovery and growth of
China economy, together with diversified needs of consumers, offered
great opportunities for the Group to better serve our consumers.
While we will be inevitably faced with the challenges and risks from
the uncertainties brough by global pandemic and the fluctuation of
international commodity prices.

Looking ahead, the Group, by adhering to its “Consolidate, Reform and
Develop” strategy, will continue to strengthen its competitive edges in
brand, channels and products in 2021. Moreover, the Group will make
the most of its competitive advantages to further serve the needs for a
better life of middle class, as well as those consumers in township and
rural areas.

With the mission of “Promoting Chinese Food & Beverage Culture” and
an aim to stand firm in China’s food and beverage markets, the Group
will continue to follow the concept of “Cash Is King” for sustainable
operation. Building win-win partnerships through client service as
cornerstone for success, the Group will make constant efforts to
sustainable development, thus building itself as a Chinese Ethical Brand

trustworthy for the government, partners and consumers.
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This report aims to formulate the performance of Tingyi (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. (“Master Kong”, “the Company” or “We")
in environmental, social and governance (the “ESG") in 2020 for
readers. For information regarding the governance section, please
refer to the Corporate Governance Report as incorporated in this
annual report.

Sustainability Concept of Master Kong

Master Kong shoulders the mission of “Promoting Chinese
Food & Beverage Culture”, takes the corporate vision of “Being
the Most Respected Food & Beverage Company” and has
always committed to the principle of “Sustainable Operation,
Contribution to Society”. Master Kong maintains close and
mutual communications with stakeholders, actively fulfills its
social responsibilities. We continue to explore and improves its
performance in ESG. The Company dedicates to sharing corporate
values with stakeholders, enhancing social welfare and enjoying
“Life + Delicacy” with stakeholders. Master Kong believes that
“a good development is sustainable development”. In 2020, in
combination with the State’s “New Development Concept” and
the “14th Five-Year Plan”, we took “Healthy China”, “Food
Safety” and “Sustainable Development” as our annual work
focus, and conducted a series of work on food safety, nutrition
and health, energy conservation and emission reduction.

We increasingly searched for the actual needs of the society,
deeply integrated the essential appeals of stakeholders with
the characteristics of the industry. Adhering to the five core
tasks of food safety development, product responsibility, energy
conservation, environmental protection and win-win partnerships,
it continued to exploit its advantages in the industry, to increase
investment, aiming to sustain its innovative contributions in
corporate sustainable development.
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BREER Food Safety Construction

ERZER  TRhEDL
EETRRER -
Remembering the food safety vision,

faithful to the original corporate values,
looking forward to the development of the

90

industry

KEEE
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B BEIRIR Advocating Energy
Conservation and Environmental

Protection

BEEELIRIR - BREEER  BR
AR -

Advocating energy conservation and
environmental protection, striving for
green development, benefiting

today and tomorrow

ZEEF K Corporate
Contribution

FPNERARE - HREEEHIE
ST RIEIEHE

Small actions ending up as a great
blessing, spreading love, holding
onto the national unity

: Bl fR 4=
SUSTAINABLE OPERATION
CONTRIBUTION TO SOCIETY
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Master Kong was selected as an excellent business case in A
Survey Report on Business and Sustainability in China issued by
UNDP

In July 2020, Master Kong, with its outstanding performance in
promoting sustainable development and ESG, stood out among nearly
100 invited companies (including foreign companies in China), and
was selected as an excellent business case in Private Sector Awareness
of the Sustainable Development Goals — A Survey Report on Business
and Sustainability in China issued by The United Nations Development
Programme (UNDP).
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Organizational Framework and Actions of ESG

The Board of Directors of the Company is generally responsible
for the overall organization and information disclosure in
relation to ESG. In 2020, Master Kong CSR Committee (the
“Committee”) maintained its good operation. On the basis of
clear CSR strategies and development directions, the Committee
guided work implementation and performance evaluation, and
regularly conducted reviews and decision-making on work goals,
reports and disclosures, major relevant events, and reported
ESG work progress to the Board of Directors. Meanwhile, the
Company gradually promoted the CSR management model of
“business independence”, further leveraged the advantages of
all businesses, promoted pertinence and implementation in CSR
management, continued its efforts to enforce the concept of
“Sustainable Operation, Contribution to Society”.

Identify and Response to Environmental and Social Risks

Master Kong's daily risk management covers ESG-related risks.
In 2020, we further identified and sorted out major ESG-related
risks, and monitored and responded to these risks.
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Risk Type and Description Risk Response Relevant Sections

RRER
Food Safety Risks
e EmiHRmZrMEMELE BEREmZIEEHS  KANHESHRLY BIRLY EBERE &

KEERAERE B RERREHAE - ZIBERR - FIFEE]
The product has food safety Implementing strict food safety Adhering to food safety,
issues that have a negative management and control mechanisms, focusing on nutrition, and
impact on business operations. vigorously promoting food safety enjoying “Life + Delicacy”

construction, and facilitating cooperation
in food safety.

BB ER

Environmental Risks

o AEBEPHBARBSAFMNM BREGISRMIN REFARMES KERE BII/RE B

TELERE IKERERETIE - BREBERER ZFIBERR - FHLE]
o HMNEARZERNMBEBBERBEM RERBE HEHEREE - EYERIE  Upholding green
b ISP N Bt - BRI RERHLESE o development and practices
o MIHKBEMEEREFEEIE  Strictly controlling pollutant emissions, making our ways, we
Ko seriously carrying out energy and enjoy “Life + Delicacy”.
o Environmental pollution during water conservation projects and plastic
the production process that affects reduction work, identifying relevant
business operations; laws and regulations and policy trends,
o Increased operating costs due to promoting transformation towards low-
stricter laws, regulations and related carbon, responding to climate change,
policies; and establishing a sustainable supply
o Production interruptions and asset chain.
losses due to extreme weather
conditions.
REEZZEME

Health and Safety Risks

s HEREBEARZR2HESZTMMFESL ITERRLZINIERE  ETLX2E HiEN  BEE8 RK
XEBEERS BRHE  BHAPHRERD  EEN BIEEKRR - FHFEE]
e HIREBEBXEEMEREER BRENVIAIE  EAETH- AARE ~ XL /s8R - #
RN 2 hELE - Creating a healthy and safe working SRR - EiFEE]
o Major safety incidents, environment, conducting safety Helping with COVID-19,
affecting normal productionand  promotion and education, distributing health is a blessing,
operation of the enterprise; labor protection supplies, implementing ensuring “Life + Delicacy”
o Serious occupational health issuesor ~ the prevention and treatment of Human-oriented and
infectious diseases, affecting business ~ COVID-19 to support anti-epidemic taking culture as the soul,
operations. actions. building “Life + Delicacy”
together
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NENBrEENRREEE BN TM Stakeholder Communication and Key Issues Materiality

Assessment
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The Company actively identifies the stakeholders’ expectations
and requirements on Master Kong through various continuous
communication channels, and strives to fulfill the needs of
stakeholders’ needs while developing our business operations.
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Descriptions of Stakeholders

BEEEESN
Communication Channels
and Responses

BRRREBREE
Shareholders
and Investors

BT
Employees

BHE(EEF)
Distributors
(including
customers)

340
Suppliers

BAREEHE
Government
and Agencies

HERAR
Communities and
the Public

ER R BT #E
Universities
and Research
Institutions

HERMEETAERE  BEFRENBEARIMIEA
Domestic and overseas legitimate equity and debt
investors to Master Kong

HEAE R EXSEE R R T FRENEMEE
EHIA B

Personnel who sign a formal employment
agreement with the Company and who serve the
Company in a regular basis

AECERMEE TS mEERNBE - BFHE
Bre

Companies, stores or individual businesses that
legally distributing various branded products of
Master Kong

mEMES A EEEEDE B ERRALARSE
B3 - s EEE P

Companies, stores or individual businesses
that legally supplying production materials,
accessories and office supplies to Master Kong

Bm o B RIR - 225 MABN - BE
SEEEHRE

Food, taxation, environmental protection, safety
and other authorities; local governments; the SFC
and other regulatory agencies

HEMBRELAESFRERNRL - ERE - 8%
NE R B A AR R E N

Newspapers, TV stations, Internet companies and
other media agencies that have established legal
partnerships with Master Kong

EEEMAR AR - HEIFERARE
Local communities, the public, non profit
organizations, etc.

HAFR RN SRR RS -
%

Universities, colleges and research institutes
partnering with Master Kong

B - HIFPTEH

RERE PEFR - FFH FELE -
RS

General meetings of shareholders,
annual reports, interim reports, results
announcements, roadshows, etc.

BTIED BAEg BIFI BIFMH-
EERBTIME
Staff activities, staff congress, staff
training, staff manuals, corporate
publications, etc.

EREE - 11X¥AN  ZRBERAEER
BF

Product exhibitions, industry survies,
customer service hotlines and satisfaction
survies, etc.

ARRBRIZEZE  BRES(EAF - ZRERD
==

Open bidding meetings, strategic
cooperation negotiations, exchanges and
visits, etc.

BEER  AXAER  BEAT  EERE
=

Field visits, official correspondences, policy
implementation, information disclosure,
etc.

EgET#  XEEE  FEeEBEHE
Business interviews, cultural promotion,
featured activities, etc.

HEES - BIXEEEE - Awmas - it
BEEIHE

Community activities, employee volunteer
activities, public welfare activities, social
cause support, etc.

ERESHE  BTEE g 2R
MR A (IR B &

Recruitment presentations, training
programs, seminars, academic exchanges
and cooperative research projects

REEEZER 33
2020 Annual Report 4 #§



RE - @ REARE | Environmental, Social and Governance Report

= High

SMNEBRTAE CHFIRAEB T MEZ )

External assessment (materiality to stakeholders)
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MEPEEE (BEBHZE)

Internal assessment (impact on the business)

= High

HELP WITH COVID-19, HEALTH IS A BLESSING,
ENSURING “LIFE + DELICACY"

In early 2020, COVID-19 epidemic spread across nationwide.
Master Kong responded quickly, resumed work and production
in an active and orderly manner, and donated funds and
materials proactively demonstrating corporate responsibility
and commitment with practical actions. At the same time, all
businesses have established special teams for epidemic prevention
and control to protect the health and safety of our employees.
Based on the epidemic prevention experience at the beginning of
the year, we further improved the emergency plan for epidemic
prevention and control, epidemic prevention and control planning,
environmental disinfection, epidemic publicity and education,
and preparation of anti-epidemic materials, so as to ensure the
quarantine during the epidemic and returning to work after the
holidays can be carried out safely and smoothly. We worked
together to build a line of defense against the epidemic to ensure
“Life + Delicacy”.
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Resuming Work and Production Timely to Ensure Market
Supply

In response to the sudden outbreak of the epidemic, we
responded to the “Ensuring Price, Quality and Supply” series
of actions organized by the State Administration for Market
Supervision as soon as possible while focusing on epidemic
prevention and control. We coordinated with government’s
requirements to promote the orderly resumption of work and
production, and promised our factories fully resume production to
meet market demand. All businesses of Master Kong responded
quickly to the epidemic, our factories prepared emergency plans
to combat the epidemic based on the actual local conditions
and the requirements of the local governments, implemented
the government’s and our internal guidance requirements for
epidemic prevention and control and production resumption,
aiming to fully meet the market demand. Based on the principle
of serving operation and serving market, we worked together and
communicated with external parties, coordinated the safe and
timely resumption of production in factories. The supply chain
departments of all businesses urgently procured anti-epidemic
materials to ensure the smooth flow in raw material procurement,
finished product delivery and transportation, the staff on duty
made every effort to resume production.

Striving to Protect the Health and Safety of Employees

In order to help the Company resume work and production in
a timely manner, all businesses of Master Kong planned the
epidemic prevention and control measures urgently, formulated
and issued the “Emergency Plan for Prevention and Control of
COVID-19", the “Employee Restaurant Dining Regulations”, the
"Code of Practice for Disposal of Discarded Masks”, the “Code of
Practice for Management of Smoking Area during the Epidemic”,
the “Code of Practice of Returning to Work for quarantined
Personnel”, the “Code of Practice for Incoming Visitor”, the “Code
of Practice for Management of Dormitory Epidemic Prevention
and Occupancy” and other systems and requirements. In order to
control the density of people in factories and offices, all businesses
of the Company reasonably implemented the combination of
staggered commuting and work from home to protect the health
and safety of employees, ensuring that employees can put their
minds to work, so that the production efficiency and product
quality can be effectively guaranteed.
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After the 2020 Chinese New Year Holiday, in order to ensure the
smooth and safe resumption of work for non-local employees, the
all businesses of Master Kong adopted a point-to-point approach
to solve the problem of employees returning to the factory,
contacted government departments to arrange for employees to
return to the factory on a migrant express train, and actively bore
the hotel accommodation expenses during the quarantined period
of returning employees.

We also distributed masks and other epidemic prevention
materials to our returning colleagues, and regularly conducted
disinfection operations in the factory, office administration
building, sidewalk for the peripheral area of the factory, canteen
and ground, loading and unloading warehousing areas, guard
room, restrooms, garbage room and other areas. We also
reimbursed employees for nucleic acid testing costs incurred
due to business trips. We installed hand soaking facilities at the
entrance of the factory workshops, and employees are disinfected
and then cleaned with alcohol sprays before entering the factory.
The employees who returned to work were required to fill out
daily health and travel information, have their body temperature
monitored, and wear masks throughout the day. Split meal system
was adopted in staff canteen, employees had meals in separate
seats. If suspected patients were found, the infected personnel
shall be quarantined and the transmission route shall be cut off at
the first time, while promptly reporting to the epidemic prevention
and control departments of the employee’s place of residence
and his/her units. In addition, considering the possible negative
impact of the epidemic on employees’ psychological health, we
organized online training, issued staff care videos and inspirational
promotional materials to encourage everyone to overcome the
difficulties together.
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Fulfilling Social Responsibilities to Carry Out Anti-Epidemic
Support Actions

Since the outbreak of COVID-19, Master Kong has actively
supported the anti-epidemic work by launching a nationwide
anti-epidemic support campaign called “Helping with COVID-19,
Health is a Blessing”. Nearly 100 factories nationwide have
continued to produce, the Company mobilized employees from all
over the country to volunteer to deliver anti-epidemic materials,
and supported 837 medical units in 299 cities located in 26
provinces. Given the Company’s outstanding performance in anti-
epidemic support action, the 18th China Food Safety Conference
awarded the Company the Socially Responsible Enterprise title of
Catering Industry Helps with Nation Fight the Epidemic.
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Awarding Ceremony for Socially Responsible Enterprise Certificate of Catering Industry
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Helps with Nation Fight the Epidemic

To help fight the “epidemic”, Master Kong puts emphasis on
action and gratitude. In this great battle against the COVID-19
epidemic, Master Kong Group has launched a social responsibility
emergency plan at the first time and carried out charity donation
actions to actively make its contribution to win the battle against
the epidemic.

Convenient and nutritious food is vital for medical personnel who
works continuously and intensely. Master Kong gave full play to
its own product diversification advantages, took the initiative to
escort, and quickly assembled a pioneer team to join this epidemic
prevention and control battle with practical actions. We specially
transferred non-spicy products such as “Express Chef’s Noodles”
and noodles with shrimps and fish cake from our Hangzhou
factory to support the medical teams from Guangdong and
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Shanghai. In addition, in order to help medical workers replenish
their energy and refresh their minds, we also provided a variety
of flavored coffee products such as Bernachon Mandheling and
Mocha Latte. On the eve of Chinese New Year, the first batch
of donated materials has been delivered to the medical staff
of Wuhan Ninth Hospital. Subsequently, Master Kong made
donations to 14 front-line hospitals, including Wuhan Jinyintan
Hospital, Wuchang Hospital, Hankou Hospital and Central War
Zone General Hospital. At the same time, the headquarter of the
Group launched the anti-epidemic support actions “Helping with
COVID-19, Health is a Blessing”, and various local companies
actively responded. The colleagues of Master Kong in Wuhan have
bravely stepped forward and drove out nearly a thousand routes
during the crisis, consoling front-line medical staff and workers in
Wuhan, Xianning, Hanchuan, Ezhou, Yichang, Shiyan, Xiangyang,
Enshi, Shenlongjia, Huangshi, Huanggang, Changsha, Changde,
Huaihua, Hengyang, Yiyang, Zhangjiajie, Nanchang, Jiujiang,
Yichun and other cities. The Company delivered more than
2.56 million pieces of products to the front line of the epidemic,
building a large network of love with “speed, strength and
temperature” and sending the warmth of Master Kong people to
the white angels fighting against the epidemic across the country.

[HHAEREM (2R R SR TE
Anti-epidemic support actions: “Helping with COVID-19, Health is a Blessing”
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Food Safety Management and Control Mechanism

Master Kong is committed to its mission of “Promoting Chinese
Food & Beverage Culture” and took food safety as the foundation
of the Company. The Company strictly abides by laws and
regulations, such as the Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic
of China and the Agricultural Product Quality Safety Law of
the People’s Republic of China. Adhering to the attitude of
zero tolerance for food safety risks and relying on professional
capabilities and advanced equipment to connect with the quality
aerospace, we ensure the quality of products from farmlands to
dining tables, and assure “safety on tip of tongue” of the people.

As one of the earliest large food companies in China that invested
in setting up a functional department dedicated to food safety, the
Food Safety Centre of the Central Research Institute (“Food Safety
Center”) continues to operate in sound condition. Established
in 2008, the Master Kong Food Safety Center covers an area of
2,600 square meters, and invests more than RMB 20 million in
research every year, with more than 90% of its employees holding
master’s degrees or above. The number of food safety monitoring
indicators exceeds 1,500 per year, and the number of inspections
is over 3.5 million times. The Food Safety Center has strict control
over food safety control points, such as pesticide residues, heavy
metals, food additives, allergens, microorganisms and GMOs.
The Food Safety Center undertakes the Group's internal food
safety management tasks, and also assists government regulatory
authorities in promoting food safety risk monitoring and
standardization work. It has been accredited by China National
Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS).

=

EgmEERr 39

2020 Annual Report 4 #§



IR (g REIATRE | Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRME R ZH O
Master Kong Food Safety Center

FREEEERERRREmET Drawing on the management model of food benchmarking
EEEN EHEXZEBZ A enterprises in advanced countries, Master Kong has strengthened
AR F - WBARBAERBE - the supervision and control responsibilities of the Food Safety
BEZHLEBERREME  BRITE Center through organizational adjustments and refinements, and
ABREECRRERE - REFLA reinforced the system construction by strictly controlling access
RRLUIA  EHRINEAE - Ebs management based on the study and judgment of industrial
ERZAMEANERAE  AERBRS development trends. The Food Safety Center has set up a Food
MERLHEBARAR  XHEMDRE Safety Research Group, a Regulatory Outreach Group, a Risk
ERE - BUTERMEABRLE Audit Group and an Access Management Group to carry out
REBREARMERE ATHERR inspection and analysis and food safety related research, support
THELEZHEME  TEELE product quality control, establish and improve Master Kong's
ABEHE LT E202066H " E internal food safety regulatory system and technical standards,
MEKLEMTEMREES L investigate systemic food safety issues of suppliers and factories,
(FSQA) ' B{tRLZ BB ERERE and improve product access management. In June 2020, Master
T E—FPRETRMERRTE Kong established the Food Safety Research and Management
FEIKFE o Center (FSQA) to enhance food safety management and quality

assurance, which further improved Master Kong's food safety
control level.
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Construction of Food Safety

In 2020, Master Kong continued to improve the food safety
management system for all businsses. For instant noodle business
with the smooth running of FSSC22000 (Food Safety Certification
System) at all normal operating factories', the Company continues
to promote "“Quality System Management on Processing Oil for
Instant Noodles”, to safeguard food safety in processing oil,
Master Kong applied for accredited product review from Standard
Global Services (SGS) and China Quality Certification Center
(CQQ). In addition, subject to internal audit clauses "AIB +"” of
American Institute of Baking (AIB), the instant noodle business
builds factories in Tianjin and Hangzhou into AIB+ demonstration
factories, and drives all production bases to jointly improve food
safety management level through benchmarking management
mode. For Master Kong beverage business and Pepsi beverage
business, all normal operating factories have secured 1SO22000/
Food Safety System Certification (FSSC) 22000 and Hazard Analysis
and Critical and Control Point (HACCP) system certifications,
among which, all bottled water factories have obtained the
National Sanitation Foundation (NSF) annual certification, and
all Pepsi beverage factories and more than half of Master Kong
beverage factories have participated in the annual AIB food
safety audit and successfully passed. Hangzhou Tingjin Factory
has obtained the CNAS Microbiology Laboratory certifications.
All factories for bakery business have obtained 1SO9001 (quality
management system) and 1SO22000 certifications, operated in
sound condition and passed the 2020 annual system inspection
and audit.

1 ERELEIMALNFEELECMHMANLBETEREE EIRENTHK
1. The normal operating factories refers to those continued to operate for more than 6 months in 2020 and are not in a state of

shutdown or suspension.
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We believe that building a high-level safe China requires providing
a level of food safety assurance. In Master Kong's business
philosophy, food safety is a non-competitive field, and the
forward-looking research and technological advantages we have
achieved should be actively shared with our peers and the society.
In 2020, we have continued with the following major efforts in
the area of food safety:

1) Continued to increase investment in food safety. By the
end of 2020, our dedicated food safety and quality control
team had grown to over 1,800 employees. Through external
inspection by raw material suppliers, food safety assessment
and inspection, incoming raw material inspection, in-process
inspection, finished product shipment inspection, and
sampling inspection of products in the market, we achieved
strict monitoring of the entire industrial chain.

2) In 2020, we were approved to establish the Shanghai
Convenient Food Engineering Technology Research Center,
which would assume the responsibilities of food safety
testing, R&D, science training and providing authoritative
and impartial third-party services for the society. Through
this center, Master Kong will make use of domestic and
international high-quality academic resources to promote
high-end research and development of food safety
technology and the transformation of R&D results, and
actively provide useful references for the formulation and
updating of national food safety standards to improve the
industry’s food safety management in all aspects.

3)  We actively implemented corporate responsibilities and
continued to improve the full traceability system. Through
continuous system transformation and technological
advancement in our production plants, the execution
efficiency of the food safety traceability system has been
improved. Recently, under the guidance of professional
institutions, the Company has strengthened its upstream
and downstream traceability capabilities through
cooperation with suppliers and customers, to further realize
the transparent management of the flow of raw materials
and finished products.
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Nutrition Product Development and Expansion

In 2020, the Fifth Plenary Session of the 19th CPC Central
Committee put forward the visionary goal of “Building a Healthy
China” by 2035 from the perspective of the overall development
of the Party and the State, and made clear arrangements for
comprehensively promoting the construction of a healthy China
during the 14th Five-Year Plan period. As a leading enterprise
in China’s food and beverage industry, Master Kong deeply
understands the significance of improving product nutrition
and health. We recognize that with the ongoing consumption
upgrading, consumers no longer focus only on the convenience,
safety and delicacy of products, but increasingly focus on the
nutrition and health quality of products.

Based on a deep understanding of the notion that “Prosperity for
All Is Impossible without Health for All”, the Company actively
conformed to China’s nutrition and health policies including
National Nutrition Plan (2017-2030), and incorporated the
concept of nutrition and health into its research and development
activities, such as product formula design, product innovation and
technical cooperation. In 2020, Master Kong continued to satisfy
customers’ needs for nutrition with new products developed,
which included the “Handmade Noodles” characterized delicious
and fresh soup, the “Soup Chef” with exquisite ingredients,
and the zero-sugar and zero-calorie series represented by
"Unsweetened Green Tea”, “"Unsweetened Jasmine Tea” and
“Low-sugar Oolong Tea”. Of which, the “Handmade Noodles”
was awarded 2019-2020 Best Instant Food Innovation Grand
Award and 2020 Most Popular Convenience Food Award. The
health findings of unsweetened tea were included in “Journal of
Functional Foods”, an international academic journal with a strong

influence in food nutrition area.
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20205 - RANERFBEHEERES R Master Kong continued to advance science and research
REAFEFHERHR L EIRKE . collaborations on health and nutrition with a number of
MAKXE . EBXBARE  RIW renowned institutions like Winter Sports Center of the General
GMEBRREREAEAEERE Administration of Sport of China, Peking University, Nankai
UHAREERERMEE - LURAE University, Shanghai Jiao Tong University and Shenzhen Space
EnZENBMEXREREZBER Science and Technology Institute throughout 2020. With these
ESBCEER  Bhm ARBE partners and via offering relevant products as well as conducting
IFHETERIESK © science popularization activities, Master Kong significantly

advocated the concept of health and nutrition among the public
and had a positive impact on addressing people’s needs for a

better life.
2020531908 « EAEE FFXZ On 19 May 2020, Master Kong and the College of Agriculture
AABREEEYERTEMG L and Biology of Shanghai Jiao Tong University held a cooperation
BEEPOLRITEEFAERN K signing ceremony at Master Kong's Shanghai Operation Center.
REEXBREBERBRRLEH Relying on the SJTU-Bor S. Luh Food Safety Research Center of
KL UREEMELEFER Shanghai Jiao Tong University and taking Master Kong's Shanghai
mIBEMHREPLATE  HE Instant Food Engineering Technology Research Center as platform,
FMEEmEZEXBEESHT I Master Kong and the College of Agriculture and Biology of
MR MHE  @REMRE M Shanghai Jiao Tong University jointly carry out research activities
REFBESHEERERTER - A on quality and safety control and testing technology of the entire
RmEZEAR BEHTRE 2 food industry chain, and the development of healthy food and
EXEERAERERLWE  TEMT food raw materials. Taking the opportunities of food safety
BERXENRMERE  MaAS upgrade, smart city agriculture and healthy ecology of the whole
BEIR ERAEERSN - FE industry chain, both parties will build urban smart agriculture and
BHRMEIEBHREE food industry chain, strengthen talents cultivation and exchange,

and jointly promote the cooperation of food science research in all
aspects and multiple fields.

FREDNE . BB AR RENEYERFNEZRSIFEE
Master Kong signs of industry-academic cooperation agreement with the College of
Agriculture and Biology of Shanghai Jiao Tong University
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Serving Consumers

Master Kong attaches great importance to customers demands, by
setting up 400 consumer service hotline, along with official Weibo,
WeChat and other service channels and information retrieval
platforms to ensure the efficient communication with customers.
We have formulated customer service-related specifications and
implemented informatization and process management. Upon
receipt of customer complaints, the customer service centre shall
reply within the prescribed time limit and follow up to ensure
that issues raised by consumers can be properly resolved through
returned visits and other methods. For common issues, the
customer service team will discuss and draw conclusion to reach
for optimised solutions. We identify deficiencies in its service
via consumer satisfaction surveys and other forms and make
continuous improvements and adjustments. Meanwhile, we
strengthen the training of customer service staff and set KPIs for
customer service assessment to continuously motivate customer
service staff to improve service quality and efficiency on constant
basis. During the year, Master Kong's overall settlement rate of
customer satisfaction reached 97.3%.

While providing customers with satisfactory services, Master Kong
focuses on protecting customer privacy. We have formulated and
strictly enforced a comprehensive consumer privacy protection
system. In practice, we only obtain the necessary consumer
information, ask for the consumer’s consent before obtaining
the information, and enter into confidentiality agreements when
necessary. In cooperation with external partners, we include
consumer privacy confidentiality regulations and requirements into
the contracts. For consumers’ information that has been acquired
and saved, we set an internal access right system and conditions
for proper use to fully protect consumer privacy.

Advertising and Intellectual Property Management

When dealing with advertising and product labels, Master
Kong strictly complied with the laws and regulations, such as
the Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China and the
Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China to ensure that the
advertisement and label contents were true and legal, and there
exists no exaggerated, false or misleading contents. At the same
time, the Company strictly controls brand promotion and marketing
activities and promotes the honest undertaking of contracts among
partners or other advertising publishers and operators.
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R ERSEZERWIEENBREREE Master Kong continued to consolidate and promote intellectual
ENMRER - AR BEEEES property management and protection measures. The Company
B BERN BHERFMEERET cooperates with professional institutions to comprehensively
EHARE - B ROE=ZH protect intellectual property, including patents and trademarks,
EiE ZRME2ERZERRRibE among which, we have applied for registration to protect our
REFTMRE: SEHRANBERE core trademarks in many countries and regions around the
TERBRUR L SENBERSE world; conducts customs filing application for key intellectual
AR FTEERER  #ERE property and sets up line of defense for customs intellectual
R EEEFER LT 83 property monitoring, combats infringing products and protects
EPROABEERETEZES N brand image. Before launching a new product, Master Kong
EREESHBERNRRE 2R will comprehensively analyze the intellectual property involved:;
PHABRMBERE: THAEEREH while protecting our intellectual property, we avoid infringing
WatEd  BMTEELSEER the intellectual property of other parties; in cooperation with our
MFABEE  WEIBREASA partners, we respect and legally adopt the intellectual property of
HERE o others, and strike to protect our own intellectual property.
HEFESGER Supplier ESG Management

EEEEARMABITENEED As a leader in the food and beverage industry, Master Kong
¥ RABMERAZE 282 profoundly understands the importance of the safety, high-quality
AFENRMRMBNEZ - and sustainable raw materials for food.

e FE R IR IS A & B f B IR R In terms of supplier environmental and social risk management
SIESE - EAESE T(HERE policy formulation, Master Kong has developed the Operational
BIEEP E)ABHEREREM/K Method for Supplier Assessment to provide the basis for supplier
B HERT: HEEBTEMK - 8 management and evaluate suppliers from the perspective of
e I RIRERAEZEABEHH food safety, supply stability, innovation ability and procurement
FERHEATREME - 2020 « BRFEE costs. In 2020, we continued to promote the coverage of the
HECEMEHRERREEM SR Master Kong's Basic Agreement with Supplier on Environmental
EMpREINBEEHE - SHER and Social Compliance, which includes suppliers’ environmental
RE -2 REMAINESZERT and social performance into the scope of assessment and
ERBEFAETERERLEE® requires suppliers to commit to comply the “Nine Mandatory
Bl NIEBEXNAEEZX]  BREKEK Requirements” in environmental and social aspects, including
MEFEK BATEFRGERT - minimum age of employment, forced and binding employment,
HEEE BRENRESE BRE business ethics, serious environmental pollution, serious health
MEFEIZ2BE - THERKH - T or safety hazards, working hours, wages, employee work-related
E - BITHERBRUARRREZ R injury insurance and food safety. At the same time, we signed
%o BRI EEERFIC(REE the Anti-Commercial Bribery Commitment with suppliers, which
BRARAGEE ) - BEIR T BRAD(H Y e reflects Master Kong's requirements for suppliers in terms of
AERREMERREEEENE environmental and social risk management, and demonstrates
ko BRETERMERTEEREZD Master Kong's determination to fulfill the core corporate social
ELTEEEARL responsibilities of the value chain.

46 EMEZRERAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



R g REIARTRE | Environmental, Social and Governance Report

EHERRRET SRR EETER
J7TE - BRAD 8 7 51 H R R
BEEBETENEBEEXRARA
B UHHBETETERER Y
EmEEEERNFETHAS B
HEESmETRRE BREER
MEBERRLEBEERFEMER
ZRER - BB FeHHERLE
HiETREER  ERAERRE
BEERBBEENAZ IS0
ESEEXN)  mEEERREN  E
mitEEEN RELEEEEN
RELBERELZE2EEKTES -
EETHERFEEHESR &
MeHHtENERNRELEER
B BEDARER  ABBRIEL
REBE I HETRENE ©

ARAHEERRETSRARKRE R
B EEZEED 0 2020911 A F1H
BEEERE RS XM EEINER
BEBFE THEERESGEEEZ
NIRRT IZIEIEIIEE) o AR
BEETHEEISGEZITE . i
MIEMABREFTEZEEFTEMNA
HOBETRERE INHREMN - B
(¥RFEEZY REGEAREE -
EEEESHEBIESGERMETE
i E—PRATHEEISRC
HHEEMESGE XM IZRMABHE
St BRMBEEREHEEESG
FElERRRNENRREE 5
BiRBEETBERINBEIEE S
B RIRAEEHEESGRE KR E L
7 B BB FHEEEAREA
ARERREES -

Regarding supplier environmental and social risk management
practices, in the introduction of new supplier, Master Kong prefers
to cooperate with well-known enterprises in the industry, conducts
strict audit for its qualification, carries out investigation on product
quality management capabilities, tests its production samples,
to ensure that its products meet the relevant national standards
on food safety and Master Kong's requirements on food safety.
We conduct on-site inspection of the supplier’s production base
every year, the scope of our inspection includes manufacturer’s
license (including production license, 1SO certificates and other
qualification documents), quality control capacity, product
supply capacity, food safety control capacity, environmental and
occupational health and safety management level. During the
annual regular supplier review, we carefully assess the production
environment of the supplier's workshop and plant, the compliance
of waste emissions, personnel safety awareness in operation, etc.

In order to enhance supplier’s independent audit capability in
environmental and social risk management, in November 2020,
we appointed professional institutions to carry out a special
training on “Supply Chain ESG Independent Audit Capability
Enhancement” for the procurement team of the supply chain
department of each business. The training covered the knowledge
in the supply chain ESG audit standards, audit processes and
specific operating methods and other aspects, included the key
areas in supplier ESG audit such as employment, working hours
and benefits, occupational health and safety, anti-discrimination
and anti-harassment, and business ethics, which further enhanced
the supply chain colleagues’ understanding and knowledge
on supplier ESG audit. In the future, we will continue to carry
out capacity-building activities in the field of supply chain ESG
risk management, continue to enhance supply chain ESG risk
management capabilities through a combination of self-learning
and external training, and better enhance sustainable development
capabilities with supply chain partners.
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In 2020, Master Kong continued to promote the digital
management of the supply chain, covering all aspects of the
upstream and downstream of the value chain. We continued
to promote the implementation of Supplier Relationship
Management (SRM) system. Through the training of upstream
suppliers and Master Kong supply chain personnel, we achieved
digital management for the entire bidding process from release of
tenders, supplier introduction, reserve price signing and approval,
procurement bidding, bid approval. With SRM system, we
achieved paperless operations, reduced the circulation and delivery
of paper documents, such as the reserve price list and supplier
tenders. We changed the original operation method of manually
entering prices, greatly improving work efficiency and accuracy.
At the same time, we continued to promote the implementation
of Material Requirement Planning (MRP), which can automatically
calculate raw material requirements, reduce the manpower for
raw material demand planning and improve the accuracy. As such,
we can procure as planned, arrange production line operations
reasonably, achieve smooth production, avoid overload or idle
operation of production line, increase the flexibility of scheduling
and improve production efficiency.

Anti-corruption Management and Professional Ethics

Master Kong strictly complies with the law and regulation
requirements such as the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic
of China and the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China. The Company establishes and regularly assesses
the anticorruption management systems, continuously strengthens
the Company’s anti-fraud system, and avoids any direct or indirect
forms of bribery and other illegal commercial conducts. Master
Kong strictly controls the Company's funds and cash flow to
prevent money laundering.

The Company requires its employees to strictly abide by business
ethics, sign Commitment Letter on Anti-Corruption with staff
and suppliers, and issues the Measures for the Management of
Integrity and Self-discipline of Employees covering all employees.
This measure clearly define fraud and violations of business ethics,
clearly stipulate the supervision responsibilities of internal control,
risk control and audit departments, and systematically sort out
the reporting, supervision and review process and punishment
rules. In 2020, the Company conducted trainings on the measures
for supply chain departments of each business, and the trainees
included leaders of factories and other management personnel.
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This training strengthened the awareness of honesty in relevant
positions, and resolutely put an end to bribery, demand for bribes
and other violations of professional ethics in business dealings.
At the same time, the Company released a series of courses
on keeping away from negative energy in the “WEME Online
Academy” to warn against corruption and bribery in disguised
forms that may occur in the business process, and put forward
corresponding punishment plans. The Company conducted anti-
corruption advocacy training for newly recruited employees in
the form of mobile terminal animation, teaching through lively
activities, thus the anti-corruption is deeply rooted in the minds of
our employees.

The Company has set up reporting hotline and email to
encourage employees and external personnel to report improper
conducts such as commercial bribery and fraud. The Company
audit department strictly follows the Whistleblower Operating
Procedures to implement whistleblower handling. After the end
of case investigation, the Company will analyze the effectiveness
of internal control and track improvement. For major fraud cases,
regular publicity is carried out to strengthen the business ethics of
the staff. This year, in order to further strengthen the Company’s
anti-fraud management capabilities, Master Kong joined the China
Institute of Internal Audit and actively participated in the activities
of the association, keeping abreast of the latest development
direction and enhancing the anti-fraud investigation skills.
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Brand Breakthrough

Enhance brand power by IP collaboration
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Master Kong attaches importance to IP marketing cooperation
so as to create a better resonance among consumers. In 2020,
we conducted in-depth cooperation with the domestic comics
IP “"Douro Mainland”, which is favoured by young consumer
groups, in the fields of animation and mobile games. Under the
cooperation, we integrated Rattan Pepper Beef Noodle, one of
our instant noodle brand, with the Douro Mainland animation for
content co-creation, and with the New Douro Mainland mobile
game for in-depth implantation, which closely integrates the
refreshing taste experience of the product’s core Ratten Pepper
Oil Package to consumers with the IP’s “burning” theme and
transforms consumers’ refreshing experience to their recognition
of Master Kong's products, leading to a win-win situation for
our brand and the IP brand with traffic growth. Meanwhile, the
protagonist image of Douro Mainland IP also appeared on the
packaging of Master Kong's instant noodle products. Through
offline and e-commerce channels, Master Kong’s product
promotion and marketing were conducted with satisfactory
market feedback, which effectively improved Master Kong's
product reach and the audience base. In 2020, with the marketing
case -Combination of Master Kong Rattan Pepper Beef Noodle
and Douro Mainland with Triple “Linkage” Creates the First
Ecological Closed-Loop of National Comic Marketing”, Master
Kong won 5 awards from 4 well-known marketing competitions,
namely Best Marketing Effectiveness Award and Digital Media
Integration Silver Award in the 11th Golden Mouse Digital
Marketing Award, Crossover Marketing Bronze Award in the
20th IAl International Advertising Awards, Bronze Award in Media
Group in the 13th ROI Festival, and Excellence Award in Food
Category in the 11th Tiger Roar Award.
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“Cheering your spirit up” Impresses Young Consumers

Over the 25 years since its launch, Master
Kong Ice Tea has maintained a young
brand image. In recent years, focusing
on the interest of the new generation of
consumers, Master Kong Ice Tea has built
a young brand image which is deeply
rooted among people and has received
numerous fans. Master Kong ice tea is
good at “heart touching” approach which
combines popular psychology and fashion
' ""ﬁ trends and arouses a knowing.smile
\ among consumers. Based on the lives of
the younger generation and with rich and
diversified new content, the theme of
“Master Kong Ice Tea — Hyper Fun” is fully
interpreted. Before the upcoming 2021
Chinese New Year, Master Kong Ice Tea,
together with brand spokesperson William
Chen and China burning power representative Meng Meiqi, re-
interpreted the classic song “A Fire in Winter” in the hearts of a
generation, injecting a youthful soul into the classic song, igniting
the first fire of the 2021 Chinese New Year, bringing full vitality
for the upcoming Chinese New Year, and successfully making
more people recognize the brand soul of Master Kong Ice Tea.

Master Kong Ice Tea has also meticulously crafted a series of
marketing activities. Among them, the city documentary Wonder
City in which the brand is deeply embedded, received a strong
response after the broadcast, which has already set off a “Hyper
Fun” craze. As the 2021 Chinese New Year was approaching,
Master Kong Ice Tea and Tencent Video launched an in-depth
cooperation, making the public have a deeper resonance with the
brand proposition of “Galloping for well-off, Cheering your spirit
up”. In 2021, let's look forward to a new chapter in Master Kong
Ice Tea's “Cheering your spirit up”!
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“Full Link Digitization” Opens a New Era of Smart Retail

Master Kong recognizes that the digital economy will become
a new engine for China’s economic development, and actively
promotes the digital development of the industrial chain. On
15 December 2020, Master Kong and Tencent Smart Retail
signed a strategic cooperation agreement in Shanghai, marking
a milestone event for Master Kong in building the “Full Link
Digitization” of the fast-moving consumer industry. Master
Kong will carry out in-depth cooperation with partners on the
Full Link Digitization, winning customers from full areas, refined
operation of the consumer’s full life cycle, intelligent production
and digital management of the supply chain, and create new
business models driven by technology. In particular, on the C-side
(consumer), it will realize the digitalization of brand marketing
to accumulate digital users by connecting different user points,
5o as to expand the customer base for the brand and improves
customer stickiness; on the B-side (business), it will realize the
scale of terminal stores to improve operating efficiency. “Full Link
Digitization” helps Master Kong deliver the right products to the
right consumers at the right time and in the right place, injecting
strong momentum into Master Kong's sustainable development,
and driving corporate transformation, consumption upgrades and

a positive circle of the industrial chain.

FEEMH BB AR B BT B S 1E R

Master Kong and Tencent signing off a digital strategy cooperation agreement
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Create the Exclusive IP “New Year Blessing from Master
Kong”

In early 2020, Master Kong cooperated with national idol
Lang Ping to launch the “New Year Blessing from Master
Kong” marketing campaign, breaking the traditional brand
communication stereotypes, creating an exclusive IP for the Master
Kong brand and enhancing the emotional connection between the
Spring Festival in the eyes of consumers and “New Year Blessing
from Master Kong”. The “New Year's Health Is Good Fortune”
IP represents Master Kong's national brand image of caring
about the Chinese people, and strengthens Master Kong's label
as a representative of Chinese noodle culture and an inheritor
of Chinese food culture. Multi-channel promotion strategy is
adopted in this marketing campaign. Through internet platforms
and movies and sports themes, all-around communications
were made across all population. Centering on the Chinese
women'’s volleyball team, New Year blessings were sent to mass
consumers. As such, we could continue to improve consumers’
favorability towards the Company’s brand and strengthen Master
Kong's national brand image that is concerned with the physical
and mental health of the Chinese people and the happiness of
their families. “New Year Blessing from Master Kong” creates
emotional communication with thousands of families, pays tribute
to Chinese culture, promotes Chinese food culture, and continues
to help build the cultural self-confidence of the Chinese nation.

[#rFFeR 2R P
The exclusive IP of “New Year Blessing from Master Kong”
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Support 2022 Beijing Winter Olympics

The 2022 Beijing Winter Olympics is starting shortly. In active
response to the call of Winter Sport Management Centre of State
General Administration of Sport (the “Winter Sport Centre”) for
the scientific diet customization for Chinese ice and snow athletes,
Master Kong became the Winter Sport Centre 2019-2022 sports
convenience and nutrition meal partners to provide scientific,
delicious, safe and nutritious diet guarantee for athletes. In 2020,
Master Kong will continue to deliver Customized Products for
Snow Athletes to provide healthy diet for athletes in the Winter
Olympics. At the same time, as a support to the Public Service
Action Plan of the National Team for Ice and Snow Sports, Master
Kong joined hands with the Winter Sports Centre to launch the
Micro Classes for Ice and Snow Knowledge during the pandemic
to popularize the Winter Olympics knowledge and enhance the
influence of the Master Kong brand among the mass sports
population.
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Master Kong supports the 2022 Beijing Winter Olympics
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Master Kong is well aware of the impact of its productions and
operations on the environment and resources, and actively takes
responsibility for protecting the environment. The company
identifies and complies with the requirements of national
environmental protection laws and regulations, formulates energy
internal initiatives and systems for conservation and emission
reduction based on its production and operation situation,
continues to increase investment in technical innovation, actively
promotes the implementation of various energy conservation
and emission reduction projects in all businesses and factories,
and carries out various project practices in respect of energy
conservation, water conservation, emission reduction and
packaging material reduction to reduce its adverse impacts on the
environment. Meanwhile, we stress climate change issues and
realize that climate change is a major challenge that human race is
facing. In 2020, Master Kong initially sorted out the major climate
change risks faced by the company with support from external
professional organizations. We will actively assume corporate
citizen responsibilities while avoiding potential risks, work with all
sectors of society to mitigate the impact of climate change, pursue
green development and enjoy “Life + Delicacy”.

Energy Conservation Management

Master Kong formulates Energy Management Standards and
Energy Consumption Assessment and Evaluation Methods as
standards and guidelines, and the relevant system content is
publicized and implemented in all factories. We also carry out
delicacy management for energy consumption in each factory,
implement the energy conservation practices and management
measures in the standards, focus on the detail control of the
existing process, continue to implement the energy intelligent
management system, explore and seek opportunities for energy
conservation in various production processes. We also actively
conduct energy management health inspections, assess energy
management conditions, and incorporate energy conservation
and consumption reduction effects into performance evaluation
indicators for related positions. We increase the importance of
energy conservation for relevant positions, to promote energy
conservation efforts. In 2020, Master Kong's overall energy
consumption per ton of output reduced approximately 6.4
kilowatt hours, representing a decrease of 1.86%, as compared
to 2019. With their respective remarkable achievements in energy
conservation management, 17 factories under Master Kong
beverage business and 17 factories under Pepsi beverage business
earned the honor title of “Excellent Energy- Saving Company” by
the China Beverage Industry Association.
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Alternating instant noodles business based on the existing
steam box recovery device to recycle fresh air generated
from the process of frying, which saves approximately
3200 tons of steam on each production line every year.
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Pepsi beverage business Chongging factory leverages
original thermos bottle machine cold energy recovery
pipeline to conduct heat exchange of heat, which is
generated from process of cooling water by water
chiller, through plate heat exchanger and thermos bottle
machine, thus saving approximately 30,000 cubic meters
natural gas by heating the cold water in thermos bottle
machine to reduce the steam consumption of thermos
bottle machine.
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With the integrated planning by the supply chain of
Master Kong beverage business, RMB4.6 million was
put into the transformation from old roots blower in
sewage station of each comprehensive factory to new air
suspension blower in sewage station. 33 devices were
replaced this year, saving approximately 5,000,000 Kwh
of electricity and mitigating the effect of noise.
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Bakery business conducts transformation on packaging
workshop by separating workshop with color steel plate,
which mitigates the drawbacks of large unutilized space
in the original workshop and poor heat insulation effect.
Upon transformation, the loans and energy consumption
of refrigeration equipment were lowered, representing a
decrease of 18.6% in electricity consumption as compared
with that of the corresponding period of last year.
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Water Conservation Management

All businesses of Master Kong formulate £nergy Conservation
Management Systems, providing system basis for water
management of the Company. In 2020, we actively implemented
multiple practices that were devoted to water conservation and
improvement on water-use efficiency, conducted analyses on
water consumption of factories, set up a regular monitoring
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mechanism for water quantity, to learn the water consumption
status of each production sectors, report and review on
water consumption statement statistical analyses. We further
implemented key water-conservation reconstruction projects for
processes and equipment with high water consumption, and
promoted excellent examples to all factories. We also stress the
publicity and education of water conservation in the daily work,
publicize and exercise the water conservation idea of “value
water, conserve water and protect water” through training and
posting signs. In 2020, Master Kong ‘s water consumption per
ton of output declined approximately 53.2 liters, representing
a decrease of 1.99%, as compared to 2019. With excellent
management practices, 14 factories under Master Kong beverage
business and 17 factories under Pepsi beverage business earned
the honor title of “Excellent Water Conservation Company” by
the China Beverage Industry Association for the second time.
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K192 B Reusing concentrated water produced by Pepsi

beverage business Zhengzhou factory’s original

Instant noddle business has decided to implement
the recovery and reuse of condensate water.
Using the condensate water produced in
workshop in daily cleaning and boiler in industries
while reducing emission of waste water. In 2020,
factories of instant noddle business have saved
water of approximately 1,920,000 tons.

Master Kong beverage business Hangzhou
factory updated the Frozen Filling Machine this
year. By ways of installing temporary storing
barrels, recovery pipeline, valves, water pump
and electricity control to realize the recycle of the
water used to washing Frozen Filling Machine,
thus reducing approximately 20,000 Kwh of
waste water to achieve water saving each year
upon reconstruction.

RO machines to improve water utilization and
reduce waste water emission, thus saving
approximately 55,000 tons of water every year.
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EREREEE Low Carbon and Emission Management

5 il 125 38 5 I 38 <7 B 3R %GB Master Kong identifies and complies with related laws and
REEEY - 52BN BEEE regulations for waste and pollutant emission in where the
ER BIE(RE AR EMEIRER Company operates, including the Environmental Protection Law
L) (REARKMBEIRES AR of the People’s Republic of China, the Atmospheric Pollution
AVEY ARR GRS BEBUIRE) Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China,
CHRERRSAMPERIEE) CBRF Integrated emission standard of air pollutants, Emission standard
RYPEREE) (TELEERER of air pollutants for boiler, Emission Standard for Odor Pollutants,
O HE RS E) R(FE AR K Volatile Organic Compound Emission Control Standards for
A E B EY s RRIBENEE)E Industrial Enterprises and the Law of the People’s Republic of
HIE T RENEANEEREK - BERX China on the Prevention and Control on Environmental Protection
BEZVTEOBERERSE by Solid Wastes. Master Kong formulates its internal emission
SR ER  RERIENEZEER management system in respect of waste water, waste gas and
12 IR AR AR IE A K solid waste, to clarify compliance requirements, standardize
T REBREBTET EXER operation and disposal procedures, improve related equipment
- ANEEEELNEEXKRE operation and maintenance levels, ensure stable operation of
EEMBERVENERN  HEBEEEE equipment, and achieve compliance emissions. Master Kong also
BB R ETEE - HREERE engages a qualified professional organization to carry out regular
HREERTE  BFRZBESF emission monitoring for the compliance of various indicators.
mAE R EMERAEREENRE In respect of greenhouse gas emission management, we deeply
BITENRET BHRE2EBERMM understand stakeholders’ attentions on Master Kong's greenhouse
TR - Bl MR AN ST IR R B Al gas emission management. Through actively responding to the
ABRSeESHERRE ARESE state and local policies, introducing and adopting advanced
TR R T SO RO MR R - RER D environmental protection technologies, replacing equipment
AAEERER BEBFNEER with high energy consumption and high emission, implementing
BEPENE © 20204 - RANEMEES various technologies transformation and projects of emission
BERBEBENRELL2019F 5 4 4 reduction, and actively using renewable energies, the Company
28Fm  TI414.42% reduced its greenhouse gas emissions. In 2020, Master

Kong’s greenhouse gas emissions per ton of output declined
approximately 2.8 kilograms, representing a decrease of 4.42%,
as compared to 2019.
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The instant noodle business invested around RMB15
million to upgrade sewage treatment and waste gas
equipment. The upgrade and replacement of all plant
exhaust gas equipment have been completed in 2020. The
upgraded exhaust gas equipment uses a closed collection
biological treatment process to eliminate odorous gases.

BERmEFILRABELEEERBER RERINTIF
TR T —EFE] |§E7§$&¢%(Volatlle Organic Compounds
VOCS)EEREB ARG RMETEERE » £EL

VOCsERRFiE85% @ TF M FEFH b IS HERENE -

At Beijing factory of Pepsi beverage business, one set of
Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC) exhaust gas treatment
system was applied in the code-spraying and shrinking film
process. The operation is on normal and remains stable.
The removal rate during production process reaches 85%,
with 3 tons non-methane hydrocarbons reduced annually

BRMARYEREERL
Volatile Organic Compounds exhaust
gas treagment systems
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Upgrading of
waste gas treatment faCIIIty

B Bl 188 6% S 0 N R 38 2 T e S B BB AR T AR B 0 R
BRI SGE  BIRKR  REREKEXSSRGEAR
ACBEREEEN  BRBEREERARER B
W= THEMARE TTERSE -

Master Kong Beverage Plant in Hangzhou upgraded the
acetic acid waste gas treatment facilities. By replacing
the alkaline tower, circulating water pump, ancillary
instruments, sensors and other accessories, the capacity
of peracetic acid waste gas treatment has been enhanced,
so as to ensure the compliance of exhaust emissions
after treatment and improve the working environment of
employees in the workshop.

B EEP2020F MNEEMIGRIBES - LURD B AL
HERRA) 20K - %wﬁa/éliﬁ/f%ﬂfﬁﬂ{é 1101820
KEEREHNR - REFE (TEEBARSED
PEIZZE) (GB9078-1996)IZ%E -

More activated carbon filters were applied in the bakery
business in 2020, to reduce the odour from organized
discharge. After the exhaust gas is filtered and processed
by the activated carbon filter, it is discharged from
10 20-meter high exhaust cylinders, and the emission
concentration is in line with Standard of Smoke and Dust
Emission for Industrial Kiln and Furnace (GB9078-1996).

EERBER O F+ R ki
Upgrading and reconstruction
of exhaust gas outlet
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Reduce the Use of Packaging Materials

In order to implement sustainable development principles, Master
Kong actively reduces the use and consumption of various
packaging materials at all stages of the product life cycle to reduce
its impact on the environment. In respect of the production and
transportation of products, we formulate policies related to raw
materials management. Through optimizing production processes,
formulating special plastic and weight reduction plans based on
the packaging characteristics of major products, analyzing the
transfer process of the product and cargo, the Company reduced
unnecessary packaging materials in the transportation. Some
useful discarded packaging materials are gathered for recycling to
improve utilization of discarded packaging materials.

In respect of product usage, Master Kong is well aware of the
impact of discarded packaging materials on the environment,
and put efforts in plastic and weight reduction and optimization
of packaging materials. In 2020, Master Kong's instant noodle
business refined the transportation and collection process of
producing raw materials. The flour and starch were no longer
delivered in bags but delivered via tanker trucks. The tapioca
and refined salt are packaged by bulk bags instead of bags with
small capacity, which significantly reduces the consumption of
packaging materials. The raw martials of sauce bag are delivered
to the production plants in plastic baskets instead of cartons.
The used plastic baskets are collected and cleaned for recycling,
which reduces the use of cartons. The packaging method of
biscuits products of bakery business is replaced from plastic bags
to pallets, which reduces the use of plastic packaging materials.
At the same time, each business puts efforts in the recycling of
the packaging materials, recycles the used cartons for product
transportation.
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REE EERREERAER In this year, both Master Kong beverage business and Pepsi
BEXHHEBHERMRBR D HE beverage business reduced or optimize the use of packaging
{tTERMER  FABERMT - materials for some product items. Details are as follows:

FABRmER
MASTER KONG BEVERAGE BUSINESS

1.0L PETREmMmEZMN  ARKREMEEHR3I4T 0.5L PETHRBAEm=MEEMR 2322 THR22 R
AR32E  BERAEFEMESEH30R TAR28R

1.0L PET empty bottle of each kind of product, of which The weight of 0.5L PET empty carbonated product bottle
the weight of empty bottle of thermoforming line (Z4 reduced from 23.2 grams to 22 grams

FE4RZER) reduced from 34 grams to 32 grams and the

weight of empty bottle of cold aseptic filling line (FEER 4R

Z=3R) reduced from 30 grams to 28 grams

BEERmEBER
PEPSI BEVERAGE BUSINESS

o Py
@ o

500ml PETH =z EH23.2 300ml PETEEZEMREH 21 54 EE S E W 0.27mm 488 A
RTHRAE22R THE18% 0.26mm
The weight of 500ml PET empty The weight of 300ml PET empty The thickness of aluminum cans

Pepsi bottle reduced from 23.2 7-up bottle reduced from 21 reduced from 0.27mm to 0.26mm
grams to 22 grams grams to 18 grams
BEAN - 2020F - BERMEBEES Besides, in 2020, Pepsi beverage business and its partners carried
YE % 1+ — # 59 |E PET 1@ 3% (R-PET) FI out a PET recycling (R-PET) utilization research pilot project. The
HAMEARER  BERMRIERT Beijing factory of Pepsi beverage used scrap PET to make worker
JBR B {55 FA ¥ 85 PET RUERL TARFIE K clothes and white gowns. The Hangzhou plant of Master Kong

# o FRANE KM EETRM
TRt AR EE
FIER-PETH % » LA EE
PET & R B A ZE TR A
FHE 4 - 2021 5 0 A5
EESTHEERRERE
R-PETEHZ -

beverage business also cooperated with
Veolia Company (E{3Z 2 A]) to carry
out the R-PET project to produce worker
clothes and cloth fiber using scrap PET as
raw materials. In 2021, we will continue
to expand and promote R-PET projects in
more factories.

¥R 2% PET HRBMERK A9 T AR AHh
The worker clothes and white gowns made of
scrap PET bottles
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HFLEEEE Digital Production Management

FREE ST T AEEEERRNE Master Kong flexibly applies digital tools to all aspects of
EEESIRE  FEETEFER production and operation, continues to make innovation
MEMAH BBETI 2ae breakthroughs and technological upgrades, and improves
t-BEtas BRALEES production and operation efficiency through digital, intelligent,
WE - BAREEEERES and automated methods, and gradually improves comprehensive

management capabilities.

20204 + FERNEZ A E LineView In 2020, Master Kong gradually promoted the Line View
FESEREERBBRESE R4 production line online monitoring and data collection system
EREZTEAEERNRE BHHAEH to monitor the status of the production line in real time,
RKPIER BERBRELL & automatically calculated key KPI indicators, realized paperless
BRI BAHEEERETIRE reports and accurate data. Through the implementation of
EMEIEEE NIRAEERE remote monitoring of the running status of the production line,
BREEEXNE  BFTEREAE it helped to improve production efficiency and reduce Production
E - EZEPOLAEE2020F B & costs, and gradually realized unmanned production. In 2020, the
SEIUHASFRIEEMBE ERIT Internal Control Department of the Operations Center assisted all
- BEFESTHAEELITE businesses in canceling the printing of paper receipts for internal
AR - BB EAIEE  BE payment requests, which greatly conserves printing costs for all
B BE R © businesses and factories, and implemented energy-saving and

carbon-reduction by promoting paperless operations.

FEERAAESHIY R ER SR Master Kong promoted the Transportation Management System
% #i(Transportation Management (TMS) project this year. By virtue of big data, artificial intelligence,
System * TMS) B - {EB) A 8HE - cloud services and other scientific and technological forces,
ATER  EREZRE NS &2 Master Kong established a digital logistics management platform
VHEOREETYE BIRTEM to achieve the unification of Master Kong's factory, carrier, and
B FOEW EHaERY transportation driver system. Dispatching management, from the
G—EHEEE RIEBEE - RE K four dimensions of freight, efficiency, cost, and service, empowers
AN RIS EGE - B (LR A the supply chain departments of businesses with digitalization,
sEEMaEmI . B TH2EE and realizes unified management and control of nearly a hundred
BRIBEG— S o« WiBiB 100K factories across the country. The company coordinated with more
EHR SO0ZEESL HERRS than 100 transporters and more than 500 transporter business
EEBRRRELRE  ER10E5HEE offices, and achieved coordinated operation of 100,000 transport
BEHAREEE BBTELHIRE - vehicles. Through modern park management modes such as
BHEImEEUSEERALCERS appointments for pick-up and vehicles arriving at the factory to
A BREEDADREESE line up and calling numbers, the Company reduced the waste
B ML EWEERIEEREE - [ of manpower and resources in loading and unloading, and the
B REEFAEREHTH occurrence of vehicle queuing congestion. At the same time, the
R R L EEEHRTER logistics management platform can realize the full visualization of
MEMEGREY 2RI EH the vehicle trajectory, preventing and managing transportation
B OHEENEHEFRE - TR abnormalities in advance, which records transportation data
RESE N IIE - (Y RS AL throughout the whole process, and provides real feedback on
2B o performance indicators such as supplier services and factory

efficiency to promote the improvement of logistics service
capabilities.

62 EEMEZRERAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



R g REIARTRE | Environmental, Social and Governance Report

FEHREZL

FEERAEBRRBELCREE2HEE
HERH B ABEE - U RBENTEIBE
HRIEBCEENTEREGERY
REZROEBRMRE - RAHFE
REHREECHEENIER T8
BAEHFELAEXINRIKEL
BEZE  SHHHEBRREZ/LR
b - TE1R B ZMELIELIEE o

XONFRERRRBICOHTE - 8B
M~ BRMEEF R KRB A
KEARERLESENBEEANE
A TERMEIRNERES
TELEERBTEMHUAERER R RY
EERX - REEHELHMZEEA
KEBENAREMETHEE DN
HETCEAXNEETHEREZTE
ERE SN P fa Sz 0) L )
FES T FETT R & - W E AR AT
B ORAR - R E S A KSR A AR
REE AEEBERER RARE
ERGRE

ERMEHEG T E - iR R 8
EXREMEE TR  HmMal#ERQ
AIEERMNERKE FELE
PRAS o B B 8 TR 1R F R R FHE R
THEIN HAEZEERESN
RERFZIET - BHEERET
AREAHEERDHERS 264
FERCAR o Zoh - 18k KR B AT aE
HBRVHNEEEREREE R
g FOBLEEFTKNSERYH
BEZEERTERREDEERE
Mo At RPEBERIINZH - Z
ReRtERRERBEHFE HE
Y B M B A AR R R A S KR R
BRI 38 X O ) P 3t [ 14 7 7 48 ) b
[\ o

Tackle Climate Change

Master Kong deeply understands that climate change is a
major challenge the whole society is facing up, and recognizes
that actively responding to the impact of climate change is the
foundation and guarantee for the long-term stable development
of the company. We continue to deepen our understanding of
climate change issues, proactively identify the potential impact
of climate change on our operations, and actively consider and
establish response measures for related climate change risks.

Affected by global climate change in recent years, extreme
weather and natural disasters such as torrential rain, snow and
typhoons may occur more frequently in certain areas, disrupting
the normal operation of Master Kong's factory, affecting
production stability and causing the company’s property losses.
Master Kong conducted a comprehensive analysis of the possibility
of various natural disasters in the operating area, formulated
the Special Emergency Plan for Natural Disaster Accidents, and
standardized the handling measures and response methods when
emergency situations occurred. Master Kong also organized
training and drills on a regular basis, included the extreme
weather in the insurance coverage to reasonably transfer risks,
and provided guarantees for company's assets.

In terms of raw material supply, extreme weather may cause a
decline in the output of agricultural products, which triggers price
fluctuations of the company’s raw materials and affect production
costs. Master Kong actively carries out raw material price analysis,
keeps close attention to factors that may affect price changes, and
enters into contracts with suppliers to lock raw material prices in
advance to control production costs. In addition, extreme weather
may also have a short-term impact on the normal transportation
of raw materials. The various raw materials required by Master
Kong's production are widely produced in mainland China
and even around the world. Therefore, we maintain long-term
cooperation with many qualified suppliers at home and abroad.
The extensive layout of suppliers can alleviate the supplier
transportation interruption risk in local areas caused by extreme
weather.
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In 2020, we engaged a professional consulting agency to assist
us in the preliminary analysis of the main climate change risks
we face, studied good practices in the industry, and discussed
solutions and improvement directions. In the future, Master Kong
will closely follow and stress the risks of climate change, and
continue to improve its own response and management to climate
change issues.

RERREMER

2020 % - FREDBIRF RS E NS
BIIRIT - BRB1THA - REE
R O AT SIEDR & LB AN E A8
REFXEEEEONIRAZAT
B BN ERARBRENE TR

The Environmental Key Performance Indicators

The environmental key performance indicators for the year 2020
were listed below. Unless otherwise specified, the environmental
data® scope covers the Shanghai Master Kong Headquarters
and all domestic factories directly managed? by each business.
Overseas offices are not included in the statistics due to their small

REFSGHHRE  RABRBEERRB
LB S ET IR ER

operation scale. While in the future, we will collect and disclose

their data timely, based on the actual situation.

BREREHEREES Total greenhouse gas emission® 102.2
(8B 1 M&E 2)% (8N) (Scope 1 and Scope 2)® (10,000 Tonnes)

WEE 2 )R ERBHNE Greenhouse gas emission (Kg/tonne of output) 60.81
(A /WEE)

RAREREFERE S (JKERF) Comprehensive energy consumption ®(Mwh) 5,664,172.5

MEE BARG REIRBFEE Comprehensive energy consumption 336.9
(FEE WES) (KWh/tonne of output)

BEHOKRE) Electricity (MWh) 1,409,855.7

WESE N EES(TEE WES) Electricity consumption (KWh/tonne of output) 83.9

VRS m (KR E) Gasoline/diesel (MWh) 5,523.4

RINBMBE R (JRFLREF) Natural gas/coal (MWh) 803,971.9

N T (IR FLRE) Steam purchased (MWh) 3,444,821.6

FXE20 (ILHK) Total water consumption ©(m?3) 43,807,137.2

MEEERKE(IK WES) Water consumption (m3/tonne of output) 2.61

EmBREMEHEREZE " (M) Use of product packaging materials @ (tonne) 1,147,554.3

WMEEVEMEERE(AT WESE) Use of product packaging materials 68.3

(Kg/tonne of output)

{tETE=E Total COD emissions © (tonne) 252.7
(CHEMICAL OXYGEN DEMAND -
COD)#Ep#EE ® (HE)

BEEEDRE(ME) Total hazardous waste (tonne) 649.1

MESEEREEMIENE Discharge of hazardous waste 0.04
(AT /WES) (Kg/tonne of output)

mEEEYES () Total non-hazardous waste (tonne) 176,229.3

MEEEEREMINE Discharge of non-hazardous waste 10.5

(AT /WES)
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Based on the nature of Master Kong, in 2020, its major emissions
are greenhouse gases, sulphur dioxide (SO,) and nitrogen oxides
(NOx), which are mainly from the use of fossil fuel-converted
electricity and fuels. As compared with 2019, the use of fossil fuels,
including natural gas and coal, emissions of sulphur dioxide (SO,)
and nitrogen oxide (NOx) were further decreased. Therefore, their
gaseous emissions were not disclosed due to minor impacts.

The domestic factories directly managed by Master Kong include
all the domestic instant noodle, Master Kong beverage, and bakery
factories located inside the country, as well as all the domestic
Pepsi beverage factories except the factories in Shanghai, Wuhan,
Nanjing, Hangzhou, Shenyang, Tianjing, Fuzhou and Guilin.

The scope of Master Kong's greenhouse gas calculation mainly
covers carbon dioxide, methane, and nitrous oxide. Greenhouse gas
emission data is presented in CO, equivalent and is calculated based
on the 2006 Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC)
Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories (revised edition
in 2019).

Scope 1: covering the greenhouse gas emissions directly generated
by the Company’'s operations; Scope 2: “Indirect energy”
greenhouse gas emissions resulted from the Company’s internal
consumption (electricity, either purchased or obtained); the gas
emissions caused by “indirect energy” purchased heat will be
calculated after the promulgation of the national unified calculation
standard.

Comprehensive energy consumption is calculated based on
energy consumption (direct and indirect), according to the
General Principles for Calculation of the Comprehensive Energy
Consumption (GB/T 2589-2008), the State Standard of the People’s
Republic of China.

Water consumption refers to production water within the statistical
scope together with employee’s consumption of water in the office.

Amount of product packaging materials is the sum of the total
amount of packaging materials used by all Master Kong products.

Total COD emission is the sum of COD emission of all factories
within the statistical scope. It refers to the COD emission after the
treatment of municipal sewage plant.
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Deeply Develop Human Resources and Create a Better
Workplace

Master Kong strictly abides by the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Law on the Protection of Women's
Rights, the Law on the Protection of Minors, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Protection of the Disabled, the
Regulation on the Employment of the Disabled, the Provisions
on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour and other relevant
laws and regulations, and formulates rules and regulations such
as the Recruitment Measures, the Appointment Procedures,
Resign Management Measures, and Reward and Punishment
Management Measures for Employees according to applicable
laws and regulations, so as to ensure the employment is carried
out in accordance with relevant rules and regulations and
protect the legitimate rights and interests of employees. The
Company adopts equal employment policy to avoid employment
discrimination of any forms and establishes the recruitment,
development and promotion system regardless of gender,
nationality and religion. Meanwhile, the Company also recruit a
certain proportion of disabled employees with equal salary and
benefits. We oppose any forms of forced labour and child labour
and any occurrence of such cases is strictly prohibited within the
Company.

In accordance with the Labour Law of the People’s Republic
of China, the working hours and vacations for employees are
stipulated in the labour contracts with our employees, so that
to make standardized management of employees’ vacations.
Employees are entitled to paid annual leave, personal leave, sick
leave, marriage leave, funeral leave, maternity leave, paternity
leave and breastfeeding leave, and apply for leave according to
the corresponding leave time and subject to relevant approval
authority.

Master Kong has put in place a management system for salary,
performance, and year-end bonus. In addition to paying the full
amount of “five social insurances and one housing fund” for
employees in accordance with national laws and regulations, all
businesses adopts diverse incentive measures such as monthly,
quarterly, and annual bonus for outstanding employees in
light of their specific circumstances, and provides employees
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SNEERL - BRMAIRERBERE TR with wedding, funeral, sick leave and additional subsidies for
HikEE - EHEFN  BREBRIEWN high temperature, high cold, heating, etc. In addition, we also
MEF - EXEBEZEN AL provide our employees with soft benefits such as travel, birthday
RET  ReMKARBEIENES benefits, and health check-ups. Despite the unfavorable economic
HE - REEE T AIKE o environment affected by the pandemic, the Company still provides

bonuses to employees to ensure their income levels.

ANERBFLER

ERRAFZESENMSRET  CEVARSELERE  URHELMAE - XFE - BERF(IER
A= REVE HR M F(LEAIAR | - REVEHEIDCI AR TIEREE IBF(LHER KL -

FENME SR T HMEmEINEIRT - SHRIEEHME T HERBERLR - BREADEREBEAMIEERY - B2
MRTEMENANERAFEE - 2EPH IR T EMENERELRER -

BEIFEE HRI{’EAIT RABEIER BMERTANERSERS  ZEZREBIHMEK - BEERK
BMANA—R TERTAE 0% HESZESKE X TEAERIMIBERNEIEER - BHH
BREEE y”&%&i@ Jr %‘?%ﬁﬁ*ﬁ#&%?&u - EREENREDE  ERRIRERETREE - Bl
MBIER BERAE- e BENBEL  BMLEEBEABRNER - BI#EST - BPFAEE - A
Bz EEE—ERR - {EEEZZK . %—EEE’\J&@JF&C%$‘* o AN - AREHEASZTEREE - BLIRIE - RMHE
ASTEREE  FEIAR - BREEEEHRE OA(Office Automation ' AEENL)F & L#EFT ©

Digital-based HR Management

In a rapidly evolving and volatile market environment, enterprises are required to improve operational efficiency to
cope with changes and challenges. In this year, Master Kong was granted the IDC digital transformation award of
“Future Work Leaders” for its “Boundless Sharing Empowers HR Digital Transformation Project of Master Kong”.

Master Kong has used the complete salary outsourcing service, which liberates HR from transactional work, so
that they could focus on human resource strategy and value-added services. Hence, it has accelerated our digital
HR transformation in an all-round way, and comprehensively helped upgrade our management and operation
system.

In order to better promote HR work efficiency and enhance employee experience, we have built an intelligent
HR system which integrates Bl reporting, management cockpit and self-service analysis, opens up multiple data
sources such as human resources, finance, and sales, establishes a data model suitable for intelligent analysis and
presentation, realizes data view management, multi-dimensional report design, intelligent analysis report design,
management cockpit and other functions as well as real-time display of data through the mobile terminal. With
a view to enhance the experience of new employees and realize the mobilization of production, management,
collaboration, and operations, we launched a pre-employment mini program to build a fast, low-cost, and high-
quality mobile application platform for new employees, department heads, and human resources. In addition, in
order to streamline the personnel workflow and operation, we promote the operation of the personnel workflow,
so that employee contracts and file management are centralized on the OA (Office Automation) platform.

=
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REEIREHEZS  TEROBE Protect the Health and Safety of Employees and Create a
Safe Workplace

EMEFEFAEIEIMNBERAER Master Kong attaches constant attention to provide employees
2 ke B BEEEESR with a healthy and safe working environment, and strives to
U EREEIRREZ S - &M effectively protect the health and safety of employees from the
BARET(REARANMBE L2 £ E aspects of prevention, management and control and fulfillment of
E) AR EARKMBEBZERNEE) responsibilities. We strictly abide by the Work Safety Law of the
(REARKFMBUEYE)E B X People’s Republic of China, The Law on Prevention and Control
BEHR WREEE T —RIAZH of Occupational Disease of the People’s Republic of China,
EERERESER  HEE - and The Fire Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China
T REEESFHEETZHEE and other PRC laws and regulations, and introduces a series of
2HNREEE  JEREBEI® internal management measures and contingent plans to carry out
EREALTE -  RRHEEBRERR multi-dimensional and comprehensive safety management and
AT ERBRR S —REEMA control from aspects such as production, construction and quality
BEIRHEEENERE  flWR management, thereby effectively safeguarding the health and
- tEHEFE BEE %2T safety of employees. The Company provides complete protective
RS - BRUBREBERIESS M equipment, such as eye masks, chemical protective gloves,
REBEHEITRNBEERELE - B earplugs and safety work clothes for front-line employees facing
BMEEREIABEERERSR I occupational disease risks or high safety risks, effectively reducing
EHZHL2EERE - EHAE the impact of special workplaces and environments on employees’
BOHD R BB RN ERIER health. In addition, we organize health checkups for employees
UREEIENZ2EBLBEEND every year, and regularly arrange safety guidance and training, and
N MABEIZTAESRZSD actively organize fire safety and fire equipment drills to improve
HeliE - AR AEEEZEIE- employees’ fire safety awareness and self-protection capabilities.
B RAESIHEREERQA New employees are required to receive safety training before
HIRE - @EEZ 2 (Environment, they can start production operations. Meanwhile, at all factories,
Health and Safety, EHS)#y#HEEZE Sk environment, health and safety (EHS) related requirements and
MHAE - FERXRAFHELHSERE arrangements are painstakingly followed and implemented.
&) - BASREHSFEIIE - W HEFKEHS Besides, Master Kong will continue carrying forth in-depth EHS
EERBETLRE2HE  THRE management activities and strictly undertake annual EHS audits.
EHS #aEiB R isisk - TETIRAE T We also have an EHS officer to provide ongoing safety education,
LTREEEB - conduct regular EHS skill training and competition, so as to keep

increasing the safe production awareness among employees.
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Promote Growth and Development of Employees and
Create an Intelligent Workplace

Master Kong attaches great importance to the development of
each employee. In order to better develop all-round outstanding
talents with “Diligence, Integrity and Ability”, the Company
arranges customized and diversified courses for employees at
different levels. We provide employees with a variety of trainings
such as general training on corporate culture, training on
professional knowledge and skill improvement and training on
management skills improvement based on their job level, career
development stage, and functional positions.

In 2020, the Company introduced a variety of training sessions
and projects, with an accumulated training time of more than
6.4506 million hours and an average of 113.67 hours of training
per person. In order that each employee can have access to and
learn from the training video clips delivered by the Company in
an easier and more effective way, and to cater to the fragmented
learning needs of the new generation of employees, this year we
continued to deepen the online learning model and enrich the
"WEME Online Academy” and “E-learning” and other mobile
learning resources, and updated the content of the courses in time
to ensure that employees can improve their knowledge reserves
and quickly improve their professional skills.

BEREFEEERER

BT PIMAREIE

Quarterly professional skills training for business functions

Staff outdoor development training
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In 2020, based on industry trends and functional requirements,
Master Kong continued to carry out in-depth cooperation with
external companies and consulting agencies, and established long-
term partnerships with a number of well-known domestic and
foreign companies and consulting companies such as HPO, REC,
Carnegie and Center, and provided forward-looking and scientific
knowledge and skills to employees.

All businesses carry out trainings as planned for on-job department
level, reserve management level and on-job management level
to strengthen management skills of middle-level supervisors and
enhance internal organizational skills. M series of on-job reserve
management ability improvement training courses adopt a method
combining centralized planning with hierarchical and grading
training. The entire stepped system is divided into nine levels from
MO to M8. M0-M4 is converted to online teaching through the
China-Europe Business Online Partner Learning Platform (China-
Europe Platform), and M5-M8 is for offline teaching. We have
designed highly targeted courses for each level. From the self-
management of grass-roots employees, to the management of
others by middle-level cadres, and then to the management of
the whole team by high-level cadres, we have achieved stepped
improvement and reinforcement. Meanwhile, targeted offline
reinforcement courses are added to supplement the lack of
practical operations in online training. At the same time, G series
of general education courses for all staff are also being promoted
through China-Europe Platform.

2EAEIRE FEE

Carnegie people skill series training courses National HR trainer special training
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Build Corporate Culture and Create a Better Workplace

The construction of corporate culture for Master Kong's business
operations, like the atmosphere surrounding the surface of the
earth, is the basic condition for Master Kong’s existence. Cultural
construction is the core and ideological guarantee, while business
operation is behavior and material basis, both of which are aimed
to jointly ensure the sustainable operation of the corporate. In
2020, in order to carry out top-down ideological promotion and
penetration well, Master Kong established a cultural construction
committee, to continue to improve the cultural construction
system gradually and pragmatically to ensure effectiveness.

The recognition and integration of all Master Kong people to its
corporate values is the cornerstone of Master Kong's sustainable
development, and newcomers and leading cadres are the top
priority of the cultural construction learning system. The content
and cases of corporate culture and values are deepened in
the new employee training to make them know, accept and
recognize its core values and quickly integrate into Master
Kong's organizational process. In 2020, the headquarter and all
businesses carried out 662 sessions of corporate culture theme
trainings for newcomers with a total of 676 hours. The inheritance
of corporate values and culture by Master Kong's cadres is the key
to cultural construction. The Cultural Construction Secretariat first
tried to use both positive and negative cases in respect of “ethical
conduct, teamwork, and professional attitude” experienced by
cadres in the manager-level training, to make the on-site cadres
deeply feel the profound corporate culture and behavior standards
accumulated by Master Kong in the past 28 years. In the future,
the cultural construction learning system will continue to be
improved, and the culture will be continuously emphasized and
inherited to ensure that management cadres and employees at all
levels have consistent understanding of culture and can effectively
practice it.

ERFEERMREE R EER

Master Kong's corporate culture construction that advances with the times
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2020 is an extraordinary year. Through the efforts of every Master
Kong people, we provided material support for medical institutions
and first-line anti-epidemic personnel on the premise of ensuring
the safety of epidemic prevention, food safety, and ensuring the
resumption of work and production. In order to meet the needs of
consumers, Master Kong employees took the initiative to stick to
their posts, combining internal collaboration with external win-win
cooperation, which made them gain consumers’ recognition and
trusty as well as social respect. In order to promote the concept
of "Positive thoughts brings positive energy, positive energy
brings transformation and upgrading power”, all Master Kong
people should learn from a benchmark, set an example and have
a direction for action. The Cultural and Construction Secretariat
publicly solicited Master Kong people’s exemplary deeds of
cultural behavior during the epidemic, and adopted the method
of supervisor recommendation, collective review and public
announcement for the first time. A total of 230 employees were
awarded the model of cultural behavior and awarded medals of
honor and honor certificate. In December 2020, we held the 2020
Master Kong People’s Model of Cultural Behavior Commendation
Conference at Shanghai operation center, inviting 11 outstanding
model representatives to accept the commendation, and among
which 6 representatives presenting their personal deeds on the
spot. Executive Director Wei Hong-Chen and the Company's
senior management and 48 supervisors of the Construction
Executive Committee attended to jointly witness this event. The
video of this commendation meeting and exemplary deeds were
disseminated on the factory closed-circuit television, WEME Online
Academy, corporate WeChat and other platforms, and a total of
57,259 people clicked and watched, and good publicity effects

were achieved.

;.-‘i?.'f-iﬁf.at
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2020 FE AN B ABITXLIT REBRYE KNG E LERTT

The 2020 Master Kong People’s Practice of Cultural Behavior Model Commendation Conference was held in Shanghai.
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Adhering to the spiritual culture of serving the frontline, the
cultural construction promotion committees of all businesses
integrated the business operation in an orderly manner,and held
a total of 708 sessions of self-promotion of cultural practice this
year. The instant noodle business carried out various activities
including the selection and broadcast of food safety excellent
figures, the "Quality Aerospace for Better Life” aerospace theme
solicitation, the fight against the epidemic with one heart and
the model workers around me, etc., to practice the cultural
concept into the behavior of employees, drive family and friends
to experience Master Kong's integrity and pragmatic concept,
hold a scientific and rigorous attitude to achieve aerospace quality
products, and integrate harmony into team operations, thereby
creating a new era of mutual prosperity and win-win results.
Pepsi beverage business inherited its “Glory”, and cultivated
its “Glory” stars and advocated its spirit for five consecutive
years, and integrated performance and win-win culture into our
employees’ daily life. Master Kong's beverage business and bakery
business focused on selecting first-line counterparts’ practicing
corporate cultural behavior cases and carrying out monthly reports
and quarterly broadcast. All businesses have collected a total of
331 cases and has publicized and broadcasted 106 cases. The
above efforts have effectively improved the front-line employees’
recognition of corporate cultural behaviors. Every great
undertaking is the result of the continuous struggle of generations
of ordinary employees. We have the confidence and ability to
work together to make Master Kong the most respected food &
beverage company.
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Community investment in 2020:
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Key performance indicators

2020 FBETXEZETHRR :
Hours contributed by employee volunteers in 2020:

#N29.48/ B
Approx 294,000 hours

Master Kong continues to be committed to the sustainable
development of the Company, constantly pays attention to
community needs and actively contributes to community
development to achieve the synergic development between the
Company and the majority of stakeholders. In 2020, Master
Kong continued to carry out community investment activities,
actively promoted the concept of sustainable development,
carried out public service activities in respect of food safety
science popularization and education on water, supported sports
events, focused on social services and provided support for the
development of agriculture, rural areas and farmers. Meanwhile,
the Company continued to reinforce college-enterprise
cooperation and help promote the development of education,
which was well recognized by all sectors of the society. We are
willing to constantly share the joy and happiness brought by “Life
+ Delicacy” with all partners.
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Promotion and Dissemination of the Concept of Sustainable
Development

In July 2020, the United Nations Development Programme
(UNDP) released the Private Sector Awareness of the Sustainable
Development Goals - A Survey Report on Business and
Sustainability in China. The report provides comprehensive
summarization and analysis on the implementation of Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs) by Chinese enterprises. Relying on its
outstanding achievements in promoting sustainable development,
Master Kong has stood out among nearly 100 invited companies
(including foreign companies in China) and has become the
best representative of the global sustainable development goals
keepers. In September, we were invited to participate in the 2020
China International Fair for Trade in Services (CIFTIS) and attended
the seminar to interpret the UNDP report as the main guest, and
discussed with the leaders of UNDP and representatives of relevant
enterprises on the direction and actions for the implementation
of SDGs by Chinese enterprises and made interpretations. The
theme of CIFTIS is global service, mutual benefit and sharing.
Master Kong's sharing of the basic points of food safety and
the construction of global partners at this event, driving the
sustainable development of the upstream and downstream
industrial chain and interpreted the service trade fair theme from
different perspectives.
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FRANE AGE SDGs BEER |
Master Kong was selected as SDGs practice case.

(PRI EAREERBFERRAMRRE)
Private Sector Awareness of the Sustainable
Development Goals - A Survey Report
on Business and Sustainability in China
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As one of the leading companies of national brands, Master Kong
proposed the development model of “Doing well by doing good”
and worked hard to widely spread and promote the concept
of sustainable development of “Doing well by doing good”,
and cooperated with various partners to jointly advocate the
“Doing well by doing good” sustainable development actions. In
September 2020, with the support of the National Brand Project
of Xinhua News Agency, Master Kong initiated and organized
the “Doing well by doing good - Sustainable Development Online
Forum” event. At the meeting, experts, scholars, and business
representatives from well-known domestic universities and leading
companies in various industries discussed how to implement
sustainable development in business community and promote the
concept and model of “Doing well by doing good”. Master Kong's
concept of “Doing well by doing good” received full support and
response from representatives of many participating companies,
which expressed their willingness to practice various measures
together to effectively promote the sustainable development of
the Company and society.
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“Sustainable Development Online Forum” was successfully held.
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Food Safety Science Popularization

Master Kong actively responds to the national food safety strategy,
gathers all forces, constantly explores food safety education, and
is committed to promote food safety awareness and knowledge
to society to achieve a food safety compliance society via food
safety science popularization.
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Served as a long-term partner in China’s aerospace industry,
Master Kong is committed to building a comprehensive knowledge
system, education system and application system that integrates
"aerospace + food safety” to improve the aerospace knowledge
and food safety literacy of the public, especially teenagers.
Master Kong constantly carried out the “A Tour Across China
for Space Exploration Spirit Promote - Master Kong Food Safety
Science Exhibition” within the year. On the event spot, children
can observe the spacecraft, assemble satellites by themselves,
and experience space travel via VR technology, learning about
aerospace and food safety knowledge in a fun way. Meanwhile,
Master Kong invited astronauts and experienced teachers in
aerospace science to deliver lectures on aerospace science, and
teachers managed to unlock the aerospace knowledge by applying
popular food science. As of the end of 2020, Master Kong's series
events of aerospace science had been held in more than 20 cities,
covering over 100 schools and affecting more than 100 million
people.

TRERMREHERAT L ERRMAR EHEE

Chuandong Zhao, one of the first batch of astronauts in China, was giving a science popularization lecture for teenagers
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In 2020, we also continued to explore innovative ways of science
popularisation. Relying on 5G networks, we set up “Cloud
Classrooms” and “Cloud Science Popularisation Exhibition”,
integrating offline and online content, breaking spatial and
geographical restrictions, to benefit teenagers in different regions,
and effectively promote the balanced development of science
popularisation education.
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Children were taking online courses of Master Kong Space Gastronome
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In 2020, the State Administration of Market Supervision and
other four ministries jointly issued the Campus Food Safety
Guarding Action Plan (2020-2022), requiring the strengthening
of food safety and nutrition education in primary and secondary
schools. In response to the call of the national policy and to help
the school food safety science education, Master Kong joined
hands with China Economic Net and the “China Food Safety 30
People Forum” to launch the “Food Safety Science Popularization
Program” in 2020. The activity is based on the theme of “interest-
based science popularisation of food safety for the public”,
through various activities such as open classes on food safety in
primary and secondary schools, online fun science popularization
answering contests, parent-child practice tours, etc., to strengthen
campus food safety pass on healthy and nutritious food
knowledge, and enhance teenagers’ food safety awareness.

RAZEPIENRIT
Food Safety Science Popularization Program
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Education on Water

Master Kong has actively responded to the “Education on Water”
public welfare activities initiated by the China Beverage Industry
Association for six consecutive years, helping primary school
students to form good drinking and water consumption habits
and being an active practitioner and disseminator of the concept
of "learning water, valuing water, and conserving water”.

To encourage students to participate in the activities and enjoy
the games, Master Kong, adhering to the “interest-based science
popularisation” concept, set up an immersive and interactive
classroom for children. This year, according to the characteristics
of each city, several projects including water purification
experiments and water-saving classrooms were especially designed
for this event to further guide children to increase their awareness
of water conservation and protection develop rational habit in
water consumption, and become a “green” devotee to promote
the conservation of water resources in the future.

FEEMEI &K ~ BoK -~ Sk IRE RS

Master Kong's “learning water, valuing water, and conserving water” education activity
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Sports Charity Events

The Outline for Building a Powerful Sports Country issued by the
State Council clearly points out that it is necessary to give full play
to the important role of sports in the new journey of building a
modern socialist country in an all-round way. For Master Kong,
supporting the development of China’s sports business has always
been our duty and responsibility as a national brand enterprise.
We deeply understand that building a powerful sports country is
not only at the level of competitive sports for the national team,
but is also indispensable to promote popular sports and achieve
national fitness.

Served as sport catering collaborative partner of marathon, Master
Kong has been keen on supporting marathon games nationwide
for years. We promote a scientific approach to serve catering,
that we particularly focus on runners, and ensure that they are
provided with sufficient energy for the event. As of 2020, Master
Kong has reached cooperation with more than ten domestic
marathons, covering millions of participants. Master Kong's “a
bowl of noodles after the race” has become a standard for many
marathon runners. In the future, Master Kong will continue to
support Marathon events with safe and reliable sports catering
services. In 2020, we also supported many badminton events
across the country, and established cooperative relationships
with badminton associations and large-scale badminton events
in Guangzhou, Shanghai, Beijing, Henan and other places to
promote the sustained, healthy and orderly development of
badminton in various regions.

Focus on Social Services

Master Kong is convinced that the development of an enterprise
is closely related to the overwhelmingly support from the society.
The Company strives to serve with its best endeavour to those in
need across a broad spectrum within community and does its best
to offer care via charitable undertakings.

In 2020, Master Kong conducted condolence visits to nursing
homes, kindergartens, schools, police stations, military units
and remote areas. We also actively delivered care and warmth
to the front-line workers under adverse working environment
across the country, such as traffic policemen and sanitation
workers, through various means and campaigns including “cool
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and refreshing stations” and “warm winter campaigns”. At the
same time, Master Kong pays a lot of attention to the growth
and development of the youth, it organized charitable events for
disabled and autistic children, providing warmth and support to
children.

As a member of an excellent state enterprise, after enduring
years of learning through disaster experiences, Master Kong has
established a system of rapid response for disaster relief. When
a disaster happens, Master Kong will swiftly show on the front
line at the scene of catastrophe, coming into the immediate
aid of the victims. In June 2020, a major flood occurred in
Qijiang District, Chongqging, the Qihe River surrounding areas
were severely affected, and some houses collapsed, landslides
happened, and roads were interrupted. Master Kong sent care
to the affected communities, firemen, and sanitation workers,
and provided drinking water and other material support. In July,
affected by heavy rainfall, the flood control situation in Hubei and
Jiangxi provinces was severe. Master Kong promptly organized
the donation of Master Kong instant noodles and drinking water
to the flood-stricken areas to provide supplies for the victims
and rescuers; in August, due to continuous downpours, Leshan,
Sichuan suffered extreme floods, and many places were severely
affected. Faced with the severe disaster, Master Kong responded
quickly, sending condolences to affected areas in time and
donating mineral water products.

Master Kong actively responds to the call for national targeted
poverty alleviation, and does a good job in providing assistance,
helping the country resolutely win the decisive battle against
poverty. In January 2020, Master Kong and China Glory Cause
Foundation jointly donated a total of 20,000 boxes of instant
noodles to impoverished people in Liangshan Yi Autonomous
Prefecture, Sichuan Province and Zhijin County, Guizhou Province;
in September, we implemented the sustainable development
concept of “Doing well by doing good” and headed for Yongxing
Town, Li County, Gansu to carry out paired assistance and donate
mineral water products.

In 2020, Master Kong supported the establishment of the
“Tomorrow Zhaoyang Scholarship” to provide scholarships for
college students with excellent academic performance, poor
family background and moral integrity. Since 2007, the Company
has sponsored 4,305 college students and awarded a total of
RMB16.26 million in scholarships. The project has benefited
students from all over the country. 2020 is the final year of our
country’s poverty alleviation. Master Kong strives to support the
increase in bonus studies, benefiting a total of 546 students.

B EER
2020 Annual Report 4 #§

81



IR (g REIATRE | Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BHRERR

FEEERREERRMIERD
X HEEREEERBEXREBRRR
A BETEED BREEMK
BoEDRRIEW BFRAENER
BERAREEMBASW  £HEE

4000 BEREE Y% °

LESN - BREM B EAR %R B E R M
B BPEVEEHRBRNEHE
H-BFEEMROEXHENES
BHkFE - ENEEAENABMER
EREEEELR  TERRRS

BEKF BAEHTEMLE
A s EBBETET HER
RBEEINITLEERS  XRRMK
2RI ZEERTHERD

BATEMZHESHIMBBERE

(Rainforest Alliance) °

RMBREE

FRENBEREREEEN T AKRIE
ZEe MBR s2EEERE
2P =R 51 FT B S W OR L
REGERE ARERLERE
MR XFEREFRRMZ LR
MEXLE  KROXMEEHRAS R
CHRABAINER - EREHET
- BEMBRERRREENA
XFBBRERERRENNBI
A BYTEIRORNE AR
Bl KA EBEDE=HRKS
ERIAMIER  UREEELER
MERLERE IHEARIHNE
REAIFEXRRAETHREXEZ A

82 EHEZERERAT

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Support for Agricultural Development

As a leading enterprise in the field of deep processing of
agricultural products, Master Kong actively responds to the
national initiative on targeted poverty alleviation, by taking
advantage of food manufacture industry, so as to enable higher
earnings for farmers. Every year, Master Kong purchases several
millions of tones of bulk agricultural products, benefiting more
than 40 million farmers.

In addition, Master Kong attaches great importance to establishing
mutually beneficial and win-win partnerships with suppliers and
farmers in developing countries. Every year, we regularly send
professional guidance teams to impart quality management
experience to pepper farmers in Malaysia and Indonesia, which
not only improves the level of agricultural management, but
also increases the local economic income. Moreover, it also
assists Brazilian orange juice suppliers in developing orange juice
derivatives and exchanging food safety control technologies, and
all relevant orange juice products are certified by the Rainforest
Alliance.

Reinforced School-Enterprise Cooperation

Master Kong resolutely carried out the policy of “production-
education integration” of the 19th National Congress of the
Communist Party of China that it joined hands with 32 colleges
and 51 vocational schools nationwide to commence on intensified
cooperation, conduct research on food safety-related topics,
support innovative research outcome and core technology
Industrialization, explore the model of “deepen the integration
between industry and education, and cultivate students and
talents together”. In terms of vocational education, Master
Kong continues to explore new ideas and new methods for
school-enterprise cooperation to support student training and
employment, and establishes a dual-subject long-term education
mechanism. It was successfully selected as the third batch of
modern apprenticeship pilot projects by the Ministry of Education
and won various honors such as Liaoning Province Industry-
Education Integration Enterprise Certification, Jiangsu Province
Technical Education School-Enterprise Cooperation Industry-
Education Integration Demonstration Enterprise.
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This year, Master Kong continued to deepen the cooperation
with Yuanpei College of Peking University. With our continuous
support, the Kant Lecture Hall of Yuanpei College was successfully
completed, marking the gradual expansion of the comprehensive
cooperation between Master Kong and Peking University from
teaching and research to broader areas such as academic
exchanges and infrastructure. In August, teachers and students
of Yuanpei College of Peking University came to Master Kong's
headquarter in Shanghai to carry out summer social practice
activities. Through visits to retail markets, visits to food safety
centers and brand halls, discussions with executives and front-
line sales staff of the Company, they gained insights into the
challenges and opportunities of traditional and new retail, bringing
innovative perspectives to the Company. Yuanpei's “Master Kong
Social Practice Team” won the Peking University competition for
two consecutive years. Master Kong supports the Peking University
Medical Department to use the big data of health care to explore
research in food development and other aspects to promote
the Company in the precise research and development of new
nutrition and health products, forming “education plus industry
to jointly serve the country; scientific research plus application to
extend the smart chain; medical plus nutrition to make people
healthier” to jointly contribute to the construction of a healthy
China.

R FEREBEES

EARTTIE R RSB R

Unveiling ceremony of the Master Kong Hall of
Yuanpei College of Peking University

Students from Yuanpei College of Peking
University visited Master Kong
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This year, Master Kong reached a strategic cooperation with
the world’s top-ranked Stanford University School of Design (D.
School) to introduce the methodology of the innovative course
Design Thinking into the training courses, and improve the Group's
internal organizational strength and the internationalization of
leaders.

At the end of 2020, Master Kong, JD.com, and the Wharton
School of the University of Pennsylvania’s three-party big data
joint construction project started. The three parties gave full
play to their respective advantages, deepened the integration of
the digital economy with the real economy and used big data
and artificial intelligence technology to innovate the business
management model, drive the development of the industrial chain
and better meet the needs of consumers. During the process
of digital transformation, Master Kong learns and draws on the
advanced concepts and practices of statistics and data analysis
from the world-renowned Wharton School, and cooperates with
the Wharton School to connect with e-commerce platforms
such as JD.com, and supports students to hold data competition
activities to improve students’ understanding and application level

of big data and artificial intelligence technology.

FRAME ~ R - ORIER 20 = 5 AR 2IE B REER
Launching ceremony of Master Kong, JD.com, and the Wharton School of the University
of Pennsylvania’s three-party big data joint construction project
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Serial Awards
No.
1 2020F EHE R MIFT R ESEE
China Food Enterprises Benchmarking Golden Chopsticks Award 2020

2 ETN\EFBHERLZEASLEEETRMLER
Top 10 Safety Management Enterprise Award of the 18th China Food Safety Conference

3 2020 Bt BB EHREHERE
Outstanding Chinese Enterprise in Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 2020

4 [BEABHEETE] tEEEDRE
Socially Responsible Enterprise 0f “Catering Industry Helps with Nation Fight the Epidemic”

5 20207 BIEREHT R ETVKER X
Outstanding Water-saving Enterprise in China’s Beverage Industry 2020

6 20207 BIEREHT R ENREE A 0%
Outstanding Energy-saving Enterprise in China’s Beverage Industry 2020

7 2019-2020F EH I FE R (T & ERIFE M E
Best Instant Food Innovation Grand Award 2019-2020

8 2020 BB SRR m A
Most Popular Instant Food Award 2020

9 FNERBERBAEFE
The 11th Tiger Roar Award Food Excellence Award

10 BNEBREFLHEAEREEHURE
Best Marketing Effect Award of the 11th Golden Mouse Digital Marketing Competition

1M FEEERFEHEABRTERESARIRE
Silver Prize in the Digital Media Integration Category of the 11th Golden Mouse Digital Marketing Competition

12 F1IB3ESREKBHETE
Bronze Prize Of the 13th ROI Festival Media Group

13 F20/EIAIBIFRE S SIS 5 5 R 12
Bronze Prize of the 20th IAl International Advertising Cross-Border Marketing
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We have, throughout the year ended 31 December 2020, complied
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), except for the deviations from code provisions A.4.1 and A.4.2.
The reasons for these deviations are explained below.

Code provision A.4.1

Code provision A.4.1 provides that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Our Company
deviates from this provision because the independent non-executive
Directors of our Company do not currently have specific terms of
appointment. However, the articles of association of our Company
provide that all the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being or, if the number is not a
multiple of three, then, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation and may offer themselves for
re-election. As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have
been put in place to ensure our Company’s corporate governance
practice in this aspect provides sufficient protection for the interests of
shareholders to a standard commensurate with that of the CG code.

Code Provision A.4.2

According to code provision A.4.2, each director (including those with
a specific appointment period) shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. According to the Company’s articles
of association, the chairman of the Board is not subject to retirement
by rotation. He is not included in the number of directors who are
required to retire each year. The Board believes that the continuity of
the leadership of the chairman of the Board is critical to the stability
of the Group’s development and the planning, formulation and
implementation of long-term strategies and business plans. Accordingly,
the Board considers that although the provisions of the above rules
deviate from Code Provision A.4.2, it is in the best interests of the
Company.

We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance
practices with reference to the latest corporate governance
developments.
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Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested with the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for the leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the business
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group's affairs. All the
Directors should make decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company. The main duties of the Board are as follows:

®  Responsible for the shareholders of the Company;

*  Formulate long-term and short-term strategic direction of the
Company, including development strategy, major investment,
acquisition and dispose of significant assets;

e Approve the Company’s annual budget and business plan;
e Supervise the management of the Company;
e Approve financial reports, annual reports and interim reports.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through
the Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a position to
exercise its powers in an informed manner, management provides
monthly management accounts and updates to the Directors for
the management report, provide detailed data of the company’s
performance, financial position and prospects, supported by the most
up-to-date financial data, combined with easy and comprehensive
assessment, who also have full and timely access to all relevant
information and may take independent professional advice if necessary.

Board composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making.

The Board currently comprises 9 Directors in total, with 6 Executive
Directors and 3 Independent Non-executive Directors whose biographical
details are set out in “Directors’ profile” section on pages 106 to 108 of
this report.
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The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties with its written terms of reference as set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board has reviewed the Company's
corporate governance practices and the compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance
practices with reference to the latest corporate governance
developments.

The Board has scheduled quarterly meetings per year and meets more
frequently as and when required. Agenda of the Board meeting are
collated by the board secretary and approved by the Chairman. Directors
may delegate some issues into the agenda of the Board meeting.
Board meeting notices issued in one month prior to the meeting to
each Director, and the accompanying agenda. During the financial
year ended 31 December 2020, seven Board meetings were held. The
attendance of individual director to the Board meetings in year 2020 is
summarised below:
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HE BTEESSERY
Number of Board

Directors Meetings Attended/Held

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Hong-Ming 7/7
Mr. Junichiro Ida 7/7
Mr. Wei Hong-Chen 717
Mr. Koji Shinohara 7/7
Mr. Yuko Takahashi 7/7
Ms. Tseng Chien 717

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 717
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 7/7
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 717

The Company Secretary keeps the Board Minutes of the Company for
inspection by the Directors.

Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the Board of Directors discusses
and approves major issues such as the Group’s strategic plan, annual
budget, key operational initiatives, major investments and funding
decisions. It also reviews the Group’s financial performance, assess and
identifies principal risks of the Group's business and ensures appropriate
implementation of measures to manage these risks.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. With the assistance of the Finance
and Accounting Department which is under the supervision of the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, the Directors ensure that the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group is in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also ensure that the publication of the financial statements of
the Group is in a timely manner.

The Company’s auditor’s reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements has been set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on
pages 131 to 139.
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Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

Each newly appointed director receives induction on the first occasion of
his appointment, so as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding
of the business and operations of the Company and that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements. Such induction is normally
supplemented with visits to the Group’s key business sites and/or
meetings with the senior management of the Company.

The Company provides, as appropriate, the latest developments in the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements and reading
material on relevant topics will be issued to directors where appropriate.
All directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company's expenses. All directors are entitled to seek independent
professional advice on responsibilities, expenses paid by the company.
To ensure that the directors have deepened their understanding of
the Group, senior management of the Company has conducted a
continuing professional development plan for the directors during the
year.

Summary for 2020 Directors’ Continuing Professional Development
shown as below:

(@ learn about China's various regional channels operating
conditions;

(b)  understand the production and operation status of each factory.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company organized
briefings conducted by the Company Secretary for all its directors, on
corporate governance and update on the Listing Rules amendments and
provided reading materials on regulatory update to all the directors for
their reference and studying.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.
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The Company has established the Audit Committee in September 1999
and currently has three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Lee
Tiong-Hock, Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun and Mr. Hiromu Fukada. Mr. Lee Tiong-
Hock acts as Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board of Directors
of the Company to ensure the objectivity and credibility of the financial
statements. The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the
review and supervision of the Group's financial reporting system, the
preparation of financial statements, annual and interim reports and
integrity of accounts, risk management and internal control systems.
As well as maintaining good corporate governance standards and
practices. It also acts as an important link between the Board and the
Company'’s auditor in matters within the scope of the group audit. The
Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to perform its
duties and will meet regularly with management, internal auditors and
external auditors, as well as review their reports. Three meetings were
held during the financial year ended 31 December 2020. Details of the
attendance of the audit committee meetings are as follows:

HEBITERRE
Members Number of meetings Attended/Held
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 3/3
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 3/3
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 3/3

The latest meeting of the Committee was held to review the results of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee was established on 11
August 2005. This Committee now comprises four Directors, Mr. Hsu
Shin-Chun, Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock, Mr. Hiromu Fukada and Mr.Wei Hong-
Ming. Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun acts as the Chairman of the Committee.

One meeting was held during the financial year ended 31 December
2020. Details of the attendance of the remuneration and nomination
committee meetings are as follows:

HEBITERRE
Members Number of meetings Attended/Held
Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 11
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 7
Mr. Hiromu Fukada 7
Mr. Wei Hong-Ming 171

EmEEr 91

2020 Annual Report 4 #§



P EEATRE | Corporate Governance Report

bl

rBEZRIUEERREFTENRE MR
Bzl HRBAERGABEIE
EMERELAE - HBIFRTEEN
BIUMEELG  WESSEREERIMT
EENEREEABNHNGE  BHAX
SEEELSREEZHFMENES &
EEFE - EALRT 8 Mt R A SR AT B
ZEENFRINESTSZRE  RELRE
B RHEMITESNRERBLENTES
RIBEAGER  UREECREREFTHE
EIFRFEMEFTSRLES  YHERZER
ENZTEFTNREFNERTFRAERAE
MRA - RAMBFEERN  ZEEHED
TERRE: RHNEESZRE  RELRE
B BERAEFEXNEZ TN K
RHEER BEEFREANGBE - Ao
EENENZRERNEFTERLER  AE
FZERESNEEABNTMETE -

ARBRFH BT -

() BREFEANFIHEK LD RE
ZRAFREMEGERE  F&)
MER

(b)) BEETE2HEGIEEBAFH -

AEBEERERESHE IEE2020F12
A31 BFENEEFERGRE M REAN
F 10

92 EHEZERERAT

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

The Committee was set up to review the structure, size and diversity
of the Board, identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members, assess the independence of the independent non-executive
directors, advise the Board on the remuneration of individual executive
directors and senior management, and consider and approve the
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management of
the Group, including the terms of salary and bonus schemes and other
long-term incentive schemes. The Committee also reviews the structure,
size and composition of the Board from time to time, assess the
performance of the Executive Directors and approve the terms of the
Executive Directors’ and recommends to the Board on appointments of
Directors and the succession planning for Directors, and to ensure that
the appointment and re-appointment of Directors are in accordance
with fair and transparent principles. During this financial year, the
Committee implemented works including: review the structure, size and
composition of the Board; review diversity status of existing members
of the Board and give advice; evaluate the biography of the Director
candidates and advise the Board in respect of the re-appointment of
the Directors; advise the Board in respect of the remuneration of senior
management.

The Company'’s remuneration policies are as follows:

(@) Remuneration policies and practices, including directors, should
be fair and impartial and transparent and comply with regulatory
requirements;

(b) a director must not be involved in the making of his personal
remuneration.

Details of the Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements.



AE F2020F 12 A1 A EE X fF1017
=EEREALTZMEARDT ¢

P EEATRE | Corporate Governance Report

The emoluments paid to the ten senior management individuals during
the year ended 31 December 2020 were as follows:

EEA"
SRESMSAR Emoluments band Number of individuals
2,220,290 ARM %= 2,664,347 AR#E RMB2,220,290 to RMB2,664,347
(2,500,001 7T % 3,000,000,87T) (HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000) 1
3,996,522 ARME 4,440,579 AR ¥ RMB3,996,522 to RMB4,440,579
(4,500,001 7 7C% 5,000,000787T) (HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000) 2
4,440,580 AR# % 4,884,637 AR RMB4,440,580 to RMB4,884,637
(5,000,001 7L %E 5,500,000/87T) (HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000) 2
7,104,928 AR ¥ % 7,548,985 AR RMB7,104,928 to RMB7,548,985
(8,000,001 L% 8,500,000,87T) (HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000) 1
8,881,159 AR £ 9,325,216 AR¥E RMBS,881,159 to RMB9,325,216
(10,000,001 7L 10,500,000 % 7T) (HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000) 2
9,769,275 ARM = 10,213,332 AR RMB9,769,275 to RMB10,213,332
(11,000,001 &= 11,500,000 7% 7T) (HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000) 1
27,531,592 AR# 2% 27,975,649 AR RMB27,531,592 to RMB27,975,649
(31,000,001 702 31,500,000 70) (HK$31,000,001 to HK$31,500,000) 1
10
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FBERE REEERE  BWRIBH
FAEN  FAREZERERLFRR -

The principal spirit of the internal control and risk management
procedures established by the Group is in compliance with five elements
in the COSO structure, i.e. control environment, risk assessment,
control activities, information and communication, and monitoring.
The goal of risk management is to keep the overall risk of the Group
within acceptable levels and to lay a good foundation for the Group’s
long- term development. Meanwhile, it can achieve the goal of
defining the management structure and authorization so as to enhance
the operational performance and efficiency as well as asset safety
protection, which ensures the reliability of financial reports while
complies with the requirements of national regulations.
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Under the supervision of the Board, the Group has established an
organization structure, responsibility and authority in the construction
of three lines of defense for risk management. The Audit Committee
will assist the Board to review the design and operation effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control system of the Group. As of
31 December 2020, the Group has been carrying out self-assessment
of internal control where a prudent and effective self-inspection
system has been established to achieve full coverage of external and
internal inspection on each aspect thought the management circle.
Meanwhile, more efforts have been put in supervision over subsidiaries
where management regulations have been formulated with a priority
to processes of higher risk and streamlined and implementable limits
of authority have been defined for approval of expenditures and
human resource affairs. In addition, the Group has been promoting
the monitoring work in respect of laws and regulations. According
to the internal audit of the internal inspection department, we have
not identified any material deficiency in risk management and internal
control. Therefore, the Board and the Audit Committee believe that the
Group's risk management and internal control system are effective.

The risk management system established by the Group sets “pursuing
sustainable development and assuming social responsibility” as
management objective. The management process includes risk
identification, risk assessment and evaluation, risk control and overall
monitoring. Firstly, the implementation of risk management objectives is
set through systematic and scientific methods. Then, through interviews
with management and risk seminars, risk identification and risk
management framework are completed. Thirdly, fully participate in the
discussion through senior management to complete the risk assessment,
and then formulate risk response strategies. Finally, continue to
implement risk control activities and supervision.

We will ensure the effective implementation of risk management
measure through periodic tracking and review after formulation of risk
response strategy. Through implementation of risk response measure to
our regulation and system, structural planning and operating process,
we further establish the enterprise risk management strategy to support
the Company in achieving the enterprise mid-to-long term vision and
strategic objective.
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In response to the ever-changing market trends, the Group has been
learning from international benchmark enterprises and improving the
operation of three lines of defense for risk management. Meanwhile,
in accordance with the three-line framework newly promulgated by the
Institute of Internal Auditors (lIA) of the U.S., the Group formulated its
risk management strategy for the next three to five years. Under the
instruction and guidance of the Board and the Operation Committee,
the Group focused on management of three major risks in 2020 with
specific countermeasures and strategies as detailed below:

1.1 Definitions:

e  Risk of operation is interrupted due to failure of
IT safety, operation and back-up system, such as
prevention and handling of system disorder, system
crash, safety protection or computer virus.

* Information management and control rights, network
threats, data center physical security risks, such as
malicious rights, network intrusion, data center power,
access control security or unauthorized access to the
information system as a whole.

e  Risk of out-of-control information systems caused
by external threats such as theft of equipment/data,
computer fraud, unauthorized access, and vandalism.

e Failure to effectively integrate business information
among IT systems.

*  Employee awareness of information protection is
weak, there is the risk of information leakage.
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1.2 Coping strategies:

Improve the operation and management regime
for information system based on PDCA to maintain
an effective support of information system to
organizational development and business continuation
and ensure its stable and effective operation,
thereby avoiding company losses and safeguarding
shareholders’ rights and interests.

[Plan] Determines the control objectives and control
measures based on risk assessments, laws and
regulations to measure organizational needs.

[Do] Implement the selected system operation
controls.

[Check] To conduct compliance check on control
measures based on the strategy, procedures, laws and
regulations.

[Action] Take corrective and preventive measures and
follow the improvement based on the internal control
and management review results.

Reinforce the information security management
system of the Company by adopting the 1ISO27001
information security management standard.

Achieve an upgrade of management system through
enhancing systems in aspects such as organizational
strategy, staff awareness, user access, information
assets safety, emergency management, system
operation, outsourcing management and legal
compliance management.

Achieve self-improvement of information security
management system through online and offline
publicization and implementation, theorical
penetration by departmental safety liaison officer,
periodic tour inspection and audit under the guidance
of external certification institutions and ongoing
follow-up on corrections.

Through the aforesaid, the Group is able to
continuously and effectively reduce the risk in leakage
of information relating to its core strategy, technology,
operation, financial reports and human resource, etc.
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Cross-functional collaboration promotes the feasibility
assessment of information systems, reviews and
coordinates cross-enterprise needs on a regular basis,
so as to avoid risks such as repeated establishment
or lack of synergies and inability of system data
integration. Deeply tap the value of information, build
an effective inter-system connection of information
and construct a commercial intelligence platform for
cross-system information analysis, thereby improving
the digital-based operation capability.

2.1 Definitions:

There are many kinds of raw materials and items, and
the management level of suppliers is uneven, which
threatens the risk of contamination of raw materials.

The supply chain process from raw material
procurement to product terminal sales is complicated,
and some links may be risky due to poor monitoring.

At present, the dissemination of media information is
not effectively managed, consumer awareness of rights
violations, and if the food information acquisition,
transmission or communication is not timely, or the
clarification of the rumors is not properly handled, it
may cause consumers to panic or misunderstand, and
eventually affect brand reputation.

2.2 Coping strategies:

Learn from advanced countries or standard enterprise
management experience, establish a food quality
screening and access system for raw materials, and
prevent plugging from the design side to effectively
control risks. Continuously improve the testing
capabilities of local factories and laboratories to ensure
the quality and safety of products from raw material
procurement to sales in retail outlets.
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Cooperate with relevant national requirements,
implement the main responsibility and quality system

|u

of the enterprise, promote the “three-level” self-
examination system of food safety quality, optimize
and implement regular unannounced inspection and
unqualified supplier delisting mechanism, and pay
attention to process traceability management and

inspection.

Do a good job of science popularization on the food
safety topic of concern to consumers, communicate
regularly with scholars and experts and government
regulatory authorities, use external professional
resources to transmit correct information, and improve
the food safety defense mechanism from crisis event
technical department to respond to SOP.

Definition

In the context of a fluctuating raw material price,
enterprises may be unable to avoid risk of fluctuations
in market prices as they fail to make reasonable
procurement prediction due to inaccurate judgement
on market trend or failure to adopting diversified
procurement strategy and tools.

Due to much reliance on a single supplier, enterprises
may be unable to develop or switch a new supplier in
a timely manner in case of supplier exit or occurrence
of quality problem, thereby impacting the operation of
the enterprise.

There are still room for improvement in the EHS
management in production process: the tightening
standard in emission cut and energy conservation,
enhancing staff awareness on health and certain
safety control and monitoring still to be improved,
which may pose challenges on the Company.
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3.2 Coping strategies:

e The Group has established a diversified procurement
strategy with two procurement approaches which
are centralized procurement by the headquarter and
separate procurement by local operations. Through
centralized procurement, the Group will have more
bargaining power and standardized procurement
process, while through making good use of local
procurement, the Group could fully utilize the
advantage of local resources, which could be an
effective complement to centralized procurement.

e  Establish the operational mechanism for daily
development and emergency switch to the alternate
supplier of key materials. Based on the important
levels of raw materials, the top-level material shall
have at least one principal supplier as well as three to
four (and more) alternate suppliers to ensure prompt
availability of the material at any time of emergency.
In the context of the global pandemic, the Group has
formulated risk control plan for imported materials
and supplies to ensure a safe supply.

e Establish and improve the supply chain EHS
management system and actively push forward the
certification of 1ISO45001/14001 dual systems. Make
optimization at the design side to effectively manage
risk and conduct daily safety inspection to reinforce
the effective implementation at the execution side.

To ensure sustainable operation of the Group and to show gratitude
to the social responsibility of stakeholders, the Group enhances risk
management and internal plan control. Through support from external
professional independent consultant, adhering to the operating idea
and CIS spirit of the Group, the 2021 guidance of optimization of risk
management and internal control system is specified and formulated.
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Point 1: Keep optimizing the significant risk management system
of the Group in line with the up-to-date philosophy in the world

The Group identify, assess and monitor group-level risks on a regular
basis. In addition, an annual risk management report will be produced
based on the information of risk assessment, so as to assist the
management in formulating risk coping strategies and increasing the
risk management standards. Daily supervision is conducted over the
implementation of risk coping plan with a view to reduce the remaining
risk to an acceptable level.

Point 2: Continue with the authority management system of the
GRC system to enhance the corporate governance level of the
Group

The Group designs and sets up a multi-system interactive authorization
management platform according to the control requirements of different
businesses. The approach from gradual piloting to full rollout ensures
operational safety, the segregation of incompatible responsibilities and
the efficiency and compliance of business operations, thus meeting
corporate governance and compliance requirements.

Point 3: Continue with the digital-based transformation to realize
the objective of ex-ante warning with information system

As the business model becomes increasingly complicated, the ex-
post manual inspection adopted in the past has become outdated.
Meanwhile, the increasing labor cost also makes the traditional
operation mode unsustainable. As such, the Group has carried out the
project to construct an IT inspection system tool, with a view to enhance
the control effectiveness of the three lines of defense.

The Company's internal audit department is an independent unit directly
under the Board. It is specifically responsible for performing the Group's
internal audit and anti-fraud investigation functions, as well as reporting
them to the Audit Committee and the Chairman on a regular basis or
when necessary. The internal audit functions conduct independent,
objective and risk-oriented internal audits of the Group's significant risks
in relation to its operation and execution of its significant strategies as
well as its related monitoring systems, so as to assess their effectiveness.
The anti-fraud investigation functions, through making investigation
into whistleblowing and anti-fraud audit, facilitate the management to
enhance anti-fraud system and the incorruptible culture and system,
so as to improve the overall governance environment of the Company.
Results and recommendations on internal control inadequacy from each
audit and whistleblowing investigation projects will be put into detailed
discussion with the management, and the management will formulate
improvement plans to improve the internal control inadequacy within
reasonable time, in order to continuously enhance the effectiveness of
the Company'’s risk management and internal control, thereby helping
the Company accomplish pre-set goals as well as protecting the interests
of Shareholders.
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In addition, the internal audit department also, through providing
consultation services on risk control, assists the management of the
Company in accomplishing its goal to safeguard business operation.
Such services may include internal consultation and in-house training
in respect of potential problems facing the Company, internally or
externally, in management of risks, internal control and compliance.

The Company strives to promote and maintain a liberal and probity
operation environment and corporate culture, and to formulate
whistleblowing policies and responding measures. The internal audit
department has set up a reporting mailbox and hotline and has
announced the above reporting channels in the Company’s website,
thus enabling employees and business partners to give confidential
reporting.

2021 will be the fourth year of the Group in promoting self-assessment
of internal control. Over the past three years, the Group has basically
established a normal and stable self-assessment system on internal
control (from zero to 80 scores). In the future, the Group will further
foster the risk owners’ sense of ownership in respect of risk management
and internal control, thus providing reasonable assurance for the
Group's accomplishing of its operation goals. All these are established
based on tools such as time series analysis, trend analysis, structure
analysis, decision tree analysis, regression analysis and compliance
analysis. Through the automated analysis and continuous monitoring of
risk data, we can achieve the goal of positioning and management from
the source of risk. Through the steady implementation of the above
steps, we can effectively ensure the Company’s corporate reputation
and brand image maintenance, value creation and risk management
mechanism are in line with the expectations of stakeholders.
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In respect of the procedure of dealing with and disseminating insider
information as well as the internal control measure:

e The Group strictly complies with the disclosure requirements
of the Listing Rules and the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information published by the Securities and Futures Commission in
June 2012 for dealing with and disseminating insider information;

e The Group discloses broad and non-exclusive information to
the public through financial report, announcement and official
website;

e  The Group has established the inside information management
rules throughout the Group and provides to its employee trainings
in respect of inside information management. Senior management
and general staff who can access inside information due to
their rankings or duties are required by the Group to assume
confidential obligations in respect of inside information. In respect
of result announcement or material transaction, strictly controlling
and limiting the scope of staff who can accessing information, the
material sensitive information is concealed by confidential code
(including electronic, written and verbal), and giving a written
notice about the lock-up period and other matters required for
special attention to avoid insider information.

Mazars CPA Limited is the Independent Auditor of the Company.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, total fees paid/payable in
connection with the provision of audit and non-audit services to Mazars
CPA Limited amounted to RMB9.719 million and RMB0.477 million
respectively.

Mr. Ip Pui Sum of Sum, Arthur & Co., Certified Public Accountants,
an external service provider, has been engaged by the Company as its
company secretary. Mr. Ip’s primary contact person at the Company is
Mr. Kuowei LIU, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Mr. Ip has taken no less
than 20 hours of relevant professional trainings to update his skills and
knowledge.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company convened and
held one annual general meeting (“Annual General Meeting”) and one
extraordinary general meeting (”Extraordinary General Meeting”). The
attendance records of each Director at the general meetings are set out
below:

g/ BIEERE
Number of Meetings
Attended/Held
RREFAE BRRBBIAE

Annual General Extraordinary

B= Directors Meeting General Meeting
HITEE Executive Directors

BMERETE Mr. Wei Hong-Ming 11 01
HHEAA L Mr. Junichiro Ida 0/1 01
BARKEE Mr. Wei Hong-Chen 0/1 01
BIRERFTE Mr. Koji Shinohara 0/1 0/1
EEBEELE Mr. Yuko Takahashi 0/1 01
Bt Ms. Tseng Chien 01 01
HUIHFNITES Independent Non-executive Directors

ERFTE Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun 171 171
FRE\EE Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock 11 11
R R E Mr. Hiromu Fukada 0/1 01

R —R A ERERFRAFEREAR
NEARRERARENEERNREGEARQAFD
BEBRAT LR 10% MR EER ARG
E=QEREEBR  EXEFZRER
NEEBERE ST REBRRESIRE
NERIEEEBERFIANEIE - ZEE
HE KV ELFREEBEREREZEARRT
&Rt - RBERFEKRA 21 RA
ETeUARBEDH  REBERBAR
RIBBEIREE ST RBSERERFARE -

BRENAGNE@MHREAINEXER
AERLEMHARINERE  TBLE
WHEEARFRN AR ER G0 F

yl[o

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than 10% in total of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall all time have the right, by written requisition to the
Board to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition
pursuant to Article 57 of the Company’s articles of association. Such
requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
office of the Company. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the shareholder(s) making the
requisition may do so in accordance with the provision of Article 57 of
the Company’s articles of association.

The written requisition requiring an extraordinary general meeting called
can be sent to the principal place of business of the Company as set
out in the “Corporate Information” section of this annual report for the
attention of the Company Secretary.
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The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the same
voting rights and are entitled to the dividend declared. Details of
shareholders’ rights have been set out in the Company’s article of
association.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information
of the Group to shareholders through the publication of notices,
announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports. Moreover,
additional information is also available to shareholders through the
Investor Relations section on the Company’s website. The Board also
welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting the Group and
encourages them to attend shareholder’s meetings to communicate any
concerns they might have with the Board or management directly.

Shareholders could also send email directly through the Investors section
in the Company’s website www.masterkong.com.cn for any enquiries.

There were no changes to the Company's articles of association for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting
shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with
a sustainable dividend policy. The Company'’s dividend policy aims
to allow shareholders to participate in the Company's profit and for
the Company to retain adequate reserves for future development.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Company would consider
various factors including the Group's actual and expected financial
performance, the Group’s liquidity levels and future development plans,
general economic and financial conditions, business cycle of the Group,
internal or external factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance of the Group, and other factors that the Board
considers relevant.
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The Group disseminates the latest information to investors and the
public in strict compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Listing Rules in an open, fair and transparent manner. To facilitate
communication between senior management and the public, the Group
regularly hosts shareholder meetings, investor and analyst briefings and
company visits. In addition, the Group organises road show and attends
investor conferences to meet with global Investors and shareholders
in an effort to gather suggestions and comments. In 2020, the Group
conducted more than 300 meetings with approximately 1,900 analysts
and fund managers (person-time). Investors can also obtain useful
information and updates on the Group’s business development from our
websites. The Group is committed to enhance corporate transparency
and the quality of disclosures.

The Company is a constituent stock of Morgan Stanley Capital
International (MSCI) China Index and Hang Seng China (Hong Kong-
listed) 100 Index. The Group is currently covered by 25 investment banks
and securities firms, which shows our investment and development
potential.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. All Directors have confirmed, following specific
enquiry by the Company, that they fully complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the review period.
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Executive Directors

WEI Hong-Ming, aged 43, was appointed as Chairman of the Group
on 1 January 2019. He is the elder brother of Mr. Wei Hong-Chen. Mr.
Wei holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Mathematics from King's
College London, a Master of Science degree in Mathematics from Brunel
University in the UK, and a Master of Science degree in Management
from the Graduate School of Business at Stanford University in the U.S..
He had worked as an asset allocation analyst at Makena Capital in the
U.S., which was invested by Paul Allen, the co-founder of Microsoft. Mr.
Wei joined the Group as a project manager of the CEQ’s office in 2006,
and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Group in 2015. Mr.
Wei had led many projects such as the development blueprint of the
MIS Group management system promoted by a number of international
consulting companies, and made long-term effective planning for the
digital transformation and supply chain layout of the future group
system.

Junichiro IDA, aged 59, was appointed as Vice-Chairman of the Group
on 15 November 2013 and appointed as an Executive Director of the
Group in May 2002, is the President of Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd. After
graduating from Rikkyo University in 1985, he joined The Fuji Bank,
Limited and worked there for six years. In 1992, he joined Sanyo Foods
Co., Ltd. He became the President of Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd in June 1998.
Mr. Ida is currently the Director of Sanyo Foods Corp. of America as
well as the Director of Caraway Pte Ltd (J/V of package foods business
between Olam International Limited and Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd in Africa)
and Honorary Consul of the Kingdom of Morocco in Gunma. He is also
the Representative Director of Sanyo Foods Scholarship Foundation, the
Representative Director of Sanyo Foods Culture and Sports Foundation,
the Director of Japan Convenience Foods Industry Association and the
Chairman of the Board of Save the Children Japan.

WEI Hong-Chen, aged 38, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Group on 1 January 2019. He is the younger brother of Mr.
Wei Hong-Ming. Mr. Wei received his Bachelor degree from Imperial
College London, Master's degree from Waseda University, and MBA
from Harvard Business School. He had worked at Blackstone Group’s
New York office and the headquarter of Pepsi Co. He was appointed
as a Director of KSF Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. (formerly known as
Tingyi-Asahi Beverages Holding Co., Ltd.) since February 2015. Mr. Wei
has accumulated many years of experience working in the Group, and
during which has contributed to the forming of strategic partnerships
with international corporations such as Starbucks and Disney.
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Executive Directors (Continued)

Koji SHINOHARA, aged 53, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Group on 28 May 2015. Mr. Shinohara joined Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd.
in August 2014 as the executive director and Head of Marketing. After
graduating from the Department of Economics, Keio University, Japan
in 1990, he worked in Coca-Cola (Japan) for brand marketing, sales
and business management. In 2007, he was the Vice President of brand
marketing of Coca-Cola (Japan). In 2008, he was the Global Senior
Director of ready-to-drink (RTD) coffee and RTD tea section of Coca-
Cola Atlanta headquarter. In 2010, Mr. Shinohara was the Senior Vice
President of brand marketing of Coca-Cola (Japan). He has more than
20 years working experience in the brand marketing industry.

Yuko TAKAHASHI, aged 58, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Group on 9 August 2019. Mr. Takahashi joined Sanyo Foods
Co., Ltd. in 2015 and is the executive director, Head of Overseas
Business Division and President of Sanyo Foods Corp. of America. After
graduating from Tohoku University, he worked with Ajinomoto Co.,
Inc. from April 1986 to August 2015 and served in various positions
in its Overseas Business Division, including as Marketing Director of
Ajinomoto Co., (Thailand) Ltd., President of Ajinomoto Poland Sp z
0.0., and Corporate Planning Director of the Europe and Africa Division.
He has more than 30 years of working experience in the global food
industry.

TSENG Chien, aged 62, has been appointed as an Executive Director
of the Group since 31 December 2019. She graduated from the
Department of Economics at Soochow University in Taiwan and
joined the Group in August 1996. She has served as the Head of
Accounting Department of the Group’s headquarters, Head of Finance
and Accounting Department of the Instant Noodle Business, Head of
Finance and Accounting Department of the Beverage Business, Chief
Financial Officer of the Group's Beverage Business and Chief Financial
Officer of Ho Te, one of the main shareholders of the Group. While she
was serving in the Group, Ms. Tseng has successfully introduced the
computerized SAP to the Beverage Business in 2003 and formulated SOP
operation guidelines for various functions of finance and accounting as
well as internal control. Later, she participated in the cooperation with
international partners Asahi and PepsiCo in 2004 and 2013, respectively.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

HSU Shin-Chun, aged 65, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group in October 1999. He received a
bachelor’s degree in Business Administration and EMBA degree from
National Taiwan University in 1979 and 2006 respectively. From 2002
to 2012, he served as the chief financial officer of Yingye Da Co., Ltd.,
a listed company in Taiwan, and from 2011 to 2017, he served as the
chairman of the board of directors of Yitong Solar Energy Technology
Co. He has also served as a director and supervisor of several Taiwanese
companies (including listed companies) since 2000. He has more
than 17 years working experience in the financial industry and has
comprehensive knowledge in securities investments, corporate finance
and financial engineering. He is also a Certified Financial Analyst in
Taiwan.

LEE Tiong-Hock, aged 81, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Group since September 2004. Mr. Lee
has over 28 years of experience in commercial and investment banking.
From 1977 to 1987, he served as the senior manager of marketing
department of an international bank in Hong Kong and, concurrently,
as general manager of its two deposit-taking subsidiaries. During 1989
to 1997, he was engaged in corporate finance advisory business, and
since then in private financial consultancy business in Hong Kong. He
is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute and a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Director.

Hiromu FUKADA, aged 91, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Group since 3 January 2012. After
graduation from University of Tokyo, he went to University of Oxford,
and specialized in politics and economics. He held important positions
in Japanese Ministry of Foreign Affairs from 1951. He had served as
Minister of the Japanese Embassy in the U.S., Ambassador of OECD,
Singapore and Australia, and director of Economic Affairs. Mr. Fukada
had been the Auditor of Ueno Fine Chemicals Industry, Ltd. from 2006
t0 2016, and he is currently the Advisor of the same company.
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IP Pui-Sum, aged 61, graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic with
a Higher Diploma in Accountancy in 1982. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (United Kingdom)
and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors,
the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants, the Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators) and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
He also obtained a Master Degree in Business Administration in 1996.
Mr. Ip has 25 years of experience in public accounting and company
secretarial practices. He is also a certified public accountant (practicing)
in Hong Kong. He joined the Group in September 1995.

James Chun-Hsien WEI, aged 63, was appointed as Chief Executive
Officer of the Group on 1 January 2015. Prior to that Mr. Wei was
appointed as CEO of Food Business of the Group on 1 January 2013.
Prior to joining the Group, he was a senior advisor of CVC Capital Asia
Pacific. From 2009 to 2011, he was the Executive Board Member and
the President of the Asian region of Beiersdorf Aktiengesellschaft Group.
From 2003 to 2009, he served as the Senior Vice President of Asia
Pacific region of Avon Products Inc., where he was responsible for the
operations in 10 markets, including Japan, Taiwan, Australia, Philippines
and India. Before that, Mr. Wei spent 19 years at Procter & Gamble
where he rose to become the Vice President and General Manager of
Great China, overseeing the company’s health and beauty care business
in that region. Mr. Wei built P&G Pantene PRO-V and SK Il business
model with global turnover in multibillion-dollar, and based on Taiwan's
success models. Mr. Wei holds a B.S.E.E from National Taiwan University
and an M.B.A from the University of Chicago Booth School of Business
in the U.S.. Mr. Wei retired from his role as the CEO of the Group on 31
December 2020.

Richard CHEN, aged 58, is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group.
Before his appointment on 1 January 2021, Mr. Chen had long worked
as the Chief R&D Officer in the Group since February, 2013 and made
remarkable achievements in nurturing new generation talents, building
cooperative relationships with external partners, ensuring food safety
and constructing technology platforms. Mr. Chen, after graduation from
the Department of Chemical Engineering in National Taiwan University,
had worked for Procter & Gamble and accumulated 25 years of
experience in global R&D management prior to his joining of the Group.
Mr. Chen, trilingual in Chinese, English and Japanese, was engaged in
consumer product innovation and R&D capability building across the
U.S., Japan and China.
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KuoWei LIU, aged 50, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group.
He joined the Group in 2006, has been the Manager, Assistant Vice
President and Vice President of Finance and Accounting Department.
Prior to joining the Group, he was Special Assistant and Assistant
Manager of Finance Department, General Manager’s Office of Taiwan
Mobile Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor of Science in Mechanical
Engineering of Taiwan National Cheng Kung University, Master of
Computer Science of Imperial College London and an M.B.A. from
Wharton School at the University of Pennsylvania. During his study in
Wharton School, he was awarded the Fulbright Scholarship, Mr. Felix
Chang's Memorial Scholarship, Dr. CF Koo's Scholarship, Wharton MBA
Graduate Grant and First Year Honor.

Walt WU, aged 60, Chief Human Resources Officer of the Group. He
graduated from the Institute of Human Resource Management, National
San Yat Sen University (Taiwan). Mr. Wu joined the Group in November
2005 as the Senior Assistant Vice President and Vice President of human
resources of the Beverages Business. He was the Chief of Staff of CEO
office in September 2014 and since November 2014, he has served as
Chief Human Resources Officer. Prior to joining the Group, he worked
in Twinhead International Corp. as an Assistant Manager of Human
Resources, Tsrc Corporation and The Home World Group as an Vice
President of Human Resources. Mr. Wu has 30 years of experience
in human resources management, with expertise in strategic human
resource management, human development. He endeavors to build the
sustainable development talent team, to promote organizational change
and make full advantage of human resources benefits, realizing the
organizational transformation.

Frank Wang, aged 50, is the Executive Vice President of CEO Office. He
joined the group in 2008, has been the Head of Strategic Management
dept. of Instant Noodles business, Head of Strategic Management dept.
of Master Kong Beverage business and Pepsi Beverage business, Head
of Chairman’s Office and Head of Corporate Development dept. Mr.
Wang is responsible for corporate strategy, organization restructure,
information technology, internal control, legal and public affairs in
the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang served as Associate
Director in KPMG Taiwan, Senior Consultant in Computer Associates’
JV, where he was in charge of Asia Pacific business. He has years of
experience in business transformation and value chain integration.
Mr. Wang holds a Bachelor of Science in Bioenvironmental Systems
Engineering from National Taiwan University, a Master Degree in
Civil Engineering from Columbia University, and a Master Degree of
Graphic Communication Technology and Management from New York
University.
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Max HUANG, aged 57, is the Executive President of the Group's Instant
Noodle Business. He holds a BBA from National Taiwan University
of Technology. Mr. Huang joined the Group in December 2010 and
successively served as Supervisor of Sales Department, General Manager
of Northwestern District, General Manager of East China District,
Regional Executive Vice President of North District, and Executive Vice
President of Instant Noodle Business. Prior to joining the Group, in a
total of 22 years, Mr. Huang served for DaChan Group and business
planning department of the Lucky Royal Co., Ltd, which is the related
company of Nanchow Chemical Industrial Co., Ltd. Mr. Huang has over
29 years' extensive management experience in sales and marketing.

TSAI, TZU-YUAN, aged 60, is the Executive President of the Group’s
Beverage Business. He joined the Group in December 1994, General
Manager of Shenyang Tingjin Food Co., Ltd in November 1998, Vice
president of South District of the Group’s Beverage Business in March
2016 and was appointed as the President of the Group's Beverage
Business in November 2018. Prior to joining the Group, he worked for
Fukeyule Co., Ltd and Qiaoju Trading Co., Ltd. Mr. Cai is particularly
familiar in sales & marketing and business strategy, familiar with the
China market operations. He has rich management experience and
strong execution capabilities.

Vincent LIU, aged 61, was appointed as the President of the Pepsi
Beverage Business in December 2014. He joined the Group in 2000 and
has served as General Manager or Regional General Manager of Chong
Qing Tingyi, Chong Qing Tingjin, Wuhan Tingjin and Hangzhou Tingjin.
Prior to joining the group, he has worked for British Trading Company
TAIT CO. Mr. Liu is particularly familiar with management in sales and
marketing, and has over 20 years extensive experience.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 47 to the
financial statements.

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and sale of
instant noodles and beverages in the PRC.

An analysis of the Group's revenue and profit (loss) attributable to
owners of the Company by major segments is set out below:

PR R B E R
Profit
&S attributable to
Revenue owners of the Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
AR For AR MTFor AR¥For ARMTFr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
pakidil Instant noodles 29,509,910 25,300,422 2,733,231 2,199,709
/A Beverages 37,279,923 35,599,621 1,594,042 945,939
Efb Others 828,002 1,078,115 (265,010) 185,333
&5t Total 67,617,835 61,978,158 4,062,263 3,330,981

REEBRAFE 2 XK EMEREER
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12 A31 B L8 0] g8 T H A @ B A0
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

A review of the business of the Group during the year under review and
a discussion on the Group’s future business development, possible risks
and uncertainties that the Group may be facing and important events
affecting the Company occurred during the year ended 31 December
2020 are provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” on
page 7, the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 10 to 27, the section headed “Prospects” on page 28 and
in the section headed “Risk Management and Internal Control” of the
"Corporate Governance Report” on pages 93 to 102 of this annual
report.
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An analysis of the Group's performance during the year ended 31
December 2020 using financial performance indicators is provided
in the “Financial Summary” on pages 3 to page 5 and in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 27 of
this annual report.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 140.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of US5.54
cents per ordinary share, and a special dividend of US5.54 cents per
ordinary share, totalling US$623 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB4,062 million).

The final dividend and special divided will be paid on or before 14 July
2021. Shareholders registered under the Hong Kong branch register of
members on 15 June 2021 will receive their dividends in Hong Kong
dollars.

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 144 to 145.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are set out
in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the investment properties of the Group are set out in note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 3 to 4.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company's
shares by the Company or any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's shares during the year.
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BlZ=A

RHRE
i A & Number of share
Date of grant options granted
2008 F3 A20 H 11,760,000
20 March 2008
2009 F4 A22 H 26,688,000
22 April 2009
2010 F4 A1 A 15,044,000
1 April 2010
2011 F4 A12 H 17,702,000
12 April 2011
2012 %4 H26 H 9,700,000
26 April 2012
2013 5 A27 H 11,492,000
27 May 2013
2014 %4 A17 H 12,718,500
17 April 2014
2015 F6 A5 H 17,054,000
5 June 2015
2016 7 A4 B 10,148,000
4 July 2016
2017 F4 A21 H 11,420,000
21 April 2017
BRMEERERAT

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

At the extraordinary general meeting (the "EGM") of the Company
held on 20 March 2008, the shareholders approved the adoption of the
share option scheme (the “2008 Share Option Scheme”), with a term of
ten years from the date of adoption.

In view of the expiry of the 2008 Share Option Scheme, the shareholders
of the Company adopted the new share option scheme (the “2018
Share Option Scheme”) at the EGM held on 26 April 2018, with a term
of ten years from the date of adoption.

(a) 2008 Share Option Scheme

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2020, no share
options were granted by the Company in accordance with the
terms of the 2008 Share Option Scheme.

The terms of the 2008 Share Option Scheme are in accordance
with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Detailed
arrangement for the 2008 Share Option Scheme is shown as

below:
Table A
1TEE

Exercise price
1TEHR (&)
Exercisable period (HKS)
2013 %53 A21 BHZE2018 43 A20 H(1) $9.28
21 March 2013 to 20 March 2018 (1)
2014 %4 A23 HE2019 F4 A22 HQ) $9.38
23 April 2014 to 22 April 2019 (2)
2015 F4 A1 BZE2020 %3 A31 HQR) $18.57
1 April 2015 to 31 March 2020 (3)
2016 F4 A12 BHZ=2021 F4 A11 B(4) $19.96
12 April 2016 to 11 April 2021 (4)
2017 F4 A26 BHZE2022 4 A25 H(5) $20.54
26 April 2017 to 25 April 2022 (5)
2018 45 A27 HZE2023 45 A26 H(6) $20.16
27 May 2018 to 26 May 2023 (6)
2019 4 A17 BZE2024 F4 A16 B(7) $22.38
17 April 2019 to 16 April 2024 (7)
2020 %6 A5 HZE2025 F6 A4 H(8) $16.22
5 June 2020 to 4 June 2025 (8)
2021 7 A4 BE2026 7 A3 H(9) $7.54
4 July 2021 to 3 July 2026 (9)
2022 %4 A21 BE2027 %4 A20 H(10) $10.20

21 April 2022 to 20 April 2027 (10)
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BZ<B

#% RFAS

Name Date of grant

ez

Executive Director

B 201054718

Tseng Chien 1 April 2010
W1E4E128
12 April 2011
012547268
26 April 2012
W01355H278
27 May 201
14545178
17 April 2014
01556758
5 June 2015

R4 WITE4ANA

WeiHong-Ming 21 April 2017

REK WI7F4A 2R

WeiHong-Chen 21 April 2017

ThES

Chief Executive Officer

1 013557278

James 27 May 2013

Chun-Hsien Wei  2014£4 A17H

17 April 2014
201556A5A
5 June 2015
201657 A48
4 July 2016
W1754A218
21 April 2017

g
Exercise
price
B
HKS

18.57
19.96
20.54
20.16
238
16.22
10.20

1020

20.16
2238
16.22

154

10.20

bol=l
BimE
Closing price
of the shares
on the date
of grant

B

HK$

1842
19.96
19.88
20.05
22.35
15.92
10.20

10.20

20.05
2235
15.92

754

10.20
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The summary below sets out the details of movement of the share

options during the twelve months ended 31 December 2020 pursuant

to the Share Option Scheme:

Table B
BREHR
Number of share option
2020
#2020 R FREEH 12R318
1818 EREL BiTfE /5% pd 3]
28 Granted Exercised Cancelled/ Balance as
Balance as at during during  lapsed during  at 31 December
1 January 2020 the period the period the period 2020
176,000 - - 176,000 -
206,000 - - - 206,000
112,000 - - - 112,000
140,000 - - - 140,000
164,000 - - - 164,000
232,000 - - - 232,000
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
904,000 - - - 904,000
1,148,000 - - - 1,148,000
2,006,000 - - - 2,006,000
4,300,000 - - - 4,300,000
4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000

SRR
i
THRmE
Weighted
average
closing price
immediately &
before exercise  Note
B
HKS$

- BA3)
Table A(3)
- BA®
Table A (4)
— BAp)
Table A (5)
— EAl
Table A (6)
- BAD)
Table A(7)
- EA®
Table A (8)
— EA10)
Table A (10)
— BA10)
Table A (10)

— BEAb)
Table A (6)
- BAD
Table A(7)
- EAB
Table A ()
- BA9
Table A(9)
— BA10)
Table A (10)
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[B7B (

ft2 RFEA

Name Date of grant

IZRR

Substantial shareholder

RN W01084A18

Wei Ing-Chou 1 April 2010
WI1E4LR128
12 April 2011
012548268
26 April 2012
013558278
27 May 2013
W14E4R178
17 April 2014
W01556A58
5 June 2015

2tifEE W1084A18

Other employees 1 April 2010
W1E4A128
12 April 2011
2012545268
26 April 2012
013558278
27 May 2013
144178
21 April 2017
201556 F5H
21 April 2017
01657548
4July 2016
W1754A218
21 April 2017

a3
Total
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iR

Exercise

price
B
HKS

18.57
19.96
20.54
20.16
238

16.22

18.57
19.96
20.54
20.16
238
16.22

7.54

1020

BFAH2
RRmE
(Closing price
of the shares
on the date
of grant
BT

HKS$

18.42
19.96
19.88
20.05
2235

15.92

18.42
19.96
19.88
20.05
2235
15.92

754

10.20

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

#2020%
1A1R
&k

Balance as at
1 January 2020

2,200,000
2,264,000
1,368,000
1,390,000
1,486,000

1,726,000

6,261,000
7,822,000
5,186,000
5,756,000
6,657,000
10,728,000
4,092,000

4,770,000

77,094,000

Fhii
Granted
during
the period

Table B (Continued)

kR
Number of share option

20208
£ FREHEH 12831R
BT zs: 3
Exercised Cancelled/ Balance as
during  lapsed during at 31 December
the period the period 2020
- 2,200,000 -
- - 2,264,000
- - 1,368,000
- - 1,390,000
- - 1,486,000
- - 1,726,000
- 6,261,000 -
- 512,000 7,310,000
- 370,000 4,816,000
- 424,000 5,332,000
- 494,000 6,163,000
- 1,158,000 9,570,000
600,000 120,000 3,372,000
- 200,000 4,570,000
600,000 11,915,000 64,579,000

RBAREA
4
THkmE
Weighted
average
dlosing price
immediately
before exercise
ER

HKS

14.74

iE
Note

AB)
Table A(3)
Ald)
Table A (4)
Af5)
Table A(5)
Al6)
Table A (6)
A7)
Table A(7)
A(8)
Table A(8)

A3)
Table A(3)
Al4)
Table A(4)
A(5)
Table A (5)
Alb)
Table A (6)
A7)
Table A(7)
A8)
Table A (8)
A9)
Table A(9)
A10)
Table A(10)



(b)

B E2020F12A31HILE+Z@A
M AEBEBIRBERETE
600,00088 Ax & - IN#EFHITRER
7.54%8 7T + 111F B Z BB MNAEF UL
MER14.7487T o FFHERERER
B ERERMFE30

# BEMNASARBNAMESTEEREM
AITES - EMEETENHNX
= A Z W E{EFE D B A Profit
Surplus Holdings Limited A Profit
Surplus 3 Holdings Limited 25%
# % ° Profit Surplus Holdings
Limited MEFBEFH(FE 5 )E
B& B PR A B 75.064% B i€ % - 1
Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited
MEFSERFIFEE)ERER
AF17.835% Kt o JRFT(FH =
BIERERAGDEEFAALARF
1,882,927,866 x5 °

2018 F B IR #E 5T 2

201 8F BB RERT B IR & LR
AIFE17EHIR - BRAARF20184F
BT B 2 2R TS

(b)

EEe

REHBE
FHBH Number of share
Date of grant options granted
201844 A27H 2,478,000
27 April 2018
20184 H27H 5,626,000
27 April 2018
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For the period of twelve months ended 31 December 2020,

600,000 options had been exercised under the 2008 Share
Option Scheme. Weighted average exercise price was HK$7.54
and the weighted average market closing price before the date of
exercise was HK$14.74. For details, please refer to note 30 to the

consolidated financial statements.

# Wei Ing-Chou was the former Chairman of the Board and a

former Executive Director. He is a beneficiary of two trusts which

holds 25% interests in Profit Surplus Holdings Limited and Profit
Surplus 3 Holdings Limited, respectively. Profit Surplus Holdings

Limited is indirectly interested in 75.064% of Ting Hsin (Cayman

Islands) Holding Corp. Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited is indirectly
interested in 17.835% of Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding
Corp. Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. directly holds
1,882,927,866 shares of the Company.

2018 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The terms of the 2018 Share Option Scheme are in accordance

with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Detailed

arrangement for the 2018 Share Option Scheme is shown as

below:

Table C

1T

Exercisable period

2021F4 A30BZE2028F 4 A26H (1a)

30 April 2021 to 26 April 2028 (1a)

202154 A30HE 20244 A26 H(1b)

30 April 2021 to 26 April 2024 (1b)

TEEE
Exercise price
(&)
(HKS)

$16.18

$16.18
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ATHEHYEEZ2020F12H31H The summary below sets out the details of movement of the share
IF+ = A BRIE2018F BT 2 Fr options during the twelve months ended 31 December 2020
B2 BIRESES - pursuant to the 2018 Share Option Scheme:
BZD Table D
EREZA
Number of share option
SIEHTREM
BFER s RONE  RTHUHE
ZBBEHE 1518 FREE/ 128318 Weighted
Closing 28 XM k3] average
price of Balance EREL EREAE Cancelled/ Balance  closing price
iid] the shares asat Granted Exercised lapsed asat  immediately
#e RTRH Exercise on the 1 January during during during  31December before i
Name Date of grant price  date of grant 2020 the period the period the period 2020 exercise  Note
AR B B
HKS HKS HKS
#Es
Executive Director
AR 018%4A278 16.18 15.02 385,000 - - - 385,000 - B
Wei Hong-Ming 27 April 2018 Table C (1a)
01847278 16.18 15.02 98,000 - - - 98,000 - B
27 April 2018 Table C (1b)
RER 018545278 16.18 15.02 385,000 - - - 385,000 - Eca)
Wei Hong-Chen 27 April 2018 Table C (1a)
018547278 16.18 15.02 98,000 - - - 98,000 - B
27 April 2018 Table C (1h)
ThEs
Chief Executive Officer
ERE 018547278 16.18 15.02 1,708,000 - - - 1,708,000 - B
James Chun-Hsien Wei 27 April 2018 Table C (1a)
018%4A278 16.18 15.02 797,000 - - - 797,000 - B
27 hpril 2018 Table C (1h)
IERR
Substantial Shareholder
REN 201847278 16.18 15.02 470,000 - - - 470,000 - B
Wei Ing-Chou* 27 April 2018 Table C (10)
EthERE 018%4A278 16.18 15.02 2,322,000 - - - 2,322,000 - B
Other employees 27 April 2018 Table C (1h)
in aggregate
it 6,263,000 - - - 6,263,000 -

Total

118 EMEZERERAT
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During the twelve months ended 31 December 2020, no share
options were exercised under the terms of the 2018 Share Option
Scheme.

# Wei Ing-Chou was the former Chairman of the Board and a
former Executive Director. He is a beneficiary of two trusts which
holds 25% interests in Profit Surplus Holdings Limited and Profit
Surplus 3 Holdings Limited, respectively. Profit Surplus Holdings
Limited is indirectly interested in 75.064% of Ting Hsin (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited is indirectly
interested in 17.835% of Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding
Corp. Ting Hsin (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. directly holds
1,882,927,866 shares of the Company.

Details of bank loans of the Group are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The directors and chief executive officer of the Company during the year
and up to the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wei Hong-Ming
Mr. Junichiro Ida
Mr. Koji Shinohara
Mr. Wei Hong-Chen
Mr. Yuko Takahashi
Ms. Tseng Chien

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hsu Shin-Chun
Mr. Lee Tiong-Hock
Mr. Hiromu Fukada

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. James Chun-Hsien Wei (retired on 31 December 2020)
Mr. Chen Yinjang (appointed on 1 January 2021)

None of the directors have a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without the payment
of compensation.
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(a1 REHREBERGHRE

HE Name

55 Directors
BARE Wei Hong-Ming
B IK Wei Hong-Chen
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The Company received confirmation of independence from the
Independent Non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considered all the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 106 to 111.

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive Officer in the Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO")) which are required (a) to be notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies relating to
securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(a)-1 Long position in the shares and the underlying Shares

RHEE 1 IR 4 2
Number of Shares Bk
BARER EEER Percentage
Personal Corporate of the issued
interests interests share capital
5,000,000 — 0.09%
5,000,000 — 0.09%



(a)-2 REQRBRETHRE (FiEE2)

i Name
== Directors
BERH Wei Hong-Ming
AR K Wei Hong-Chen
BE Tseng Chien
AR Chief Executive Officer
ERE James Chun-Hsien Wei
g

—_

HET - BHAMER
BHHA4.825% » HE

45 )5 4930.239% -
Inc. ([Rich Gold])#%817.835% -
EIpZLR g = v

A(FEDE

#0.619%

ARBIBZEAIT

~  RELTALREP—EBBRER
W AR AR

HRCSZA
MM BEIBEZEA

- MERALMES—ERBEEDN
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(a)-2 Long position in share options of the Company (note 2)

IR A

BaLE

S RERME ik ¢E| Percentage

Capacity and Number of of the issued

nature of interest shares share capital

EnEA 1,483,000 0.03%
Beneficial owner

BEafAA 1,483,000 0.03%
Beneficial owner

ERBEAA 854,000 0.02%
Beneficial owner

ERBEAA 14,863,000 0.26%

Beneficial owner

Note:

These 1,882,927,866 shares are held by and registered under the name
of Ting Hsin (Cayman lIslands) Holding Corp. (“Ting Hsin”). Ting Hsin is
beneficially owned as to approximately 44.825% by Ho Te Investments
Limited (“Ho Te"), as to approximately 30.239% by Rich Cheer Holdings
Limited (“Rich Cheer”), as to approximately 17.835% by Rich Gold Capital
Inc. (“Rich Gold"”), as to approximately 6.482% by Asahi Group Holdings,
Ltd., and as to the remaining 0.619% by unrelated third party. Ho Te
and Rich Cheer are owned as to 100% by Profit Surplus Holdings Limited
(“Profit Surplus™). Profit Surplus is the trustee of a unit trust, which is in
turn held by four discretionary trusts in equal proportions. The settlors and
discretionary objects of the four trusts are as follows:

—  Wei Chang Lu-Yun is the settlor of one of the discretionary trusts
with Wei Chang Lu-Yun and Wei Ing-Chou as discretionary objects;

—  Lin Li-Mien is the settlor of one of the discretionary trusts with Lin
Li-Mien and Wei Ying-Chiao as discretionary objects;

—  Wei Hsu Hsu-Mien is the settlor of one of the discretionary trusts
with Wei Hsu Hsu-Mien and Wei Yin-Chun as discretionary objects;
and
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—  Wei Tu Miao is the settlor of one of the discretionary trusts with
Wei Tu Miao and Wei Yin-Heng as discretionary objects.

Rich Gold is wholly owned by Tingho Capital Holding Co., Ltd., which
is owned by Profit Surplus 3 Holdings Limited (“Profit Surplus 3"). Profit
Surplus 3 is the trustee of a unit trust, which is in turn held by four
discretionary trusts in equal proportions. The settlors and discretionary
objects of the four trusts have similar structures to those listed above.

Lion Trust (Singapore) Limited is the trustee of each of the discretionary
trusts mentioned above.

2. Wei Ing-Chou is also personally interested in 13,942,000 shares and
holds 8,704,000 share options (details shown as Table B and Table D on
page 116 and 118 respectively) under the share option schemes of the
Company. Wei Chang Lu-Yun, being the spouse of Wei Ing-Chou, is also
deemed to be interested in the shares and the underlying shares held by
Wei Ing-Chou.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the nine months ended 31
December 2020 were there rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or
were there any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire such rights in or any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed in this paragraph, as at 31 December 2020, none of
the Directors and Chief Executive Officer had interests in any securities
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required (a) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (c) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies relating to securities
transactions by Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Ting Hsin (see Note 14

MiE AR (R 1)4
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Lion Trust (Singapore) Limted (2 /3% 1)4

Lion Trust (Singapore) Limted (see Note 1)4

ZHFRmRA gt

Sanyo Foods Co., Ltd.

A MR R2ERAAFEIRE121 %1228
7L EAE

B Eut &SN A2020F 12 A31 8 - 1B
(BERHEENYEB6CIEBTHEFENE

M ATRCE: - EEMA T HEARFR
AR 2 an AR -

BEEME | Directors’ Report

So far as was known to any Director or Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, as at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions
of substantial shareholders and other persons of the Company, in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to the kept under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company, were as follows:

HE T
B
ZBED%
% of the
21 BERNEE issued share
Capacity Number of shares held capital
BREAA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.48
Beneficial owner
REAT R 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.48
Interest of controlled company
R YNETY: 5 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.48
Interest of controlled company
BRUEAXTEA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.48
Interest of controlled company
BUEEXTEA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.48
Trustee of a unit trusts
R YNETY: 5 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.48
Interest of controlled company
SN RER 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.48
Interest of controlled company
BEELIXEA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.48
Trustee of discretionary trusts
ERAA 1,882,927,866 (L) 33.48

Beneficial owner
A Note 1 and 2 are set out on pages 121 to 122

Note: (L): Long Position

Apart from the above, no other interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2020.
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Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the printing of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Except for the related party transactions as disclosed in the financial
statements, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

There is no information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Donation made by the Group during the year amounted to RMB29.102
million.

During the year, the Group purchased less than 30% of its goods and
services from its 5 largest suppliers and sold less than 30% of its goods
to its 5 largest customers.
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Tingzheng Supply Agreement

On 21 November 2019, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Tingzheng Supply Agreement”) with Tingzheng (Cayman Islands)
Holding Corp. (“Tingzheng”), pursuant to which, Tingzheng and its
subsidiaries agreed to supply flexible plastic packaging materials and
plastic products to the Group for a term of three financial years from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2022. Tingzheng is beneficially owned
by family members and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman
of the Board and an Executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Wei
Hong-Chen, an Executive Director of the Company. The Tingzheng
Supply Agreement was approved by the independent shareholders of
the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 16 January 2020. Details of this agreement may be found in the
Company’s announcements and circular dated 21 November 2019, 16
December 2019, 23 December 2019 and 16 January 2020, respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the purchases from Tingzheng
and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB2,153.694 million. Such purchases
have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements of the
Company and were continuing connected transactions of the Company
for the purpose of the Listing Rules.

Ting Fung Supply Agreement

On 16 November 2019, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Ting Fung Supply Agreement”) with Tianjin Ting Fung Starch
Development Co., Ltd. (“Ting Fung”), pursuant to which, Ting Fung
agreed to supply modified potato starch, modified cassava starch
and seasoning flavour products to the Group for a term of three
financial years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022. Ting Fung
is beneficially owned by family members and relatives of Mr. Wei
Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director of
the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-Chen, an Executive Director of the
Company. Details of this agreement may be found in the Company's
announcement dated 16 December 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the purchases from Ting Fung
and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB324.227 million. Such purchases
have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements of the
Company and were continuing connected transactions of the Company
for the purpose of the Listing Rules.
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Ting Chuan Agreement

On 14 December 2017, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Ting Chuan Agreement”) with Ting Chuan (Cayman Islands)
Holding Corp. (“Ting Chuan”) in relation to the supply of products of
the Group to Ting Chuan and its subsidiaries, and for Ting Chuan and its
subsidiaries to provide sales promotion services to the Group for a term
of three financial years ending 31 December 2020. Ting Chuan operates
the “Family Mart” convenient stores in the PRC and is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Ting Hsin. Ting Hsin is a substantial shareholder of the
Company and held approximately 33.58% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of the Ting Chuan Agreement. Details of
the transactions above may be found in the Company’s announcement
dated 14 December 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the transactions with Ting
Chuan and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB171.109 million. Such
transactions have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

As the term of the Ting Chuan Agreement was due to expire on 31
December 2020, on 22 October 2020, the Company and Ting Chuan
entered into a new Products Supply Agreement in relation to the supply
of products of the Group to Ting Chuan and its subsidiaries, and for
Ting Chuan to provide related sales promotion services to the Group
for a term of three financial years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2023. Details of the transactions above may be found in the Company’s
announcement dated 22 October 2020.

Weizhen Supply Agreement

On 14 December 2017, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the "Weizhen Supply Agreement”) with Weizhen Investment Limited
("Weizhen Investment”) in relation to the Group’s purchase of frozen
and dried food materials, dried meat floss and other meat products from
Weizhen Investment and its subsidiaries for a term of three financial
years ending 31 December 2020. Weizhen Investment is owned as to
75% by Great System Holdings (Private) Limited (“Great System”), a
company which is beneficially owned by family members and relatives
of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the Board and an Executive
Director of the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-Chen, an Executive
Director of the Company, and as to 25% by Sanyo Foods, a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Details of the transactions above may be
found in the Company’s announcement dated 14 December 2017.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the purchases from Weizhen
Investment and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB412.665 million. Such
purchases have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

As the term of the Weizhen Supply Agreement was due to expire on 31
December 2020, on 27 November 2020, the Company and Weizhen
Investment entered into a new Products Supply Agreement to supply
frozen and dried food materials, dried meat floss and other meat
products to the Group for a term of three financial years from 1 January
2021 to 31 December 2023. Details of these transactions above may be
found in the Company’s announcement dated 27 November 2020.

Marine Vision Supply Agreement

On 18 October 2019, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Marine Vision Supply Agreement”) with Marine Vision Investment
Inc. (“Marine Vision"”) in relation to the Group’s purchase of carton
boxes from Marine Vision and its subsidiaries for a term of three
financial years ending 31 December 2022. Marine Vision is beneficially
owned by family members and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the
Chairman of the Board and an Executive Director of the Company, and
Mr. Wei Hong-Chen, an Executive Director of the Company. Details of
the transactions above may be found in the Company’s announcement
dated 18 October 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the purchases from Marine
Vision and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB2,233.612 million. Such
purchases have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

Nature Investment Supply Agreement

On 15 May 2018, the Company entered into a supply agreement
(the “Nature Investment Supply Agreement”) with Nature Investment
Group Ltd. (“Nature Investment”) in relation to the Group’s purchase
of sesame oil, animal oil and other sesame products from Nature
Investment and its subsidiaries for a term of three financial years ending
31 December 2020. Nature Investment is beneficially owned by family
members and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the
Board and an Executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-
Chen, an Executive Director of the Company. Details of the transactions
above may be found in the Company’s announcement dated 15 May
2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the purchases from Nature
Investment and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB226.763 million. Such
purchases have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements
and were continuing connected transactions of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.

As the term of the Nature Investment Supply Agreement was due to
expire on 31 December 2020, on 25 September 2020, the Company
entered into a new supply agreement with Nature Investment to
continue the supply of sesame oil, animal oil and other sesame products
from Nature Investment for a term of three financial years from 1
January 2021 to 31 December 2023. Details of the transactions above
may be found in the Company’s announcements dated 25 September
2020.

Logistics Services

On 22 June 2020, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered
into an agreement (the “Disposal Agreement”) with Great System under
which the Group agreed to sell the entire issued share capital of Ting
Tong (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (“Ting Tong”), to Great System
for a consideration of US$6.764 million (the “Disposal”). Prior to the
Disposal, Ting Tong was then an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and was principally engaged in the provision of logistics
services. Upon completion of the Disposal, the Group will cease to have
any interest in Ting Tong. Great System is beneficially owned by family
members and relatives of Mr. Wei Hong-Ming, the Chairman of the
Board and an Executive Director of the Company, and Mr. Wei Hong-
Chen, an Executive Director of the Company. Details of the Disposal
above may be found in the Company’s announcement dated 22 June
2020.

To enable the Group to continue to use the logistics services of Ting
Tong and its subsidiaries upon completion of the Disposal, on 22 June
2020, the Company and Ting Tong entered into a logistics services
agreement (the “Logistics Agreement”) for a term commencing
from the date on which the Disposal is completed and ending on 31
December 2022. Details of the transactions above may be found in the
Company'’s announcement dated 22 June 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the purchases from Ting Tong
and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB670.322 million. Such purchases
have been disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements of the
Company and were continuing connected transactions of the Company
for the purpose of the Listing Rules.
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Prior to the Disposal, Ting Tong and KSF Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. (“KSF
Beverage”) have previously entered into the KSF Beverage Logistics
Agreement on 27 December 2018 pursuant to which Ting Tong and
its subsidiaries agreed to provide logistics services to KSF Beverage and
its subsidiaries. KSF Beverage is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company in which as to approximately 82.9% of its equity interest is
controlled by the Company and as to approximately 17.1% of its equity
interest is held by Ting Hsin.

As the scope of the logistics services to KSF Beverage and its subsidiaries
would be covered by the Logistics Agreement, KSF Beverage and Ting
Tong has mutually agreed to terminate the KSF Beverage Logistics
Agreement upon the Logistics Agreement becoming effective.

For the period ended 21 June 2020, KSF Beverage and its subsidiaries’
purchases from Ting Tong and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB341.820
million.

The Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive Directors),
have reviewed and confirmed that the above continuing connected
transactions have been entered into:

(@) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or better which are no less
favourable to the Group than those available to/from independent
third parties; and

(¢) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has been engaged to report and they have
provided a letter to the Board confirming that the above continuing
connected transactions have nothing that would cause them to believe
that the transactions:

(@  have not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

(b)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group if the transactions involve the provision of
goods or services by the Group;

(c)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(d)  have exceeded the cap.
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The Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors), have
reviewed and confirmed that, except for the continuing connected
transactions as stated in the prior paragraphs, all other continuing
connected transactions entered by the Group are exempted under Rule
14A.73 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, such transactions are exempt
from the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association although there are no restrictions against such
rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

Additional information of business review is set out on pages 10 to 27
under “Management Discussion and Analysis” and on page 28 under
"Prospects” of this Annual Report.

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Wei Hong-Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2021
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18 Harbour Road,
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Fax f5&: (+852) 2810 0032
www.mazars.hk

To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tingyi (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the "Group"”) set out on pages 140 to 309, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
Impairment of machinery and equipment

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
amounted to RMB21,935 million at 31 December 2020. Of which,
the carrying amount of the Group’s machinery and equipment as at
31 December 2020 was RMB12,457 million. Any impairment of those
assets identified may have material impact on the consolidated financial
statements. An impairment loss of RMB66 million has been recognised
for certain machinery and equipment for the year ended 31 December
2020.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviewed internal and
external sources of information, including but not limited to technical
obsolescence to usage, significant change in use of assets with adverse
effect on the Group, prolonged period of time being idle and economic
performance of an asset was expected to be worse than expected, to
assess whether there is any indication that machinery and equipment
may be impaired.

If any such indication exists, an impairment test will be conducted. The
carrying amounts of the assets will be written down to their recoverable
amounts which are the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. The Group shall perform impairment assessment on
machinery and equipment by estimating the recoverable amounts of the
cash generating units (“CGUs") to which the assets belong principally
based on their value in use or, if applicable, to measure the recoverable
amount of certain individual assets with reference to their fair value less
costs of disposal.

We identified the carrying amount of machinery and equipment as a
key audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and the judgment and estimation involved in the impairment
review and test of machinery and equipment including the consideration
of the indicators of impairment and the determination of the key
assumptions applied in the impairment model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 5(ii) and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures, on sample basis where appropriate, in relation
to management’s impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment included:

a)  Discussing the process and basis used to identify indicators of
impairment of machinery and equipment with management
and reviewing utilisation records and profitability of machinery
and equipment, where such indicators were identified, assessing
whether management had performed impairment testing in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRSs;

b)  Assessing the appropriateness of the impairment model applied by
the management in calculating the impairment charges and the
judgments applied in determining the CGUs to which the assets
belong;

¢)  Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the discounted cash flow
model used in the value in use calculation;

d)  Evaluating the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the food and beverage industry and market;

e)  Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as future
production plans and approved budgets and assessing the
reasonableness and feasibility of such plans and budgets;

f)  Verifying the estimated fair value less costs of disposal by making
reference to the market price of an active market, if applicable;
and

g)  Considering the adequacy of the Group's disclosure in respect of
the impairment assessment.
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Key Audit Matter

Control over Hangzhou Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd (“HZPS”) and
impairment assessment of goodwill

HZPS became a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group through an
execution of sale and purchase agreement (the “SPA™) and a contractual
arrangement in 2017. The Group currently holds 50% equity interest in
HZPS and has a majority of the voting rights of HZPS.

The consolidation of HZPS required a significant amount of judgement
and estimations, including the determination of control over HZPS. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group re-assessed whether any
facts and circumstances indicate there are changes of its control over
HZPS. Based on the results of the re-assessment, the management
concluded that the Group has power over HZPS; has exposure to
variable returns from its involvement with HZPS; and has the ability to
use its power over HZPS to affect its returns. Therefore, the financial
statements of HZPS continue to be consolidated in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020.

The Group recognised goodwill of RMB98 million from the acquisition
in 2017. Management performs an annual impairment test on goodwill.
The goodwill was allocated to related CGU, and the recoverable
amount of CGU will be determined by management based on value
in use calculation using cash flow projection. The calculations involved
significant judgement and estimations, such as forecast cash flows,
discount rates and growth rates.

We identified the control over HZPS and impairment assessment of
goodwill as key audit matters because of their significance to the
consolidated financial statements and the judgement and estimation
involved in determination of control over HZPS and accounting for
any impairment on goodwill which involves significant degree of
management judgement in determining key assumptions applied in
estimating recoverable amounts based on value in use model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 5(ii), 18 and 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures in relation to the control over HZPS included:

a)  Discussing with the management to identify any facts and
circumstances that indicate changes of the Group’s control over
HZPS,;

b)  Evaluating the appropriateness of the Group’s re-assessment on
its control over HZPS;

Q) Obtaining direct confirmation from the vendor to ascertain the
existence of rights and benefits the Group entitled to through the
execution of the SPA and the contractual arrangement;

d)  Obtaining an updated legal opinion from the legal expert of
the Group's internal legal department to ascertain the legal
enforceability of the contractual arrangement in the PRC; and

e)  Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
Group's legal expert.

Our key procedures in relation to the recoverability assessment of
goodwill included:

a)  Assessing the value in use calculation methodology;

b)  Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge and understanding of the business and market;

¢)  Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the cash flow model used,;
and

d)  Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as approved
budgets and considering the reasonableness of the budgets.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information in the 2020 annual
report of the Company but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information, and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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e BEEFRAFELEGTERD e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
BEMN - WREBEIRESNETRE going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
HORTE B 7 & E B IE B evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
EAES E5EERELERNE to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
EERRE - MBEMREFTEEM Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
BANETHEZEZ  BIBEZEA®R that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
ERRBIELAVEHRER A attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
BiEE  EEEBEETE - AIERM the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
EEHRIIFBREBER - BHFINE inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
RN RN A ZEAE R E B b the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
FrEVS MR ET/RE - A - KK E However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
HERAIEER ES5ETa# cease to continue as a going concern.

25 ot 425 g A
BRELE -

e HERAMBHMENERIGA e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
X EBERAND BERESE consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
UWREEHEREREDUARTNTG whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
A2FHER S REIE - underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

e Bt EEERNEBNEBIDHHA e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the

BEKMEDNZD  BHENEFTR financial information of the entities and business activities within
FOUEGAMBHRRERER - the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
BZMEEEE EENHT &% statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
LB BRMATFERRESR performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
EaRE- our audit opinion.

HPEAIEB AR T tEIMETEE - B We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
ML EAEFTEREFSIE - SEFERM among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
TEZEFT HARI R A1 B P BB % ) &9 A () EE R Bk significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
ba o control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law and regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 22 March 2021

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Chan Chi Ming Andy
Practising Certificate number: P05132
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mElER
Consolidated Income Statement
EHZE2020F 12 B31 BIEFEE Year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
k=3 AR¥Fr ABREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
g Revenue 6 67,617,835 61,978,158
SHE AR Cost of sales (45,185,680) (42,218,703)
EF Gross profit 22,432,155 19,759,455
HAth Y e Other revenue 7 667,617 541,222
E b A Other net income 8 567,894 1,544,223
Pal =i W:N Distribution costs (14,150,828) (13,258,980)
THEHA Administrative expenses (2,290,999) (2,375,436)
B & A Other operating expenses (475,724) (619,395)
B %58 A Finance costs 9 (348,639) (413,652)
FEAGEE A ERBHEE Share of results of an associate 20, 21
and joint ventures 130,436 234,159

BB AR R Profit before taxation 9 6,531,912 5,411,596
I8 Taxation 11 (1,958,228) (1,693,374)
REERF Profit for the year 4,573,684 3,718,222
EiER Profit attributable to:

PiN/NET 3 Owners of the Company 4,062,263 3,330,981

DR RE LR Non-controlling interests 511,421 387,241
R EE A Profit for the year 4,573,684 3,718,222
SRR Earnings per share 13 AR#S AE# S

HAR Basic RMB72.23 cents =~ RMB59.25 cents

s Diluted RMB72.15 cents =~ RMB59.20 cents
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
HZ2020F 12 A31 BILFE Year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
AR¥TFTT ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R E i F Profit for the year 4,573,684 3,718,222
Ha2mds= (F8) - Other comprehensive income (loss):
TEESIEZR B R EH Items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss:
ARERNEEZEHE Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (367) (74,877)
FEEEAABES R REREAM Fair value changes in equity instruments
PHWGREENER TE designated as at fair value through
ARBECE other comprehensive income 32,456 3,199
32,089 (71,678)
BAAAEARESIHEE Items that are or may be reclassified
mERFEIER - subsequently to profit or loss:
EH Z%E Exchange differences on consolidation 784,122 (131,046)
784,122 (131,046)
REEHME2EKZE(EE) Other comprehensive income (loss)
for the year 816,211 (202,724)
AEELHWNELLE Total comprehensive income for the year 5,389,895 3,515,498
B2 mHikSEasE Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
NN 323 Owners of the Company 4,847,840 3,135,740
DEAR R R Non-controlling interests 542,055 379,758
5,389,895 3,515,498
BRAREIER
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
72020 12 A31 BHILEFE At 31 December 2020

2020 2019
it AR¥ T ABREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
FREEE Non-current assets
"B FE Investment properties 14 1,771,700 1,771,500
W - MR REE Property, plant and equipment 15 21,934,571 23,013,991
FRAEEE Right-of-use assets 16 3,804,456 4,025,124
mEE Intangible assets 17 165,668 183,409
BES Goodwill 18 97,910 97,910
RN ey Interest in an associate 20 94,802 139,537
EX-VNSIL- Interest in joint ventures 21 627,031 889,065
BAREBEYIRRE Financial assets at fair value through profit
BaRRENSREE or loss 22 1,329,479 1,153,541
BERAAEMESIRKLE  Equity instruments designated as at
HEme2mEla=EREED fair value through other
T HE comprehensive income 22 140,444 115,614
BETIAEE Deferred tax assets 34 429,027 407,171
R EATE HiTF 50 Long-term time deposits 26 2,435,000 725,000
32,830,088 32,521,862
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 23 3,347,676 3,445,075
JRE W R 3R Trade receivables 24 1,660,389 1,669,525
AT B I8 Tax recoverable 21,194 40,349
FEMFRIB R A EUGRIE  Prepayments and other receivables 25 2,240,898 2,852,469
HEIRIRITF K Pledged bank deposits 26 37,832 32,830
IRITHEBEIRS Bank balances and cash 26 21,393,321 17,397,557
28,701,310 25,437,805
wmEE Total assets 61,531,398 57,959,667
BREZRERE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
IR % i1 Capital and reserves
BITHRAR Issued capital 27 235,422 235,401
g Share premium 28 730,075 724,384
#E Reserves 29 20,147,227 18,618,789
AERATRBRREEBREIR Total capital and reserves attributable
B to owners of the Company 21,112,724 19,578,574
DB RER Non-controlling interests 19 3,626,659 3,467,533
BEREREEE Total equity 24,739,383 23,046,107
BHEERERAT
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A BFEIORE | Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
720204 12 A31 BIESE At 31 December 2020

2020 2019
et AREFT AR#For
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
BRADEBETIRIE Financial liabilities at fair value through
BaBRRENSRERE profit or loss 31 — 9,674
RHAERREBE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 32 7,805,122 4,920,078
HEAE Lease liabilities 16 215,609 287,892
HEMIERBEE Other non-current liabilities 39 — 40,000
BITREMNEE Employee benefit obligations 33 122,166 157,066
RIEFIEAGE Deferred tax liabilities 34 1,577,110 1,191,422
9,720,007 6,606,132
REBEE Current liabilities
BARBEYIERE Financial liabilities at fair value through
EnREENemeE profit or loss 31 9,959 —
FERTER X Trade payables 35 8,146,974 7,678,035
Hih e IR B UIFE  Other payables and deposits received 36 10,079,278 10,761,450
£ REEZRVEE G, Current portion of interest-bearing
borrowings 32 5,891,412 7,454,381
HEtnsas Other current liabilities 39 40,000 —
HEBRE Lease liabilities 16 101,191 199,664
BPIERRIE Advance payments from customers 40 2,360,954 1,809,935
I Taxation 442,240 403,963
27,072,008 28,307,428
waE Total liabilities 36,792,015 34,913,560
BRRESZREEHEE Total equity and liabilities 61,531,398 57,959,667
BERBEE(EE) Net current assets (liabilities) 1,629,302 (2,869,623)
HEERARBARS Total assets less current liabilities 34,459,390 29,652,239

FI40E300 B R AV BHRREBRESE
EN2021EIA M ERERESE
WHNRTALTREZE

These consolidated financial statements on pages 140 to 309 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22
March 2021 and signed on its behalf by

H A% —EB Junichiro Ida
ZEF Director

#i% % WEI Hong-Ming
B Director

EEER 143
2020 Annual Report 4 #§



e IRERE

E5 5k EjJ%:Z

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2020F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2020

LN e
Attributable to owners of the Company
RERES
BE  VURFER R
B Ri%E Total Non- fExt%
Issued Share i capital and controlling Total
capital premium Reserves Tesenves interestss equity
NGEFT  AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT
AMBO00 AMBO00 RIB 000 AVB 000 AVB 000 AMBO00
R19E151R At 1 January 2019 235,04 664,400 18,753,872 19,653,476 3,958,955 23,612,431
REREN Profit for the year - - 33080 3330% BAU 37180
A2 m(5E) s Other comprehensive (loss) income
RERRf ERE Remeastrement of defined benefit obligations - - (65,490) (65,490) (9.387) (74877)
BERDABEIERELL Fairvalue changes in equity instruments desigated
PENAERENERTE as at fair value through other
NEEZEY comprehensive income - - 3199 3199 - 3199
EXEE Exchange differences on consoldation - - (132,950) (132,950 1,904 (131,046)
Q] - Total other comprehensive loss - - (195,241) (195,241) (7.483) (202,724)
AEEREUEER Total comprehensive income for the year - - 3135740 3,135,740 379,758 3,515,498
BANARRZRG Transactions with owners of the Company:
REEST Contrbutions and distrbution
EREERNTMZRE Equity settled share-based transactions - - 24,504 24,504 - 24,504
RERRETZET R % Shares issued under share option scheme 197 50,984 (14,080) 46,101 - 46,101
BIEREE 2018 R BRERIRS 2018 final and special dvidend approved and paid - - 246332)  (2463321) (123646)  (2586,967)
197 59,984 (2452,897) (2392.716) (123,646) (2516,362)
FEERY Changes in ownershyp interests
HE-FE2ENELE Disposal of a non-wholy owned subsidiary - - - - 8601) 8.601)
EEUHZEHIENHELT  Changein ownership interest n subsiciaries
FRERD without change in control - - (817,926) (817.926) (138933 (1,556,859
- - (817,926) (817,926) (747 534) (1,565,460)
BANRRRZRAER Total transactions with owners of the Company 197 994 (083 (1064 (671,180 (4,081822)
R2019%128318 At 31 December 2019 235,401 724,384 18,618,789 19,578,574 3,467,533 23,046,107
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RE R EREREE)IR | Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
#HZ=2020F12 A31 BILHFE Year ended 31 December 2020

KaARRRR
Attributable to owners of the Company
BxRE
48 JURRER B&
Bika Ri&E Total Non- ERiE
Issued Share i cpitaland  controlling Total
capital premium Reserves reserves interests equity

ABRTE  ARETZ  ARETT  ARRFL ARETZ AERTX
RUBY00  RMBYO)  RMBUO  RMBUMO  RMBDO) AWMU

R2020E1818 At 1 January 2020 235,401 724,384 18,618,789 19,578,574 3,467,533 23,046,107
RERRR Profitfor the year - - 4,062,263 4,062,263 511,421 4,573,684
Hp2EHE(ER) Other comprehensive income (loss)

RERFEEZEREM233)  Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (ote 33) - - 815 815 (1,182) (367)

BERDABEIERELL Fairvalue changes in equity instruments desigated
PENAERENERTA as at fir value through other comprehensive

MEEZBW20) income (ot 22() - - 32456 3245 - 3245
EiEE Bichange differences on consolidation - - 752,306 752,306 31,816 784,122
RH2EURLE Total other comprehensive income - - 785,577 185,571 30634 816,211
REERANRAE Total comprehensive income for the year - - 4,847,840 4,847,840 542,055 5,389,895
BRNIRRZRS Transactions with owners of the Company:
REESE Contributions and distrbution
BREERRTN 2B Equity settled share-based transactions - - 15,988 15,988 - 15,988
REEREEE T RA Shares issued under share option scheme ote 27)
Wi27) ]l 5,691 (133) 4,389 - 4,389
BREREZ019KERES  2019final and spedal dividend approved
ke and paid (ote 12) - - (3,330,981) (3,330,981) (365,506) (3,696,487)
A 5,691 (3,316,316) (3,310,604) (365,506) (3,676,110)
o 2 ] Changes in ownershyp iterests
ESUHBAEEONERT  Changein ownership interest in a subsidiary
ERERI N 19) without change in control ot 79) - - (3,086) (3,086) (17423) (20509)
HRNIRRZRBAE Total transactions with owners of the Company N 5,691 (3319402  (3313,690) (382,929) (3,696,619
R2020%5128318 At 31 December 2020 8540 730,075 20,147,227 111274 3,626,659 24,739,383
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SERIMER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHZE2020F 12 B31 BIEFEE Year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
et AR¥FT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
REES OPERATING ACTIVITIES
REXKFBES Cash generated from operations 37 10,429,950 9,591,258
EAFBEPEMSEE The People’s Republic of China
("PRC") enterprise income tax paid (1,529,072) (1,343,821)
[k NS Interest paid (347,024) (416,419)
ReETHMERESFHE Net cash from operating activities 8,553,854 7,831,018
REER INVESTING ACTIVITIES
2T B Interest received 667,617 541,222
BRI ET Increase in long-term time deposits 26 (1,710,000) (725,000)
B E &R RIIRF Dividend received from joint ventures 21 374,926 32,025
2 U — g A w7 Dividend received from an associate 20 62,279 —
BUUE A EEYIERREIE  Dividend received from financial assets
HEREMNS/EERS  atfair value through profit or loss 135 3,253
HE—fBE AR ZFE  Proceeds from disposal of an associate — 195,107
HE—MAEEARZAE  Proceed from disposal of a joint venture — 225,408
HEZRAABEIER Proceeds from disposal of financial
R AR IEHY assets at fair value through
TRVEEZ IS profit or loss 22(a) 172,319 82,262
HERTHEAAMEMESIER  Proceeds from disposal of equity
DEHMEEKEERIE  instruments designated as at fair value
RETREE 